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This matter came on f o r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , DAVID K. BROOKS, Hearing 
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Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 f o r the 

State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:24 a.m.: 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Case Number 12,910, 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Richardson Production Company f o r compulsory 

p o o l i n g , San Juan County, New Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the A p p l i c a n t , and I have two witnesses t h i s 

morning. 

MR. HORNER: And I'm Gary Horner, appearing on 

behalf of Mary Fischer, the person who i s intended t o be 

force-pooled here today. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, and are you an a t t o r n e y , 

Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: Yes, I am. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And where do you p r a c t i c e ? 

MR. HORNER: Farmington. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, thank you. Did you f i l e 

a w r i t t e n appearance, Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: No, I have not. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you by any chance have a 

business card on you t h a t we could put i n the f i l e , be sure 

you get n o t i c e s and everything i n t h i s case. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Brooks, because the p o o l i n g 
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case i s a contested matter, we have no o b j e c t i o n i f you'd 

l i k e t o dispose of Mr. Carr's two cases. He f o l l o w s us on 

the docket, and they perhaps i n v o l v e less time than the 

case you've j u s t c a l l e d . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good, I ' l l l e t Mr. 

Stogner go ahead, then. 

(Off the record a t 8:25 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 9:30 a.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, a t t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l 

Case Number 12,910, A p p l i c a t i o n of Richardson Production 

Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , San Juan County, New 

Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the A p p l i c a n t , and I have two witnesses t o be 

sworn. 

MR. HORNER: And my name i s Gary Horner, 

appearing on behalf of Mary Fischer, and I probably w i l l 

have two witnesses myself, which i n d i c a t e s t h a t I may have 

t o t e s t i f y too. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. W i l l those persons who 

are t e s t i f y i n g please stand, i d e n t i f y yourselves f o r the 

record? 

MR. RICHARDSON: David Richardson, President, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Richardson Production. 

MR. LEHRMAN: Paul Lehrman, landman f o r 

Richardson. 

MR. HORNER: Gary Horner. 

MS. FISCHER: Mary Fischer. 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Brooks, Richardson i s seeking 

t o pool the east h a l f of Section 14. 

Do you have another set of e x h i b i t s ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have another set of — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let me give Mr. Stogner these. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Richardson i s here t h i s 

morning t o seek the fo r c e p o o l i n g of the one remaining 

i n t e r e s t owner i n the east h a l f of Section 14. The balance 

of the s e c t i o n has been consolidated, and w e ' l l describe 

how the s e c t i o n i s subdivided. We're c o n c e n t r a t i n g on the 

east h a l f . There's an e x i s t i n g PC w e l l i n the southeast 

q u a r t e r . 

We're seeking t o d r i l l i n the east h a l f , i n the 

northeast q u a r t e r , a w e l l t h a t w i l l be a F r u i t l a n d Coal gas 

w e l l on 320, plus i t w i l l be a PC w e l l on 160-acre spacing. 

We b e l i e v e we're d e a l i n g w i t h the B a s i n - F r u i t l a n d 

Coal Gas Pool f o r the gas w e l l , and t h a t i f the P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f f o r m a t i o n i s prod u c t i v e , we b e l i e v e t h a t t o be the 
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West Kutz-Pictured C l i f f s Gas Pool. 

We have agreement e i t h e r by lease or other 

c o n t r a c t s w i t h the various i n t e r e s t owners. Y o u ' l l see 

from the maps t h a t the east h a l f i s d i v i d e d , and the maps 

w i l l demonstrate t o you what we've c a l l e d Lot 1. Lot 1 i s 

a t r a c t i n the northeast quarter t h a t i s n o r t h of the San 

Juan River. 

W i t h i n t h a t t r a c t the mineral i n t e r e s t i s 

d i v i d e d . Dugan Production has 50 percent of t h a t i n t e r e s t . 

Dugan's produ c t i o n i s committed t o the w e l l . The balance 

of t h a t i n t e r e s t i s c o n t r o l l e d by Ms. Fischer, and we have 

not been able t o reach an agreement w i t h her, and we're 

seeking t o pool her i n t e r e s t . 

The w e l l was d r i l l e d and spudded on June 27th of 

t h i s year. Part of Richardson's program was such t h a t t h i s 

w e l l was d r i l l e d i n June. I t awaits completion, i t hasn't 

been f r a c ' d , produced. I t ' s simply standing i d l e u n t i l we 

res o l v e the p o o l i n g issue. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: The w e l l has been d r i l l e d ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t has been d r i l l e d . 

I have two witnesses. 

Mr. Richardson himself i s a g e o l o g i s t by 

education and has q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n the past before 

t h i s agency, and he w i l l t a l k t o you about the w e l l , about 

h i s estimated costs, and he w i l l discuss t h e r i s k 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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associated w i t h the wellbore a t t h i s p o i n t f o r the P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f , as w e l l as the coal gas. 

Mr. Paul Lehrman i s a landman c o n s u l t i n g i n the 

San Juan Basin. He's c u r r e n t l y r e t a i n e d by Richardson t o 

deal w i t h t h i s and other issues. Mr. Lehrman t e s t i f i e d 

before you back i n J u l y i n Farmington on other p o o l i n g 

cases. Mr. Lehrman has made himself knowledgeable about 

the Richardson f i l e s . He has looked a t the surveys. He 

has c a l c u l a t e d , or had c a l c u l a t e d , the i n t e r e s t s i n v o l v e d 

i n the east h a l f of the s e c t i o n . 

He has negotiated w i t h Ms. Fischer and her 

at t o r n e y as l a t e as yesterday and i s prepared t o t e s t i f y 

about the f a c t t h a t , despite t h e i r e f f o r t s , we cannot reach 

an agreement. We're t h e r e f o r e asking you t o commit her 

i n t e r e s t pursuant t o the p o o l i n g s t a t u t e , s u b j e c t t o an 

app r o p r i a t e penalty so t h a t , should she choose not t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h i n the e l e c t i o n p e r i o d , t h a t we would have 

the o p p o r t u n i t y t o recover out of produc t i o n her share of 

the costs, plus an appropriate penalty f o r each of the 

pools. 

So t h a t w i l l be our p r e s e n t a t i o n t h i s morning. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, t h i s w e l l i s named the 

Navajo 14-2. I s t h i s southeast q u a r t e r , i s t h i s t r i b a l 

land? 

MR. RICHARDSON: Yes. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k so, I t h i n k t h a t ' s Navajo 

t r i b a l land, administered by the Bureau of Land Management. 

Mr. Lehrman can t e s t i f y as t o those p o i n t s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good. You may go 

ahead w i t h your — C a l l your witness. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Paul, why don't you come on up? 

PAUL LEHRMAN. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Lehrman, f o r the record would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. Paul Lehrman, I'm a c o n s u l t i n g landman out of 

Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. Unlike the microphones i n Farmington, Mr. 

Lehrman, t h i s i s j u s t f o r the co u r t r e p o r t e r . 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t w i l l not amplify your voice — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — so y o u ' l l have t o speak up. 

I n what community do you reside? 

A. Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. And what's your profession? 

A. I'm a landman. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. And what's your r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h Richardson 

Production Company? 

A. I've been employed f o r approximately t h r e e months 

as a c o n s u l t i n g landman. 

Q. Have you q u a l i f i e d as a petroleum land expert 

before the D i v i s i o n on p r i o r occasions? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. As p a r t of your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s t o Mr. 

Richardson, have you made a determination of the ownership 

i n t he spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you studied the various i n f o r m a t i o n s 

concerning the c o n f i g u r a t i o n of t h a t section? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you reviewed the f i l e s of Richardson 

concerning any p r i o r contact w i t h Ms. Fischer? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you p e r s o n a l l y been i n v o l v e d i n 

discussions w i t h Ms. Fischer concerning the commitment of 

her i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Lehrman as an expert 

witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: As a petroleum landman? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let me have you take E x h i b i t 

Number 1, Mr. Lehrman. Before we discuss the d e t a i l s , 

would you i d e n t i f y f o r me what E x h i b i t 1 is? 

A. I t ' s a map showing the e x i s t i n g w e l l s i n t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r area, t h a t n i n e - s e c t i o n area around Section 14, 

29-14. 

Q. When we focus on Section 14, does i t d e p i c t t he 

approximate l o c a t i o n of the San Juan River? Can you see 

t h a t d isplayed i n t h a t section? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What's the o r i e n t a t i o n of the d i s p l a y as t o the 

r i v e r i n r e l a t i o n t o t h i s section? 

A. The r i v e r i s located i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 

14. 

Q. Was t h i s document prepared by Richardson using 

p u b l i c a v a i l a b l e information? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The we11spots shown on here, what do they 

describe f o r us, Mr. Lehrman? 

A. They show the e x i s t i n g approved w e l l l o c a t i o n s i n 

Section 14. 

Q. Let's take a moment and set E x h i b i t 1 aside and 

have you i d e n t i f y f o r us E x h i b i t Number 2. 

A. Okay, i t ' s a p l a t showing the proposed spacing 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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u n i t s f o r the F r u i t l a n d Coal and the West Kutz - P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f s w e l l i n the northeast quarter of Section 14, w i t h 

our d e p i c t i o n of the unleased mineral i n t e r e s t s , the 

l o c a t i o n of the w e l l and the percentages we c u r r e n t l y h o l d 

and the percentages t o be f o r c e pooled. 

Q. There's a w e l l spot t h a t ' s i d e n t i f i e d as the 

Navajo 14-2. What does t h a t s i g n i f y ? 

A. That's the approved Navajo 14-2 l o c a t i o n , 1948 

f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e and 1037 from the east l i n e , 

w i t h i n Section 14. 

Q. I s the east h a l f of the s e c t i o n subdivided i n any 

way? 

A. Yes, I b e l i e v e t h e r e are some l o t s i n the 

northeast q u a r t e r . I b e l i e v e the southeast q u a r t e r i s 

a l i q u o t 40s. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s deal w i t h the p r o p e r t y south of what 

i s shown as the San Juan River. 

A. Okay. 

Q. What k i n d of lands are those? 

A. Those are owned by the Navajo t r i b e , surface and 

minerals. 

Q. How have you gone about a c q u i r i n g knowledge about 

the ownership i n the east h a l f of the section? 

A. Well, we use a v a i l a b l e BLM records, county 

records, records a v a i l a b l e t o us i n Window Rock, Arizona, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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a t t he Navajo t r i b a l o f f i c e s . 

Q. Have you been involved i n t h a t process f o r t h i s 

spacing u n i t ? 

A. I have not been involved i n the Navajo p a r t of 

i t . I've done some research a t the county and BLM l e v e l s . 

Q. Okay. Can you describe f o r us who are the 

i n t e r e s t owners i n what i s i d e n t i f i e d as Lot 1? 

A. There are two mineral owners, one of which i s 

Mary Fischer. The other undivided 50-percent m i n e r a l owner 

i s a lady i n Farmington by the name of Twyla Gooding, and 

she's c u r r e n t l y leased t o Dugan Production Corporation i n 

Farmington. 

Q. What's the st a t u s of the commitment of Dugan's 

percentage i n Tract I t o your p r o j e c t ? 

A. Well, they've committed t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o the 

w e l l v i a c o n t r a c t s w i t h Richardson. 

Q. How has the balance of the i n t e r e s t , e x c l u d i n g 

Ms. Fischer, f o r the spacing u n i t been consolidated? Are 

those by lease or by agreement or what? W i t h i n the east 

h a l f of the s e c t i o n , how were you able t o gain c o n t r o l of 

operations f o r the Navajo lands? 

A. Oh, I b e l i e v e we obtained t h a t v i a agreement w i t h 

another p a r t y . I b e l i e v e i t ' s a farmout. 

Q. So the only i n t e r e s t a t t h i s p o i n t i s Ms. 

Fischer's i n t e r e s t ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Show me how you run through the bottom of the 

e x h i b i t t o get, f i r s t of a l l , the t a b u l a t i o n of acreage i n 

each of the two spacing u n i t s , the one f o r the PC and the 

one f o r the c o a l . 

A. The c a l c u l a t i o n s were a r r i v e d based on a recent 

BLM survey. We came up w i t h 166.47 acres i n the northeast 

f o r t he PC and 326.47 f o r east h a l f F r u i t l a n d Coal, and the 

percentages d e p i c t our holdings versus the hold i n g s of Ms. 

Fischer, which are unleased a t t h i s p o i n t , and we're t r y i n g 

t o f o r c e pool based on the spacing u n i t , be t e n percent, a 

l i t t l e over t e n percent i n the northeast, and f i v e percent 

i n t h e east h a l f . 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t the c a l c u l a t i o n i s based upon 

a BLM survey. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Can you give us the date or the reference t o t h a t 

survey? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was done i n 2001. 

Q. Do you have a copy of t h a t survey? 

A. I do, i t ' s back t h e r e . 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y what I've shown you as a 

recorded p l a t ? What i s that? 

A. I t ' s a survey p l a t of the n o r t h h a l f of Section 

14 we obtained from the BLM. 
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Q. And what's the date of the p l a t ? 

A. 2-14-01, February 14th, 2001. 

Q. February 14th of — 

A. — 2001. 

Q. — l a s t year. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, w i t h your 

permission, Mr. Lehrman brought t h i s t h i s morning, and I 

d i d n ' t have a chance t o copy i t on t h i s scale. I f y o u ' l l 

a l l o w me a f t e r the hearing t o withdraw t h i s , I ' l l make a 

f u l l - s i z e copy f o r a l l the p a r t i c i p a n t s . At t h i s p o i n t I 

have only copies of the reduced p o r t i o n t h a t shows the 

o u t l i n e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, t h a t w i l l be acceptable. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o g i v e Mr. Lehrman a 

reduced copy and show the Examiner the f u l l - s i z e — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — e x h i b i t . And w i t h your 

permission, Mr. Examiner, we w i l l l a b e l t h i s as A p p l i c a n t 

E x h i b i t Number 2-A. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Mr. Lehrman, where d i d you 

o b t a i n the BLM survey? 

A. At the BLM o f f i c e i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. I s t h i s the survey t h a t you're u t i l i z i n g f o r the 

spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. I s t h i s the survey t h a t you u t i l i z e d i n order t o 

come up w i t h the acreage f o r the northeast q u a r t e r as w e l l 

as the east h a l f of the section? 

A. We used the survey, and we also used the 

Compensatory Royalty Agreement t h a t we have approved w i t h 

the BLM. 

Q. Describe f o r me what the Compensatory Royalty 

Agreement i s t h a t you j u s t r e f e r r e d t o . What i s t h a t ? 

A. I t ' s an agreement between the operator and the 

Bureau of Land Management on acreage t h a t ' s b a s i c a l l y 

unleased i n a spacing u n i t and i s unleasable, and i t ' s — I 

have a copy. 

B a s i c a l l y , you make a deal w i t h t he government t o 

pool t h e i r small l i t t l e pieces i n t o t h a t pooled u n i t f o r a 

c e r t a i n p r i c e . And the reason they do t h a t i s because they 

have so many other l a r g e r parcels t h a t go up on a normal 

bas i s , these come up from time t o time, and i t ' s j u s t 

e a sier f o r them t o do these agreements w i t h the company 

t h a t ' s a c t u a l l y d r i l l i n g the w e l l versus p u t t i n g i t out on 

the open market. 

MR. HORNER: Are we going t o in t r o d u c e the 

document as an e x h i b i t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, not a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Mr. Brooks, l e t me have Mr. Lehrman e x p l a i n t o 

you the east h a l f of the s e c t i o n . 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) When you search t he 

d e s c r i p t i o n s f o r the east h a l f of the Section 14, you have 

used the i d e n t i f i c a t i o n Lot 1. What does Lot 1 mean? 

A. Lot — As f a r as E x h i b i t Number 2 or — 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. -- j u s t i n general? 

Q. Yeah. 

A. I t ' s j u s t a d e s c r i p t i o n of a t r a c t of land t h a t 

was a t one time surveyed and then conveyed t o separate 

p a r t i e s , the surface of which i s now owned by Ms. Fischer. 

Q. Let's go back. Have you searched the Fischer 

chain of t i t l e — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — back t o see i f you can describe f o r us the 

d e s c r i p t i o n t h a t was used by which she acquired her 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s t h a t d e s c r i p t i o n ? 

A. Lot 1. 

Q. Does i t give you a metes and bounds d e s c r i p t i o n 

f o r Lot 1 i n the conveyance document? 

A. No, i t does not. 

Q. Does i t r e f e r t o a recorded p l a t as a reference 

item f o r Lot 1? 
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A. Not t o my r e c o l l e c t i o n , i t does not. 

Q. When the BLM r e f e r s t o Lot 1, are they r e f e r r i n g 

t o t h e same l o t t h a t Mrs. Fischer has a 50-percent i n t e r e s t 

in? 

A. Yes, I b e l i e v e they are. 

Q. And how does the BLM c u r r e n t l y describe the t o t a l 

acreage i n Lot 1? 

A. They took the adjusted c a l c u l a t i o n s f o r the 

meander of the San Juan River and adjusted i t a c c o r d i n g l y , 

based on t h e i r survey of t h e i r l o t s . 

Q. When you run through the c a l c u l a t i o n , what 

percentage or what net-acre i n t e r e s t does Ms. Fischer have 

i n Lot 1? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was 3 5 — 

Q. — and change? 

A. Yeah, 35 acres. 

Q. And t h a t ' s what you're proposing t o u t i l i z e i n 

terms of the a l l o c a t i o n — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — of i n t e r e s t — 

A. That's on a gross basis. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Are you using the a l l o c a t i o n 

c a l c u l a t i o n s f o r Ms. Fischer's i n t e r e s t based upon how the 

BLM survey r e l a t e s t o her t r a c t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. So the i n t e r i o r s u b d i v i s i o n of the spacing u n i t 

i s based upon how the BLM r e l a t e s t h e i r p r o p e r t y t o her 

property? 

A. Well, i f I can elaborate j u s t from what I know 

about surveying, you know, when you survey a c e r t a i n l o t or 

whatever w i t h i n a s e c t i o n , you're going t o have t o break 

down the s e c t i o n and survey the whole s e c t i o n , which i s 

what they appeared t o do. 

MR. HORNER: Objection, your Honor, motion t o 

s t r i k e . He's not been q u a l i f i e d as a surveyor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We'll take t h a t — 

THE WITNESS: I'm j u s t — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We'll take t h a t i n t o 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n , the subject of t h a t . I ' l l o v e r r u l e the 

o b j e c t i o n . 

Go ahead. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Explain. 

A. I am not a q u a l i f i e d surveyor, I ' l l say t h a t . 

But I know enough about surveying t h a t , you know, t h a t ' s 

what they would have t o do t o a r r i v e a t these f i g u r e s f o r 

these l o t s . 

Q. So t h a t ' s how i t was represented t o you? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . I t a l k e d t o the BLM 

ca d a s t r a l surveyor i n Farmington about t h i s on Tuesday. 

Q. Did he supply you w i t h the map t h a t you're 
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u t i l i z i n g f o r purposes of — 

A. Yes, he d i d . 

Q. — t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes, he d i d . 

Q. Let me have you r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 3. I d e n t i f y 

t h a t document f o r us, Mr. Lehrman. 

A. I t ' s a l i s t of the unleased mineral owners — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I'm so r r y , I'm having t r o u b l e 

f i n d i n g — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm so r r y — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — the e x h i b i t , h o l d on a 

minute. I h i d i t from myself. Okay, yeah, you may 

continue. 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s a l i s t of the unleased mineral 

owners, the nature and percent of Mrs. Fischer's i n t e r e s t 

i n t he proposed spacing u n i t , both the northeast P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f s and the east h a l f F r u i t l a n d Coal, w i t h her net 

unleased acreage and the percent i n t h a t spacing u n i t . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) And again, t h i s c a l c u l a t i o n i s 

based upon the BLM survey t h a t you were provided with? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o see what Richardson's f i l e s r e f l e c t 

concerning contacts w i t h Ms. Richardson about her i n t e r e s t . 

Have you reviewed those documents? 

A. Yes, I have. 
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Q. Based upon t h a t review, what i s the f i r s t 

document you f i n d i n t h e i r f i l e t h a t r e f l e c t s a proposal of 

t h i s w e l l t o Ms. Fischer? 

A. There was a l e t t e r dated 6-26-01 w i t h the 

proposal t o Ms. Fischer f o r the proposed w e l l . 

Q. I t ' s marked as E x h i b i t 4? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s t h i s a c o r r e c t and accurate copy of t h a t 

o r i g i n a l ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Behind the l e t t e r i s a spreadsheet w i t h numbers. 

What's t h a t ? 

A. I t ' s an a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure, o u t l i n i n g the 

costs i n v o l v e d i n the proposed w e l l . 

Q. And behind t h a t , what's the next page? 

A. I t ' s a copy of the r e t u r n r e c e i p t card t h a t would 

be attached t o the proposal sent t o Ms. Fischer. 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, i s t h i s t h e f i r s t 

w r i t t e n correspondence t o Ms. Fischer i n which a w e l l i s 

proposed and an AFE has been submitted? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Was she advised at t h a t time t h a t t h i s w e l l was 

t o be a dual completion w i t h the P i c t u r e d C l i f f and the — 

A. That's the f i r s t paragraph, yes, i t ' s supposed t o 

be a dual w e l l . 
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Q. Was she advised of what Richardson b e l i e v e d t o be 

her net i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And was she af f o r d e d the o p p o r t u n i t y t o review an 

ope r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And she was given estimates of w e l l cost and w e l l 

charges? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does the f i l e r e f l e c t any response from Ms. 

Fischer? 

A. There's a n o t a t i o n on the r i g h t - h a n d bottom 

corner t h a t says "no t o p a r t i c i p a t e " . I am s p e c u l a t i n g , 

but I b e l i e v e t h a t was done by Cathleen Colby, who was the 

land manager a t the time. 

MR. HORNER: Objection, your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, i f you don't know — I f 

you recognize the w r i t i n g , you can so s t a t e . I f you don't 

know, w e l l , j u s t t e l l me you don't know. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. Well, l i k e I s a i d , I 

q u a l i f i e d , I'm j u s t s peculating. 

MR. KELLAHIN: You don't know? 

THE WITNESS: Somebody wrote t h i s on t h e r e t h a t 

spoke w i t h her. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. Well, don't speculate. 
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THE WITNESS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) The next correspondence i n the 

f i l e a f t e r June 26th i s what, Mr. Lehrman? 

A. I t ' s dated November 16th of 2001. 

Q. Do you have any i n d i c a t i o n i n the f i l e chronology 

t h a t between June and November there were any other 

correspondence from Richardson or Ms. Fischer back t o 

Richardson on t h i s t o p i c ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. The November 17th l e t t e r of '01 i s E x h i b i t 5? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What i s being proposed t o Ms. Fischer i n t h i s 

l e t t e r ? 

A. I t ' s b a s i c a l l y the same proposal as the f i r s t 

l e t t e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Now, you sa i d November 17th. 

I t appears t o be dated November 16th. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm so r r y , I misspoke. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

MR. KELLAHIN: November 16th. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Since then, have you had 

d i r e c t contact w i t h Ms. Fischer? 

A. I n the past week, yes, I have. 

Q. Before Monday of t h i s week, had you had any 

contact w i t h her? 
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A. NO. 

Q. How o f t e n d i d you meet w i t h her t h i s week? 

A. I b e l i e v e we met w i t h her t w i c e , and Gary had 

come by once i n the o f f i c e t o p i c k up some maps and s t u f f 

t h a t he had asked f o r . 

Q. You're r e f e r r i n g t o Mr. Horner? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . When was the l a s t meeting w i t h e i t h e r 

Mr. Horner or Ms. Fischer? 

A. Yesterday. 

Q. Yesterday when? 

A. Oh, e a r l y afternoon. 

Q. What was the t o p i c of discussion? 

A. They had come back w i t h a counterproposal t o our 

o f f e r of — I b e l i e v e i t was Tuesday. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t me have you t e l l the Examiner what 

Richardson had o f f e r e d f o r a v o l u n t a r y agreement of Ms. 

Fischer's i n t e r e s t . What was o f f e r e d t o her? 

A. We had o f f e r e d her — The s p e c i f i c d o l l a r amounts 

and everything? 

Q. As best you can r e c a l l , a t l e a s t t he t o p i c s . 

A. Well, we had discussed the whole issues i n v o l v e d , 

one of which was, they were not sure of t h e i r m i n e r a l 

i n t e r e s t s and asked us t o provide them documentation f o r 

t h e i r 50-percent i n t e r e s t , which we d i d , and also some of 
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these maps, we provided those too. And we countered w i t h a 

$100-an-acre bonus and an ei g h t h r o y a l t y f o r an o i l and gas 

lease. 

Q. Let me ask you t h i s i n terms of t o p i c s . Did you 

o f f e r her a proposal by which she would lease her i n t e r e s t 

t o you? 

A. Yes, t h a t was a proposal f o r a lease. 

Q. Did you a f f o r d her the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

by paying her share? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s always been on the t a b l e . 

Q. Did she accept those terms? 

A. No. 

Q. What d i d she counter with? 

A. Yesterday a t our meeting, she countered — and 

Mr. Horner was i n t h a t meeting too. B a s i c a l l y , she wanted 

t o be c a r r i e d on the w e l l , her net i n t e r e s t , f r e e and 

c l e a r , w i t h an a d d i t i o n a l 1/6 r o y a l t y on t o p of t h a t . And 

we de c l i n e d t h a t c o u n t e r o f f e r . 

Q. Let me see i f I understand the proposal. I f you 

look a t E x h i b i t 3, i f you look a t the northeast q u a r t e r , 

her acreage i s the 17-plus acres? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Those are net acres? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Her percentage i n the spacing u n i t would be t e n 
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percent? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , f o r the PC. 

Q. For the PC. Was her proposal one where she would 

carve out her r o y a l t y from her gross working i n t e r e s t 

ownership, or was i t i n a d d i t i o n t o — 

A. My r e c o l l e c t i o n i s , i t was i n a d d i t i o n t o . I t 

was k i n d of an unusual c o u n t e r o f f e r but — one t h a t ' s not 

normally done, so we declined. 

Q. Did you accept her c o u n t e r o f f e r whereby you would 

c a r r y her share of the working i n t e r e s t and recover t h a t 

share out of f u t u r e production? 

A. We d i d n ' t discuss t h a t . 

Q. What was discussed about c a r r y i n g her i n t e r e s t ? 

A. We j u s t declined t h a t . 

Q. As of t h i s morning you're not i n agreement w i t h 

Ms. Fischer about how t o v o l u n t a r i l y commit her i n t e r e s t t o 

the w e l l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner f o r 

proposed overhead r a t e s f o r completing the d r i l l i n g and 

completion of the w e l l and f o r a monthly s u p e r v i s i o n cost? 

A. Yes, those are on E x h i b i t Number 6. 

Q. I d e n t i f y f o r Mr. Brooks what your proposed 

numbers are. 

A. $5000 f o r the d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e and $500 f o r the 
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producing we l l rate. 

Q. Are these rates consistent with those rates f o r 

which other i n t e r e s t owners i n your wells have agreed to? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are they consistent with the rates the Division 

has awarded you i n recent compulsory pooling orders? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t ' s what you propose to u t i l i z e i n t h i s 

case? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r with the Ernst and Young 

overhead schedules? 

A. Yes. 

Q. We've got a copy of t h i s marked as Exhibit 7. 

Are you w i t h i n the average and mean f o r depths of wells at 

t h i s i n t e r v a l , based upon t h e i r survey? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Brooks, tha t concludes my 

examination of Mr. Lehrman. We move the introduction of 

Exhibits 1 through 7, plus Exhibit 2-A. 

MR. HORNER: Your Honor, there could be an awful 

l o t of objections here. There's a good case i n hearsay 

with regard t o j u s t about a l l of these things. 

Exhibits 1 through 3, we have never seen before, 

as opposed t o being discussed i n any kind of negotiations. 
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The map t h a t they're proposing t o use i s — 

again, could be objected t o , hearsay, a u t h e n t i c a t i o n 

grounds. I t ' s a supplemental map t o a map t o a survey t h a t 

was done i n 1999, and I would suppose i f we could a l s o 

admit the supplemental map from 1999 t h a t I would not 

o b j e c t t o t h a t map. 

B a s i c a l l y , most of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n I t h i n k I can 

go ahead and not obj e c t t o and allow t o come i n , being able 

t o use, w i t h the exception t h a t I would l i k e t o be able t o 

have admitted the o r i g i n a l survey p l a t from 1999 t h a t t h i s 

one t h a t they are su b m i t t i n g now i s a supplement t o . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I wouldn't a n t i c i p a t e 

t h e r e would be any d i f f i c u l t y w i t h a d m i t t i n g a p u b l i c 

r e c o r d survey p l a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have a copy t h a t Mr. Lehrman 

brought t h i s morning. I don't have e x t r a copies, but I'm 

happy t o submit i t now and mark i t , and then we can 

d u p l i c a t e i t and share i t among ourselves. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, I assume Mr. Horner was 

going t o tender — Are you going t o tender something i n 

evidence? 

MR. HORNER: I have a copy of the 1999 survey 

p l a t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. 

MR. HORNER: Of course, I don't have i t c e r t i f i e d 
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e i t h e r — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e l l — 

MR. HORNER: — and t h e r e f o r e , i f we can reach an 

agreement t h a t both of them can be admitted as they are, 

t h a t would be f i n e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have no o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We don't preserve the n i c e t i e s 

of the r u l e s of evidence too c l o s e l y i n a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

hearings as a r u l e , so t h i n g s l i k e t e c h n i c a l i t i e s of 

c e r t i f i c a t i o n s and seals, e t cetera, are o f t e n passed over. 

I w i l l admit E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 w i t h t h e 

understanding t h a t Mr. Horner can submit a copy of the 1999 

survey as an e x h i b i t , or Mr. K e l l a h i n can, and i f there's 

any controversy about a u t h e n t i c i t y , t h a t should be brought 

t o our a t t e n t i o n l a t e r , but w e ' l l assume t h e r e i s none 

unless — 

MR. KELLAHIN: This i s the one I want. Let me 

show Mr. Horner what I t h i n k i s the map he was r e f e r r i n g 

t o . I s t h i s the one? 

MR. HORNER: This i s Dependendent Resurvey, 1999. 

That's r i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We'd l i k e t o mark t h i s as E x h i b i t 

2-B. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Again, Mr. Examiner, i f y o u ' l l 
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a l l o w me a f t e r the hearing t o t e m p o r a r i l y withdraw those 

two e x h i b i t s , w e ' l l make hard copies f o r everybody. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: That w i l l be acceptable. 

MR. HORNER: We could leave those copies, t o o , 

Tom. I can get another one i n Farmington, i f you want t o 

do t h a t . That way i t won't be a l l taped up and — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Are you passing the witness? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Horner? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Yes, Mr. Lehrman, okay, E x h i b i t s Number 1, 2 and 

3, you have not shown e i t h e r — or any of those e x h i b i t s t o 

e i t h e r myself or Ms. Fischer before, have you? 

A. No. 

Q. And d i d you prepare these maps on E x h i b i t Number 

1 and Number 2? 

A. With — Ann Jones prepared them i n our o f f i c e . I 

was i n v o l v e d i n i t too. 

Q. Okay. Now then, i n none of these E x h i b i t s 1 

through 3 i s th e r e any i n d i c a t i o n of Ms. Fischer's 

i n t e r e s t s r e l a t i v e t o the t o t a l p o o l . And I n o t i c e i n the 

A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t has been f i l e d w i t h the OCD i n t h i s 

matter, t h e r e also i s no i n d i c a t i o n of Ms. Fischer's t o t a l 

i n t e r e s t t o the t o t a l pool. I t ' s b a s i c a l l y a p o o l i n g p l a n ; 
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i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, E x h i b i t Number 2 does d e p i c t t h a t a t the 

bottom, w i t h the acreage i n each spacing u n i t w i t h her net 

acreage. 

Q. Okay, i t doesn't show her acreage, does i t ? 

A. Well, she's the only unleased min e r a l owner i n 

t h i s p o o l , so her — I t says "Unleased min e r a l i n t e r e s t t o 

be f o r c e pooled", i s Ms. Fischer i n E x h i b i t Number 2. 

Q. But i t doesn't show her net acreage? 

A. But i t does a t the top i n the very corner, i t 

says 17.755. 

Q. On E x h i b i t 2? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Oh, t h e r e i t i s . 

A. Up i n the r i g h t - h a n d corner. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, the 17.755, where d i d you get 

t h a t number? 

A. I t ' s b a s i c a l l y h a l f of the acreage t h a t we f e e l 

i s encompassed by Lot 1. 

Q. And why do you f e e l t h a t i t ' s encompassed — t h a t 

t h a t ' s the case? 

A. Well, we took the numbers t h a t we a r r i v e d from 

the surveys and the r o y a l t y agreement w i t h the BLM and 

s p l i t i t i n h a l f , because she has an undivided 50-percent 

i n t e r e s t i n t h a t t r a c t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

34 

MR. HORNER: I haven't had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o mark 

these. I f I could — as e x h i b i t s . I f I could maybe mark 

the top one as E x h i b i t A as I go and everybody could mark 

i t accordingly? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) I have marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n 

as Fischer E x h i b i t A a warranty deed. Would you t e l l us 

who t h a t warranty deed i s from and to? 

A. The warranty deed i s from Norman A. King and 

R i l l a E. King, h i s w i f e , t o O.G. Fischer and E l i z a b e t h 

Fischer, h i s w i f e , as j o i n t tenants. 

Q. And have you seen t h i s deed before? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Okay. And i n t h i s deed i s t h e r e an i n d i c a t i o n of 

how much land was deeded t o the Fischers a t t h i s time? 

What i s the date on the deed? 

A. 2-24-65, i t looks l i k e . 

Q. Okay, and i s there an i n d i c a t i o n of how much land 

was deeded t o the Fischers a t t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about Lot 1, s p e c i f i c a l l y ? 

Q. I'm t a l k i n g about the t o t a l amount of acreage. 

A. I don't see a grand t o t a l . I see a t o t a l f o r 

whatever's i n Section 11, and I see a t o t a l f o r Lot 11. 

Q. Okay, what do you see? 

A. I t says Section 11 contains 6.12 acres, more or 
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l e s s , and also a l l of Lot 1 c o n t a i n i n g 45.47 acres, more or 

l e s s . 

Q. Okay. Now, you have reviewed the chain of t i t l e 

i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case w i t h regard t o t h i s property? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And i n f a c t , t h i s d e s c r i p t i o n t h a t you're l o o k i n g 

a t here and these acreages are c o n s i s t e n t throughout t he 

chain of t i t l e , c orrect? 

A. I'm so r r y , could you repeat the question? 

Q. Okay, throughout the chain of t i t l e t he deed from 

the Kings t o the Fischers, from the Fischers t o Dome, from 

Dome t o Mary Fischer, t h i s l e g a l d e s c r i p t i o n and these 

acreages are c o n s i s t e n t , are they not? 

A. I b e l i e v e they are. 

Q. Okay. So c o n s i s t e n t l y through the chain of 

t i t l e , you're seeing Lot 1 i n Section 14, Township 29, 

Range 14 West, c o n t a i n i n g 45.47 acres, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And somehow you have decided, then, t o use a 

d i f f e r e n t number f o r the acreage w i t h regard t o t h i s 

p r o p e r t y ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, l e t ' s look a t how you came up w i t h your 

d i f f e r e n t acreage. So now, how d i d you come up w i t h your 

d i f f e r e n t acreage? 
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2000, 2001, as c e r t i f i e d . 

Q. And how d i d you do th a t ? 

A. You mean me personally? 

Q. How d i d you a r r i v e a t your new numbers? 

A. We came up w i t h the c a l c u l a t i o n s based on the 

survey. 

Q. How d i d you go about doing t h a t ? I mean, you 

look a t Lot Number 1 on a document you have shown as 

E x h i b i t 2-A, and the r e i s no acreage l i s t e d . 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So how d i d you come up w i t h an acreage f o r Lot 

A. We used the survey p l a t . 

Q. Well, there i s no acreage l i s t e d as Lot 1, f o r 

Lot 1. 

A. That's c o r r e c t , there's not. 

Q. Then how d i d you come up w i t h an acreage? 

A. We used the c a l c u l a t i o n s on the survey p l a t . 

Q. What c a l c u l a t i o n s on the survey p l a t ? 

A. Well, there's c a l c u l a t i o n s as f a r as the other 

l o t s , what some of the accreted acreage was... 

Q. Could you — You're not e x p l a i n i n g how you 

a r r i v e d a t whatever numbers you used, r a t h e r than 45.47 

acres, which i s — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, i t might help — We 
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have a copy of t h i s e x h i b i t t h a t ' s got the c a l c u l a t i o n s 

done on i t . I f t h a t w i l l help everybody, we can get t h i s 

d u p l i c a t e d . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Were these the c a l c u l a t i o n s 

t h a t the witness made? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k they — 

THE WITNESS: No, they were c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t 

were made by the BLM. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Well, I ' l l l e t — Mr. 

Horner has got the witness now, so he can decide whether he 

wants t o l e t the witness r e f e r t o a d d i t i o n a l m a t e r i a l s or 

not f o r the purposes of h i s examination, and then I ' l l make 

the d e c i s i o n f o r purposes of my examination. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Okay. Well, i n f a c t , i t says 

f o r Lot 1 — I t l i s t s no acreage a t a l l , does i t ? 

A. No, i t does not. 

Q. Okay. And on the map — I don't know i f you have 

i t i n f r o n t of you. You'd b e t t e r get i t i n f r o n t of you, 

the 1999 survey, the Dependent Resurvey and Su b d i v i s i o n of 

Section t h a t has now been introduced as Ap p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t 

Number 2-B, I be l i e v e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: And what's the date of t h a t one, 

Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: I t ' s September 29th, 1999. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay. 
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MR. HORNER: Okay, l e t me give you my copy — I f 

I may approach the witness? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) For the record, would you 

i d e n t i f y what you're l o o k i n g a t here? 

A. I t ' s a survey of Section 14, 29 North, 14 West, 

San Juan County, New Mexico, Dependent Survey and 

Subd i v i s i o n of Section. 

Q. That would be Dependent Resurvey and Sub d i v i s i o n 

of Section? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. So we're l o o k i n g a t Section 14. This i s 

the s e c t i o n of i n t e r e s t here. Do you f i n d a Lot 1 on t h a t 

map? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. On Lot 1, i s there i n d i c a t e d any acreage 

f o r Lot 1? 

A. No. 

Q. How about Lot 9? I s the r e — Do you f i n d Lot 9, 

immediately t o the l e f t — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t o the west? 

Okay, i s there an acreage i n d i c a t e d there? 

A. I'm assuming t h i s i s the acreage, 23.41. 

Q. Okay, and do you f i n d a Lot 15? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, what i s the acreage i n d i c a t e d there? 

A. 14.27. 

Q. Okay. And do you see two l i n e s i n d i c a t i n g 

meanders f o r the San Juan River? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And so i n the east h a l f of the northeast q u a r t e r 

of Section 14, between those two meander l i n e s , do you see 

any i n d i c a t i o n of acreage? 

A. I'm not r e a l l y sure I'm f o l l o w i n g what your 

question i s . 

Q. Okay, between the two meander l i n e s — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — i n the east h a l f of the northeast q u a r t e r of 

Section 14, do you see any i n d i c a t i o n of acreage? 

A. No. 

Q. Do you see any i n d i c a t i o n of the l o t number? 

A. You mean r i g h t here? 

Q. Right, i n between the two meander l i n e s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. On the r i g h t side of the p l a t t h e r e i s 

some i n d i c a t i o n s of why t h i s p l a t was prepared. Would you 

please read t h a t i n t o the record? 

A. This? 

Q. Right. 
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A. I t says, A h i s t o r y of surveys and a d d i t i o n a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n are contained i n the f i e l d notes. This p l a t 

represents the dependent resurvey of a p o r t i o n of the 

s u b d i v i s i o n a l l i n e s and the adjusted record meanders of the 

1881 r i g h t and l e f t banks of the San Juan River, designed 

t o r e s t o r e the corners i n t h e i r t r u e o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n s , 

according t o the best a v a i l a b l e evidence, and the 

s u b d i v i s i o n of Section 14, 29-14, NMPM New Mexico. Except 

as i n d i c a t e d hereon, the l o t t i n g s and areas are as shown on 

the p l a t , approved 8-31-1882. 

Q. Okay, t h a t ' s what I'm now i n t e r e s t e d i n . That 

i n d i c a t e s t h a t except as i n d i c a t e d hereon, the l o t t i n g s and 

areas are as shown on the p l a t , approved August 31, 1882. 

So t h a t ' s i n d i c a t i n g where — such as Lot 1, where t h e r e i s 

no i n d i c a t i o n t h a t the acreage has changed, t h e r e i s no 

c o n t e n t i o n whatsoever by t h i s survey t o change t h a t 

acreage; i s n ' t t h a t correct? 

A. I t says, Except as i n d i c a t e d hereon, the l o t t i n g s 

and areas are as shown on the p l a t , approved 8-31-1882. 

Q. Okay. And i s there any i n d i c a t i o n i n Lot 1 t h a t 

t h a t acreage has been changed? 

A. No. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i s t h e r e any i n d i c a t i o n between 

the two meander l i n e s below Lot 1 t h a t t h a t acreage has 

changed? 
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A. No, not on t h i s p l a t . 

Q. Okay. But yet you decided t o change the acreage 

of Lot 1? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I ' l l o b j e c t , t h a t ' s a 

m i s c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n of the witness's testimony. He s a i d 

t h e BLM had changed t h i s , not he. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, i t ' s a lso argumentative. 

I ' l l s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. HORNER: I mean, t o any extent t h a t the BLM 

has s t a t e d t h i s , I ob j e c t on hearsay grounds, because the 

BLM has not s t a t e d t h a t . 

THE WITNESS: Well --

MR. HORNER: This i s the p l a t — 

THE WITNESS: — yeah, but you have t o 

understand, t h i s i s — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, please, please — I 

sustained the o b j e c t i o n t o the question as asked, so 

there's no question before you t o answer a t t h i s p o i n t . 

You may rephrase the question i f you wish t o . 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Okay. I n f a c t , t h e r e i s no 

i n d i c a t i o n on t h i s map prepared by the BLM t h a t they had 

any i n d i c a t i o n or any i n t e n t i o n of changing the acreage i n 

Lot 1 pursuant t o t h i s survey; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't t h i n k I'm q u a l i f i e d t o answer t h a t 

q u e s t i o n . 
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Q. Well, you f e l t y o u r s e l f q u a l i f i e d on your own t o 

change the acreage of Lot 1, d i d you not? 

A. Well, but you have t o understand, Mr. Horner, 

t h a t t h i s p l a t and the supplemental s o r t of go t o g e t h e r , 

along w i t h the c a l c u l a t i o n s beyond what's on t h i s p l a t . 

Q. Okay, on t h i s p l a t and the supplemental p l a t , can 

you f i n d where the BLM has attempted t o change the acreage 

of Lot 1? 

A. I can show you the c a l c u l a t i o n s on t h a t 

supplemental p l a t . 

Q. The BLM d i d not do those c a l c u l a t i o n s on the 

supplemental p l a t , d i d they? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. Well, not where they came up w i t h the acreage f o r 

Lot 1? 

A. I d i d n ' t do those, Don Brewer d i d those. 

Q. There's a copy of your supplemental p l a t . Where 

does i t i n d i c a t e on your supplemental p l a t an acreage f o r 

Lot 1 anywhere i n the neighborhood of 3 3 acres? 

A. I b e l i e v e the c a l c u l a t i o n s are on t h a t one map 

t h a t we have over here. I don't know where i t i s now, I'm 

confused. But the c a l c u l a t i o n s on t h a t p l a t were done by 

the c a d a s t r a l surveyors of the BLM, they were not done by 

me. Those numbers are c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t the BLM d i d . 

Q. Do you see any i n d i c a t i o n on t h a t map of an 
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acreage f o r Lot 1? 

A. No, you've asked t h a t question before, there's no 

i n d i c a t i o n of any l o t s i z e . But t h a t doesn't preclude the 

f a c t t h a t t h e r e may be a l o t s i z e f o r t h a t l o t , j u s t 

because i t doesn 1t show up on the map. 

Q. Well, i n f a c t , t h i s dependent resurvey, t he 

E x h i b i t 2-B, i n d i c a t e s t h a t except as i n d i c a t e d hereon, the 

l o t t i n g and the areas are as shown on the p l a t — something 

— of August 31, 1882. So those acreages have not changed 

s p e c i f i c a l l y , pursuant t o what i s w r i t t e n on t h i s p l a t , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. I've given my testimony, there's no l o t acreages, 

you know, f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o t except on the a d d i t i o n a l 

supplemental p l a t , those c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t were done by the 

BLM. 

Q. Well, on the supplemental p l a t a l s o , t h e r e i s no 

i n d i c a t i o n of an acreage — 

A. That's — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Objection, Mr. Examiner. Mr. 

Horner has asked the same question t h r e e times. His answer 

i s , t h ey're not c a l c u l a t e d on the p l a t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I ' l l s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: What more does he want? 

MR. HORNER: I haven't got t h a t answer y e t , but 

t h a t ' s f i n e . Thank you very much. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Well, take i t w i t h you. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Now then, i t i s c l e a r from your 

searches so f a r t h a t i n f a c t Mary Fischer owns the e n t i r e 

surface of Lot 1; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That appears t o be c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t somewhere along the l i n e , apparently 

h a l f of the minerals were deeded t o somebody else? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I have here a document I've marked as 

Fischer E x h i b i t B, and again I haven't marked yours as 

E x h i b i t B, but i f you want t o . . . 

And what's the t i t l e of t h i s document? 

A. Compensatory Royalty Agreement. 

Q. And who i s t h i s agreement between? 

A. I t ' s between the United States of America and 

Richardson Production Company. 

Q. Now, i s t h i s the document t h a t you were t a l k i n g 

about e a r l i e r ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Now then, attached t o t h i s document i s an 

E x h i b i t "A"; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And E x h i b i t "A" shows a Tract I , Lot 1, and what 

i s the acreage under t h a t ? 

A. 33.14. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

45 

Q. And i s t h a t intended t o be Lot 1, the l o t t h a t i s 

owned by Ms. Fischer? 

A. I would say yes. 

Q. And what i s the source of t h i s E x h i b i t "A", do 

you know? 

A. You mean the source of the information? 

Q. Yes, who prepared E x h i b i t "A"? 

A. Bureau of Land Management. 

Q. Now then, what i s the p o i n t of t h i s document? 

A. What i s the point? 

Q. Yes, what i s going on i n t h i s document? Why was 

t h i s agreement made? 

A. There was a small t r a c t of BLM land t h a t was 

unleased and unleasable, and i t ' s the k i n d of agreement 

t h a t ' s done on a r e g u l a r basis between proposed operators 

and the BLM t o b a s i c a l l y pool t h a t small acreage, proposed 

spacing u n i t , w i t h o u t going through the hassle of l e a s i n g 

i t and a l l t h a t k i n d of s t u f f . 

Q. Okay, so the t r a c t of land t h a t we're here 

t a l k i n g about i s a c t u a l l y 2.24 acres, i s i t not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So t h i s e n t i r e agreement i s about a piece of land 

of 2.24 acres. On your supplemental p l a t , marked as 

A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t 2-A, can you f i n d the 2.24 acres t h a t 

i s the s u b j e c t of t h i s agreement? 
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A. Yeah, i t ' s i n the northwest of the n o r t h e a s t of 

Section 14. 

Q. Okay, and could you — I n f a c t , i t i s the land 

l y i n g between t h e i r newly r e v i s e d median l i n e of the San 

Juan River and t h e i r newly determined n o r t h boundary of the 

San Juan River, i s i t not, i n the west h a l f of the 

northeast quarter? 

A. Say t h a t again? 

Q. Okay, i t i s the piece of p r o p e r t y t h a t l i e s n o r t h 

of the median l i n e and south of the n o r t h bank of the San 

Juan River, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah, t h a t appears t o be c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And j u s t t h a t p o r t i o n i n the west h a l f of 

the northeast q u a r t e r of Section 14? 

A. Say t h a t again? I n the where? 

Q. I n the west h a l f of the northeast quarter? 

A. Okay. Yeah, northwest northeast, yeah, okay. 

Q. Okay. Now, i n f a c t , then, t h i s Lot 1 i s shown 

over here i n the east h a l f of the northeast q u a r t e r , so 

t h i s 2.2 4 acres has nothing t o do w i t h Lot 1 or Ms. 

Fischer's p r o p e r t y a t a l l , does i t ? 

A. No. 

Q. So the compensatory agreement here t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about, Compensatory Royalty Agreement, has n o t h i n g 

t o do w i t h Ms. Fischer's property? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. NO. 

Q. And so somehow, though, there's an E x h i b i t "A" 

attached hereto t h a t has some s o r t of i n d i c a t i o n of 33.14 

acres f o r Lot 1 t h a t somehow got picked up by y o u r s e l f or 

somebody t o be used as her acreage; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah, t h a t ' s a good assumption. I d i d n ' t prepare 

the e x h i b i t , so — I t was prepared by the BLM. 

Q. Well, but the documents t h a t you've sent t o her, 

or t h a t have been sent t o her, i n d i c a t i n g t h a t Lot 1 was 

33.14 acres came from t h i s document, d i d they not? 

A. We got our f i g u r e s from the 33.14 plu s the 2.37. 

I b e l i e v e t h a t comes up t o the 3 5-plus acres, p l u s the 50 

percent would equal the 17.55 which i s depicted on the 

e a r l i e r e x h i b i t s . 

Q. 33-point — What was i t ? What was your other 

number you added i n there? 33.14 plus what? 

A. 2.37, which would be t o the mid-channel of the 

r i v e r . 

Q. Where do you get t h a t number, 2.3 7? 

A. On Tract Number I I , n o r t h of the mid-channel of 

the San Juan River, w i t h i n the east h a l f of the nort h e a s t . 

Q. Okay, t h i s i s o f f of E x h i b i t A? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, and so now t h a t would give you 35.51 acres 

or something l i k e t h a t ? 
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A. Yeah, I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. On Applicant's E x h i b i t Number 4, attached 

t o A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t Number 4 i s an a u t h o r i t y f o r 

expenditure, corre c t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Commonly r e f e r r e d t o as an AFE? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And a t the bottom of t h i s AFE are some c a l c u l a t e d 

c osts, t o t a l cost f o r the w e l l and costs associated w i t h 

each fo r m a t i o n , f o r Ms. Fischer; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And — Now, i s n ' t i t normally the case t h a t when 

you submit somebody an a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure t h a t 

you're l o o k i n g f o r some s o r t of u p - f r o n t cost p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

i n a w e l l ? 

A. Well, we're g i v i n g an owner several o p t i o n s , 

based on the c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r . I mean, we have t o gi v e a l l 

t h e o p t i o n s , o p t i o n t o lease, o p t i o n t o s e l l t h e i r 

m inerals, o p t i o n t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. But by t h i s document and the cover l e t t e r 

t h a t goes w i t h i t , you are g i v i n g Ms. Fischer an o p t i o n t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e by c o n t r i b u t i n g these funds i n d i c a t e d here, up 

f r o n t i n the p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the w e l l ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now then, I would r e f e r you t o the f r o n t 
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page of t h i s document. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay, would you please read paragraph 2? 

A. "Enclosed f o r your review i s an AFE i t e m i z i n g the 

estimated costs f o r the w e l l . I n the event you wish t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s d r i l l i n g and completion attempt, please 

r e t u r n an executed copy of the AFE t o the undersigned by 

J u l y 17, 2001. Upon r e c e i p t of your executed AFE, or by 

p r i o r w r i t t e n request, we w i l l forward an AAPL Form 610 

J o i n t Operating Agreement f o r your review and execution, 

p r o v i d i n g f o r , among other t h i n g s , a 300%/100% nonconsent 

p e n a l t y and $5000...$500...overhead r a t e s . " 

Q. Okay. And so what you have o f f e r e d t o her, then, 

i s t he o p t i o n of p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h i s w e l l by paying up 

f r o n t these p a r t i c u l a r costs, a t which time you s a i d upon 

r e c e i p t of her signed i n d i c a t i o n t h a t — of her executed 

AFE, you w i l l forward her another form f o r her review and 

execution p r o v i d i n g f o r , among other t h i n g s , a 300-percent/ 

100-percent nonconsent penalty. 

I s t h a t f a i r , i n your mind, where somebody agrees 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e up f r o n t and you charge them a 300-percent/ 

100-percent nonconsent penalty? 

A. There are c e r t a i n terms t h a t are commensurate i n 

the i n d u s t r y , and t h i s i s one of them. 

Q. So when you deal w i t h Dugan Production on t h i s 
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p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , who has c e r t a i n leases i n t h i s area, and 

you t a l k t o Dugan Production about p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h i s 

w e l l , and you want them t o u p - f r o n t the cost of the w e l l , 

or a t l e a s t pay the costs as the costs are i n c u r r e d , as the 

b i l l s are received, do you i n t e n d t o charge them, or do you 

charge them a nonconsent penalty of 3 00/100 percent? 

A. A l l I can say, Mr. Horner, these are p r e t t y 

commensurate terms i n the i n d u s t r y . But the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement i s a p r e t t y lengthy document, and there's other 

t h i n g s t h a t go on i n the operation of a w e l l besides j u s t 

t he i n i t i a l costs. There's reworking, there's other t h i n g s 

i n the document. You'd have t o read the whole o p e r a t i n g 

agreement y o u r s e l f . These are nonconsent p e n a l t i e s f o r not 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n c e r t a i n items a f t e r you agree t o j o i n i n 

on the w e l l . 

I don't have an operating agreement w i t h you, but 

I ' d be happy t o s i t down and e x p l a i n a l l t h a t t o you. This 

i s j u s t k i n d of a general paragraph. I t doesn't o u t l i n e 

every term i n the agreement. That would be o u t l i n e d t o her 

i f she wished t o p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. But what you have o f f e r e d her, though, i s the 

a b i l i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e by paying up f r o n t her share of the 

w e l l , p l u s another 300 percent, or b a s i c a l l y 400 percent of 

her p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the cost, i n order t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s w e ll? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Objection, Mr. Examiner. Mr. 

Horner i s m i s c h a r a c t e r i z i n g the statement i n t h i s document. 

I f he knew something about o i l and gas, he'd recognize h i s 

statement i s wrong, h i s question i s wrong. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I t h i n k t h a t may p o s s i b l y 

be the case, but the question i s addressed t o th e witness. 

The witness i s welcome t o answer i t . I w i l l o v e r r u l e the 

o b j e c t i o n . 

THE WITNESS: A l l I can say i s , my answer i s , 

you'd have t o look a t the complete o p e r a t i n g agreement and 

look a t the p r o v i s i o n s t h a t are provided f o r w i t h t h i s 

3 00/100-percent nonconsent penalty. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Did you provide her a copy of 

t h a t agreement, or proposed agreement? 

A. My understanding i s , she never r e t u r n e d t he 

signed AFE. 

Q. So by reading t h i s document, you can expect Ms. 

Fischer t o expect t h a t what you have o f f e r e d her i s t o have 

t o pay, p o s s i b l y up f r o n t , 400 percent of her p r o p o r t i o n a t e 

share of the cost t o d r i l l t h i s w e ll? 

A. No, t h a t ' s not what i t says. That's not what i t 

says. These are terms t h a t are commensurate i n the 

i n d u s t r y . You'd have t o read the o p e r a t i n g agreement. She 

was made the o f f e r , she's f r e e t o c a l l Richardson Operating 

or anybody el s e . We'd be happy t o s i t down and e x p l a i n 
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e v e r y t h i n g i n the whole agreement w i t h her. 

She's never made an o p t i o n , she never agreed t o 

anything. These terms are o f f e r e d t o everybody f o r every 

w e l l we d r i l l — 

Q. Okay, now — 

A. — i n c l u d i n g — i n c l u d i n g , i f I could j u s t 

f i n i s h , i n c l u d i n g Dugan Production, B u r l i n g t o n or any other 

operator t h a t has an i n t e r e s t t h a t wants t o j o i n i n our 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay, f o r instance, Dugan Production. When you 

o f f e r them the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s w e l l , you 

are o f f e r i n g them the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e by paying 

up f r o n t , or a t l e a s t as costs are i n c u r r e d , t h e i r 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the cost; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you tack on any k i n d of nonconsent p e n a l t y f o r 

them t o p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You do? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s what I'm t r y i n g t o e x p l a i n t o you. 

The o p e r a t i n g agreement has p r o v i s i o n s t h e r e f o r other 

items not r e l a t e d t o j u s t the j o i n i n g of the w e l l . Those 

are AFE costs j u s t f o r the d r i l l i n g and completion of the 

w e l l . A f t e r t h a t happens there's other costs t h a t could be 

i n c u r r e d . You could have problems f u r t h e r on past t he 
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completion p o i n t . A company could say, I don't want t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n those a c t i o n s , and I'm going t o i n c u r a 

c e r t a i n p e n a l t y , and t h a t ' s where these p r o v i s i o n s come i n . 

The AFE costs are merely her costs t o d r i l l the 

w e l l . And t h a t ' s what we ask her t o do. Would you l i k e t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s w e l l f o r X number of d o l l a r s , would you 

l i k e t o lease, would you l i k e t o s e l l ? I don't know of any 

other options a v a i l a b l e . 

Q. Okay. Now then, i n your A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t 

Number 5, the l e t t e r dated November 16th, 2001, again t o 

Ms. Fischer — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — t h a t e s s e n t i a l l y has the same terms as the 

l e t t e r we were j u s t discussing, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , appears t o be so. 

MR. HORNER: Okay. I have no f u r t h e r questions 

of t h i s witness a t t h i s time. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. 

Redirect, Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have two items. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May I show the witness E x h i b i t 

Number 2-A? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: 2-A? 

MR. KELLAHIN: 2-A i s the map. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: That's t h i s . Okay, you may. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Lehrman, Mr. Horner asked you t o read the 

legend o f f of 2-B. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's look a t 2-A, which i s the BLM supplemental 

p l a t f o r t h i s area. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I n which d i r e c t i o n i s the r i v e r b e d of the San 

Juan River migrating? 

A. North. 

Q. When you look a t the resurvey c a p t i o n , what does 

i t say? 

A. I t says, "This supplemental p l a t showing the 

c a l c u l a t e d N. and S. Center Line i n the NW 1/4, the 

c a l c u l a t e d 2000 medial l i n e of the main channel of the San 

Juan River..." I t goes on t o d e p i c t the l o t s and the 

s e c t i o n , township and range. 

Q. Have you attempted, Mr. Lehrman, t o re s o l v e t he 

dis p u t e between the BLM and Ms. Fischer over the acreage 

contained i n Lot 1? 

MR. HORNER: Objection, your Honor. That assumes 

f a c t s not i n evidence, t h a t there i s a dis p u t e between the 

BLM and Ms. Fischer. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: With t h a t q u a l i f i c a t i o n I ' l l 

o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Have you attempted t o re s o l v e 

the d i f f e r e n c e i n what the BLM i s t e l l i n g you i s the l o t 

acreage i n Tract I ? 

A. I don't f e e l i t ' s up t o Richardson Operating t o 

do t h a t . 

Q. You have not t r i e d t o do th a t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Let's go back t o the questions of the AFE 

and the proposed l e t t e r . 

A. Okay. 

Q. Dugan has an i n t e r e s t . Let's t a l k about the 

Dugan i n t e r e s t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f Dugan i s given a l e t t e r i n which t h e y ' r e asked 

t o s i g n a l e t t e r of commitment t o p a r t i c i p a t e , and i f they 

execute the operating agreement as you have envisioned i t 

w i t h i n the context of t h i s type of l e t t e r , and i f Dugan 

pays i t s share, p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the cost of the w e l l 

f o r d r i l l i n g and completing, e i t h e r up f r o n t or as accrued 

and b i l l e d , they do t h a t w i t h o u t the i m p o s i t i o n of any r i s k 

f a c t o r component, don't they? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The r i s k f a c t o r penalty summarized i n t h i s l e t t e r 
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would be t r i g g e r e d i n other circumstances — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me a minute. 

You may continue. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) — would be t r i g g e r e d by 

circumstances other than those a n t i c i p a t e d as costs of 

d r i l l i n g and completing the w e l l , as o u t l i n e d on the AFE? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. For example, i f there are subsequent operations 

t o r e - e n t e r the w e l l and choose t o t e s t another zone — 

MR. HORNER: Objection, l e a d i n g , your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I'm going t o o v e r r u l e 

t h a t question once again. As I sa i d , we're much less 

formal than we are i n c o u r t , and consequently I w i l l not 

press the leading questions. 

MR. HORNER: Well — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I can get him — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay — 

THE WITNESS: Let me — Can I j u s t say something 

f o r a second? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, no, I p r e f e r i t t o be 

done by question and answer. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I can answer, maybe, both of 

your questions a t one time — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, i f you're addressing Mr. 

K e l l a h i n ' s question, you may go ahead. 
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THE WITNESS: My answer i s , t h e r e are again 

instances a f t e r the i n i t i a l w e l l i s d r i l l e d where a company 

would not be i n t e r e s t e d i n p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h a t a c t i v i t y , 

those consent p e n a l t i e s are set f o r t h i n the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement ahead of time. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I have some questions, 

and I t h i n k Mr. Stogner probably does t o o . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. F i r s t o f f , have you — You're a petroleum 

landman, c o r r e c t , Mr. Lehrman? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did you run t h i s t i t l e t o determine what i n t e r e s t 

the p r o t e s t i n g p a r t y has? 

A. We had a t i t l e a t t o r n e y do t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And i s your testimony based on the 

assumption or the conclusion, whoever came t o t h a t 

conclusion, t h a t Ms. Fischer owns only t h a t p o r t i o n o f Lot 

1 n o r t h of the San Juan River? I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That — Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now, i f you look a t Fischer E x h i b i t A, 

t h a t p u r p o r t s t o deed a l l of Lot 1, does i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So comparing Fischer E x h i b i t A w i t h the t i t l e 
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r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s t h a t I understood t h a t you were basing your 

assumptions on, then there would appear t o be p o s s i b l y some 

k i n d of t i t l e controversy between the government and Ms. 

Fischer; i s t h a t a f a i r conclusion? 

A. That's a p o s s i b i l i t y . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Am I understanding you r i g h t , though, there's not 

a controversy on the p l a t ? 

Q. Well, no, I d i d n ' t say on the p l a t . I s a i d i f 

you compare Fischer E x h i b i t A w i t h the assumption t h a t you 

are making t h a t her ownership i s only n o r t h of the San Juan 

River, t h a t would suggest or i n d i c a t e t h a t p o s s i b l y t h e r e 

could be a t i t l e controversy, and — 

A. Well, what I'm t r y i n g t o c l a r i f y by your 

statement i s , there's no i n d i c a t i o n from Richardson t h a t 

any of Lot 1 i s south of the r i v e r . Does t h a t make sense? 

The Fischer E x h i b i t A says a l l of Lot 1 — we have always 

b e l i e v e d , and I t h i n k the BLM does too, t h a t t h a t i s n o r t h 

of the r i v e r . 

Q. Well, the area south of the r i v e r i s Lot 15, and 

t h e area i n the r i v e r i s not marked as being e i t h e r , but I 

guess i t ' s outside the l o t s as they're shown on t h i s p l a t ; 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. So what you're t e l l i n g me, then, i s — and I 
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guess I misread the p l a t — what you're t e l l i n g me, then, 

i s t h a t you have t o have Lot 15, plus Lot 1, p l u s what's 

dep i c t e d as being i n the r i v e r channel t o get the east 

h a l f , northeast quarter equivalent? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s — 

Q. That does appear t o be a c o r r e c t — 

A. I'm j u s t curious, I mean, do you own any — 

Q. No, she's on the witness stand. 

A. Well, I j u s t — 

Q. Okay, w i t h t h a t i n mind, we're fo c u s i n g o n l y on 

Lot 1 and the area northeast of the r i v e r , and I assume 

t h a t probably i s a c o r r e c t reading of t h i s p l a t . 

Assuming t h a t t o be — focusing, though, o n l y on 

the area northeast of the r i v e r , now, I take i t as a 

landman you have some experience reading these p l a t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And these numbers t h a t appear along the l i n e s , 

are those numbers footages? 

A. Which p l a t are you l o o k i n g at? 

Q. I'm l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t 2-B. 

A. Are you t a l k i n g about these numbers here? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I would assume those are some k i n d of footages 

and bearings and distances. 

Q. Well, they're distances, whether they be i n f e e t 
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or i n some other type of measure. 

A. Right, I'm assuming t h a t those were put on t h e r e 

by the surveyors. 

Q. Okay. Now, i f you assume t h a t those f i g u r e s 

represent distances and t h a t the f i g u r e s such as n o r t h 49 

degrees, 23 minutes east, t h a t appears along the south l i n e 

— or the r i v e r l i n e i n Lot 1, are d i r e c t i o n s , then would 

i t not be f a i r t o say t h a t the d e t e r m i n a t i o n of the acreage 

of Lot 1 from s o l e l y the i n f o r m a t i o n appearing on E x h i b i t 

2-B would be s o l e l y a matter of working a mathematical 

formula, t h a t t h e r e would not be any room f o r any d i s p u t e 

as t o what acreage i s i n d i c a t e d by the i n f o r m a t i o n on t h i s 

survey; i s t h a t not c o r r e c t ? 

A. Well, as long as those numbers were accurate. 

Q. Well, t h a t ' s t r u e . 

A. Assuming — 

Q. That's why I s a i d as i n d i c a t e d on t h i s survey. 

Now, on the ground they might be d i f f e r e n t , and t h a t might 

r a i s e a question. But as on t h i s survey — 

A. Well, what you s a i d i s i n t e r e s t i n g because I'm 

assuming t h a t the BLM d i d a l l i t s c a l c u l a t i o n s not only by 

GPS but also put the c o r r e c t numbers on the p l a t s and 

a r r i v e d a t the c o r r e c t numbers on the p l a t s and the 

Compensatory Royalty Agreement. 

Q. Well, i f we assume t h a t the numbers are c o r r e c t , 
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then t h e r e wouldn't be any room f o r d i f f e r e n c e of o p i n i o n , 

r i g h t ? 

MR. HORNER: Objection, your Honor. We're 

g e t t i n g way beyond the e x p e r t i s e of a landman. You're 

s t a r t i n g t o t a l k about surveying. He's already i n d i c a t e d 

he doesn't know what the numbers are. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I d i d n ' t say t h a t — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, excuse me, I — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Don't argue w i t h him. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — don't want t o j u s t get i n t o 

a f r e e - f o r - a l l . Mr. Horner does have a p o i n t , t h a t t h i s i s 

r e a l l y a matter f o r a surveyor, so I w i l l abandon t h a t l i n e 

of q u e s t i o n i n g . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I have an o b j e c t i o n 

t o t h i s whole l i n e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I understand your j u r i s d i c t i o n not 

t o be one where you resolve boundaries i n t e r i o r t o the 

spacing u n i t , and i t ' s not our o b l i g a t i o n t o r e s o l v e t he 

boundary d i f f e r e n c e between what Ms. Fischer contends i s 

her acreage and what the BLM shows i n t h e i r documents t o be 

t h e i r acreage. I f t h a t ' s our r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , you need t o 

t e l l us, because we're going t o have t o go f i l e a q u i e t -

t i t l e s u i t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I do understand my 
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j u r i s d i c t i o n the same way you do. I t h i n k any relevance 

t h a t t he question of whether there's a t i t l e d i s p u t e or not 

might have t o any determination the OCD would make would be 

t h a t i f the p a r t i e s recognize the existence of a t i t l e 

d i s p u t e , perhaps, p r i o r t o a f o r c e p o o l i n g , we might 

consider t h e r e t o be some o b l i g a t i o n t o allow f o r t h a t i n 

terms of the n e g o t i a t i o n s t h a t might take place. But i f 

there's not a t i t l e d i s p ute, then t h e r e would be no 

necess i t y t o do t h a t . We would not — c e r t a i n l y not have 

any j u r i s d i c t i o n t o resolve the t i t l e d i s p u t e . 

Okay. Well, I ' l l abandon t h a t l i n e o f 

qu e s t i o n i n g . Let me be sure I have a l l the basic 

i n f o r m a t i o n here. 

Q. (By Examiner Brooks) What you're r e q u e s t i n g i s 

the p o o l i n g t o the base of P i c t u r e d C l i f f , surface t o the 

base of the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you said t h i s was the West Kutz-PC t h a t would 

be the B a s i n - F r u i t l a n d Coal? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the l o c a t i o n of the proposed w e l l i s shown 

on — 

A. — E x h i b i t 2. 

Q. — E x h i b i t 2. I s t h a t the c o r r e c t and f i n a l 

l o c a t i o n where the — This w e l l has been d r i l l e d ? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s where the w e l l i s lo c a t e d — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — as shown on E x h i b i t 2? 

Okay. Now, has the BLM consented t o t h i s f o r c e 

p o o l i n g proceeding? 

A. They don't normally do t h a t . 

Q. Have they been n o t i f i e d ? I assume they have 

been, have they not? 

A. I b e l i e v e they have been. I'm not aware t h a t the 

BLM i s ever i n v o l v e d i n a f o r c e p o o l i n g . I t ' s u s u a l l y 

between the companies or unleased mineral owners. We have 

the other i n t e r e s t s e i t h e r t i e d up v i a c o n t r a c t s w i t h Dugan 

or v i a lease. 

Q. But the w e l l i s on the Navajos' land, so — 

A. True. 

Q. — f o r c e p o o l i n g w i l l have the e f f e c t of d i l u t i n g 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o some degree. I t looks l i k e i t would be 

under the r u l e of capture, c o r r e c t ? 

A. (No response) 

Q. Well, you don't know i f they've been i n v o l v e d i n 

t h i s a t a l l ? 

A. The BLM? 

Q. The BLM. 

A. Not t o my knowledge, they haven't been, no. 
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Q. Very good. 

A. Except v i a the Compensatory Royalty Agreement. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. I t h i n k t h a t Mr. 

Stogner may have some questions, so I w i l l d efer t o him. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Okay, I had some questions around the surveys, 

and I ' l l abandon those too. 

However, I'm going t o r e f e r t o E x h i b i t Number 1. 

On t h e east h a l f of Section 14 the r e are two green marks, 

and the one up i n the northeast corner, t h a t ' s t he proposed 

w e l l t h a t we're t a l k i n g about today; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Let's go t o t h a t green w e l l t o the 

southeast q u a r t e r , and I'm sor r y , I can't read t h a t . I t 

looks l i k e a Navajo 14 w e l l — 

A. I can't e i t h e r . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t w e l l ? I s t h a t a 

Richardson w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, what zone i s i t producing from 

c u r r e n t l y ? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t ' s P i c t u r e d C l i f f s . 

Q. P i c t u r e d C l i f f s . That would be 160-acre spacing? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Okay. Now, then, l e t ' s go back up i n t o the 

northeast corner. 

A. Okay. 

Q. You have a couple of o l d w e l l s , two o l d w e l l s 

d e p i c t e d , an NM Federal Number 1 — I'm s o r r y , and NM 

Federal — 

A. — Number 5. 

Q. — Number 5, and t h a t ' s up i n the northwest of 

the northeast quarter? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And then you've got another one. Are these o l d 

plugged and abandoned wells? 

A. Yes, I be l i e v e they are P-and-A'd. 

Q. Okay. Were those operated by somebody e l s e , or 

d i d Richardson ever have those wells? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. Okay. Now, d i d you take an o p p o r t u n i t y t o look 

a t t h e spacing u n i t s f o r those w e l l s when they were 

p r o d u c t i v e and how those r o y a l t i e s were shared? 

A. No, we d i d not. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. I guess I have no other 

questions. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Well, I d i d want t o — may have abandoned the 
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survey questions a l i t t l e b i t too soon, because I d i d n ' t 

get t o the question t h a t probably i s the one t h a t matters. 

Has there been any discussion between you and Ms. 

Fischer, or between Richardson and Ms. Fischer or her 

counsel concerning the p o s s i b i l i t y of any di s p u t e as t o the 

ext e n t of her i n t e r e s t i n t h i s u n i t , as opposed t o what 

she's going t o do w i t h i t ? 

A. I guess I don't f u l l y understand your question. 

Q. Well, i f I understood Mr. Horner's l i n e of 

que s t i o n i n g , i t seemed t o me t o i n d i c a t e a di s p u t e as t o 

how much i n t e r e s t she owned i n t h i s u n i t , and Mr. K e l l a h i n 

i s q u i t e c o r r e c t , i f there i s such a d i s p u t e , we don't have 

j u r i s d i c t i o n r e s o l v i n g i t . But the question t h a t I have 

f o r you i s , have there been any n e g o t i a t i o n s about the 

percentage i n t e r e s t t h a t Ms. Fischer i s e n t i t l e d t o , versus 

whether she's going t o lease or s e l l or p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. No. 

Q. Thank you. Oh, one other t h i n g , I keep 

f o r g e t t i n g . I assume t h a t , as i n most Richardson 

a p p l i c a t i o n s , you are requesting t h a t Richardson Operating 

Company be named operator of t h i s u n i t and we l l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, thank you. Anything 

f u r t h e r , Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may proceed. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Let's see, j u s t before I lose t h i s one, w i t h 

regard t o the questions about discussions between 

Richardson and myself or Ms. Fischer on t h i s acreage 

business, i n f a c t , t h a t was the f i r s t q uestion t h a t came up 

on Monday, was i t not, where d i d you come up w i t h t he 17 

acres as opposed t o what we understood t o be 45 acres? 

That was the f i r s t question t h a t came up Monday, was i t 

not? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was. 

Q. And Monday i s the f i r s t time t h a t t h e r e has been 

any discussions a t a l l , other than the l e t t e r t h a t was sent 

t o her J u l y 31st inf o r m i n g her of t h i s proceeding, and 

p o s s i b l y a June 6th, 2001, l e t t e r , c o r r e c t ? So Monday was 

the f i r s t time t h e r e have been any discussions a t a l l ? 

A. I n person? 

Q. Of any k i n d . 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And so the f i r s t q uestion t h a t came up i s , 

where d i d you come up w i t h those acreages, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And i n the course of those discussions, you 

i n s i s t e d on standing on those acreages or something very 

close t o them; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And yesterday i n our proposal, we proposed 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n based on the 45-something-or-other acres, d i d 

we not? 

A. I don't r e c a l l the acreage being mentioned. The 

proposal I remember hearing i s t h a t you wanted t o be 

c a r r i e d w i t h the a d d i t i o n a l r o y a l t y thrown i n t h e r e , which 

i s j u s t not done i n the i n d u s t r y . There's no reason why a 

company should c a r r y the unleased mineral owner. 

MR. HORNER: Objection, unresponsive, your Honor. 

THE WITNESS: I'm — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Beyond the f a c t t h a t he only 

r e c a l l s i t being a c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t o f f e r , t he r e s t of i t I 

su s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Okay. So th e r e has been 

discussions w i t h regard t o the acreage i n the l a s t t h r e e 

days? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Which i s the only time there's been any 

discussions? 

A. Yes, t h a t I've been in v o l v e d i n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now then, you t a l k e d about an 
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a t t o r n e y o p i n i o n w i t h regard t o the t i t l e . 

Now then, the a t t o r n e y o p i n i o n w i t h regard t o the 

t i t l e , d i d t h a t give you any i n d i c a t i o n of the acreage 

owned by Ms. Fischer i n Section 14? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t d i d . 

Q. And what d i d t h a t i n d i c a t e ? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t coincided w i t h the BLM p l a t t h a t we 

had. 

Q. And so you b e l i e v e but you don't know t h a t . Did 

you b r i n g t h a t t i t l e o p i n i o n w i t h you? 

A. I don't know i f I have t h a t or not. Let me j u s t 

f i n i s h something. You know, a t i t l e a t t o r n e y — F i r s t of 

a l l , t h e r e seems t o be two t h i n g s going on here. A l o t of 

people are mentioning t i t l e versus the acreage. The t i t l e 

i s not i n d i s p u t e , okay, the t i t l e t o the p r o p e r t y . Ms. 

Fischer owns an undivided 50-percent i n t e r e s t i n Lot 1, 

whatever t h a t acreage i s . 

Q. Minerals? 

A. Minerals, and surface. 

Q. No, she owns 100-percent of the surface, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Okay, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . Excuse me, I'm s o r r y . 

Anyway, t h a t ' s the t i t l e end of i t . Everyone keeps saying 

t i t l e . That's i n c o r r e c t . 

The acreage dispute i s something separate. But 

what you j u s t asked me i s , the t i t l e a t t o r n e y i s going t o 
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go and use a l l of h i s a v a i l a b l e means t o determine h i s 

o p i n i o n as t o the t i t l e f o r t h i s t r a c t , and t h a t ' s what our 

t i t l e o p i n i o n a t t o r n e y d i d . He would have used the BLM 

records, the BLM survey, the courthouse records, e t ce t e r a , 

t o determine t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Now, you say t h a t he would have, but you 

don't know t h a t he d i d . And i n f a c t , he wouldn't, would 

he? He'd be researching h i s i n f o r m a t i o n a t the County 

Clerk's O f f i c e — 

A. Well — 

Q. — which i s the deeds t h a t say 45 acres? 

So the at t o r n e y ' s o p i n i o n i s going t o be based e n t i r e l y on 

the — 

A. Well — 

Q. — basis t h a t — 

A. — I f e e l l i k e — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Don't i n t e r r u p t counsel, l e t 

him f i n i s h the question. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) So the att o r n e y ' s o p i n i o n i s 

going t o be based e n t i r e l y on the County Clerk's records, 

which i n d i c a t e t h a t her share i s 45 acres? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Objection. 

THE WITNESS: Can I answer now? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, l e t Mr. K e l l a h i n s t a t e 

h i s o b j e c t i o n . 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Counsel i s asking t h i s witness t o 

speculate on what the t i t l e attorney did. We don't have 

i t . We can submit i t i f you want t o look at i t , but the 

discussion goes nowhere based on his — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I w i l l sustain the objection. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Okay, did we ask you on Monday 

fo r a copy of the attorney's opinion? 

A. I don't r e c a l l i f we did or not. I thought we 

gave t h a t t o you. I r e a l l y don't remember. I know there 

was a lengthy meeting and you asked f o r quite a b i t of 

s t u f f . You asked fo r the deeds specifying where we came up 

with our 50-percent undivided mineral i n t e r e s t and the 

pl a t s t h a t we were t a l k i n g about at that time. I'm going 

t o make the assumption you did ask f o r the opinion. I 

don't know i f we gave i t to you or not. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I know Ann was involved i n some of the 

discussions. Can I say one more thing? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: No, not at t h i s time. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead, Mr. Horner. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Okay. Now then, there was some 

discussion about being able t o calculate acreages from 

distances and directions on these p l a t s , and j u s t f o r 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n , you have not attempted t o do t h a t , have you, 
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c a l c u l a t e acreages from distances and d i r e c t i o n s on the 

p l a t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Has anybody a t Richardson attempted t o do 

th a t ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

MR. HORNER: Okay, thank you. 

I have nothing f u r t h e r of the witness a t t h i s 

t ime, your Honor. 

MR. KELLAHIN: One follow-up. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. What was the source of your testimony concerning 

the net acreage a t t r i b u t e d t o Ms. Fischer i n t h e n o r t h h a l f 

— s o r r y , i n Tract I? What was the source of — 

A. The — 

Q. — t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

A. — survey and the r o y a l t y agreement. 

Q. Who d i d the c a l c u l a t i o n i f you d i d n ' t do i t ? 

A. Geneva McDougall d i d i t . She's a l e g a l law 

examiner f o r the Bureau of Land Management. She's been 

t h e r e — I don't know how many years, but t h a t ' s what she 

does. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Are you through, Mr. Ke l l a h i n ? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I'm sorry? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I'm sorry, are you through? 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) Can you s p e l l t h a t woman's 

name? I didn't catch that. 

A. Well, i t ' s on the Compensatory Royalty Agreement, 

she signed i t on page 4. Geneva McDougall. 

Q. She's the lady that performed the calculation? 

A. I'm assuming, yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , no fu r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Did you have f u r t h e r questions, 

Mr. Horner? 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n , the calculations you're 

t a l k i n g about are those shown on Exhibit A to the 

compensatory agreement, as opposed to anything shown on the 

p l a t s , r i g h t ? 

A. No, I j u s t said both. 

Q. Well, those calculations, those acreages and 

summing them up and coming to some sort of conclusion that 

Ms. Fischer owns 33 acres i s not indicated anywhere on 

those p l a t s , i s i t ? 

A. We've been through that about a hundred times, 

but no, there's no l o t number on — there's no acreage 

number on Lot 1. 
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Q. Or c a l c u l a t i o n on these p l a t s ? 

A. I don't know i f the c a l c u l a t i o n s are on t h e r e . 

Some c a l c u l a t i o n s are on one of those p l a t s . I don't 

r e c a l l what i t i s , but I know they're on t h e r e somewhere. 

MR. KELLAHIN: They're l o o k i n g a t a d i f f e r e n t 

e x h i b i t . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Yeah, and i n f a c t , you're 

t a l k i n g about a copy of t h a t p l a t where somebody has 

a c t u a l l y added up acreages and subtracted and come up w i t h 

a number f o r Ms. Fischer's acreage, which does not appear 

on the p l a t s t h a t these gentlemen are l o o k i n g at? 

A. No. 

Q. No, i t does not appear here? 

A. No, i t — No, i t does not appear on the p l a t . 

Q. Okay. So i n your mind you're remembering seeing 

where somebody has added up a bunch of acreages and come up 

w i t h a number f o r Ms. Fischer? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Right, but t h a t i s not what they're l o o k i n g a t , 

r i g h t ? 

A. I can't even see what they're l o o k i n g a t . There 

are so many e x h i b i t s here anymore, I'm g e t t i n g confused. 

But t o answer your question, t h e r e i s no acreage 

number on Lot 1 on these p l a t s . 
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MR. HORNER: Okay, I have not h i n g f u r t h e r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: One f u r t h e r question, Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Let me show you what I've marked as Richardson 

E x h i b i t 2-C. What am I showing you? Can you i d e n t i f y 

t h i s ? 

THE WITNESS: May I , your Honor? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

THE WITNESS: This i s the supplemental p l a t w i t h 

t h e c a l c u l a t i o n t h a t I was j u s t t a l k i n g about f o r , I guess, 

a l l t he l o t s , r e a l l y . There's more than — 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) This copy — 

A. — Lot 1. 

Q. — contains the c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t you've been 

describing? 

A. Well, there's more l o t s i n the n o r t h h a l f of 14, 

but i t also would include Lot 1. But i t s t i l l does not 

have an acreage number on the p l a t . 

Q. This c a l c u l a t i o n i n the b a l l o o n and the 

si g n a t u r e , i s t h a t your signature? Are those your 

i n i t i a l s ? 

A. No, no. 
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Q. Do you know who d i d t h i s c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

A. Let me see, the — I'm assuming i t was one of the 

surveyors t h a t signed the p l a t . I don't know. 

Q. Were you the r e when t h i s was put on th e p l a t ? 

A. No. No, we j u s t got copies of those t h i s week. 

Q. Where d i d you get t h i s from? 

A. From the BLM. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay. We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of 

E x h i b i t 2-C. 

MR. HORNER: Objection, a u t h e n t i c a t i o n , hearsay. 

What you're t a l k i n g about i s a bunch of hand f i g u r e s on a 

prepared p l a t t h a t we have no i n d i c a t i o n of where they even 

came from. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, i n s o f a r as they are being 

o f f e r e d , i f they are, f o r the t r u t h of the matter s t a t e d , 

then your o b j e c t i o n would be good. But an issue has been 

r a i s e d t o where Richardson got t h e i r acreage f i g u r e from, 

and so I w i l l admit t h i s E x h i b i t 2-C f o r the l i m i t e d 

purpose of — Well, a c t u a l l y t h i s should be numbered as a 

Richardson e x h i b i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , i t should be. I've made 

i t 2-C. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Oh, 2-C, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm s o r r y , what I wrote t h e r e — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: No, t h a t ' s what you wrote, I 
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j u s t was confused. 

I w i l l admit E x h i b i t 2-C f o r the l i m i t e d purpose 

of showing the source from which Richardson obtained t h e i r 

f i g u r e t h a t they're r e l y i n g on. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Okay, I had one f u r t h e r question. I keep 

t h i n k i n g of loose ends, but... 

You s a i d you had o f f e r e d a 1/8 r o y a l t y f o r a 

lease i n t h i s , and a hundred d o l l a r s an acre bonus? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h what r o y a l t i e s are 

c u s t o m a r i l y being o f f e r e d i n t h i s v i c i n i t y i n new leases? 

A. Oh, yes, we're — 

Q. What i s the customary — what i s — 

A. One-eighth. 

Q. — the going rate? 

Aren't there some 1/6 r o y a l t i e s up i n 

t h i s — I know there are i n the San Juan Basin, but — 

A. Well — 

Q. — i n other areas — 

A. — I'm sure there's higher r o y a l t i e s than t h a t , 

but I haven't gone through most of t h e i r lease f i l e s i n the 

l a s t few months. And we're a c t i v e l y l e a s i n g now. Most of 

them are 1/8. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l . Anything 

f u r t h e r from counsel? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

MR. HORNER: Yes, your Honor. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. I n t h a t regard, i n f a c t , the lease agreements 

w i t h the Indians, of which h a l f of t h i s i s i n v o l v i n g , are 

f o r 1/6, are they not? 

A. I don't know f o r the I n d i a n leases. Some of the 

o l d leases are 12 1/2 percent. 

MR. HORNER: Nothing f u r t h e r , your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Kella h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Stogner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I don't t h i n k the horse i s 

q u i t e dead y e t . 

(Laughter) 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. I'm going t o r e f e r t o E x h i b i t 2-B. 

A. Okay. 

Q. There i s no acreage d e d i c a t i o n f o r Lot 1 on t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r p l a t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Okay. Now, there are some acreage d e p i c t i o n s . 

Let's r e f e r down here t o the southwest corner. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And i t ' s cut up i n fo u r q u a r t e r s e c t i o n s ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? Or fo u r quarter quarter s e c t i o n s , I should say. 

A. Generally, yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, are there some numbers or some 

acreage shown f o r those squares? 

A. For these l o t s or whatever the a l i q u o t 40s or — 

They're not even a l i q u o t 4 0s. They must be some k i n d of 

l o t s , because they're less than 40 acres. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s go t o the southwest of the southwest. 

What does i t show i s the acreage dedicated t o t h a t ? 

A. 37.96. 

Q. How about the southeast southwest? 

A. 38.13. 

Q. Okay. Now — And t h a t d e p i c t s acreage square. 

Okay, j u s t observation. I f those are 39-acres, g i v e or 

take, d e p i c t i o n s , compare those squares t o Lot 1. Does Lot 

1 appear t o be more than 34 acres? I'm j u s t l o o k i n g a t 

t h a t p l a t , j u s t t a k i n g a look a t the numbers, but does t h a t 

more d e p i c t Lot 1 being 4 5 acres or 3 3 acres or 34 acres? 

A. Well, I t h i n k you're asking me t o speculate, 

but — 

Q. I'm j u s t observing the map. 
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A. Well, my answer t o your question i s , you have t o 

take t h i s p l u s the supplemental before you can answer the 

questio n . 

Q. You can't observe by j u s t l o o k i n g a t t h a t and 

lo o k i n g a t what i s depicted on t h i s and the s i z e of t h a t 

l i t t l e Lot 1 — 

A. Are you t e l l i n g me — 

Q. — here t o the southwest — 

A. Are you t e l l i n g me — 

Q. — southwest — 

A. — t o take t h i s and put i t up here? 

Q. Exactly. That's e x a c t l y what I'm doing. Does 

t h a t appear t o be a l i t t l e b i t bigger than 39 acres, or 

smaller? 

A. I'm going t o say yes, I guess. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I'm g e t t i n g 

a t , a l l I — 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Anybody else have anything 

else? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No. 

MR. HORNER: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, the witness may step 

down. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time we'd 
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c a l l Mr. David Richardson. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes. 

DAVID B. RICHARDSON, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, Mr. Richardson, would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. David Richardson, President, Richardson Operating 

Company. 

Q. I n what community do you reside? 

A. Denver, Colorado. 

Q. Do you hold any p r o f e s s i o n a l degrees? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And what are they? 

A. I have a bachelor of science i n geology. 

Q. I s the geologic work done f o r your company done 

by you? 

A. Yes, or under my d i r e c t i o n . 

Q. On p r i o r occasions have you q u a l i f i e d as an 

expert g e o l o g i s t before the D i v i s i o n i n compulsory p o o l i n g 

cases? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the geologic maps we1 r e about t o look a t and 
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the opinions you express both your work product and your 

opinions? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you also knowledgeable about the costs 

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s w e ll? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And you can describe f o r the D i v i s i o n and the 

p a r t i e s your operations w i t h i n the area described on the 

maps? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Richardson as an 

expert witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: He i s so — I'm s o r r y , any 

obj e c t i o n ? 

MR. HORNER: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let me have you r e f e r , Mr. 

Richardson, t o E x h i b i t 9. E x h i b i t 9 on here has your 

company name, and then i n the middle — I'm l o o k i n g a t the 

lower legends — I'm seeing "Navajo 14-2 Hearing Docket". 

A. Yes. 

Q. That's the way t h i s i s described, and t h a t ' s what 

you're l o o k i n g at? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Let's s t a r t i n Section 14, and you can s t a r t 
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anywhere you l i k e . Let's go around the s e c t i o n . I d e n t i f y 

f o r us the w e l l s and t h e i r s t a t u s so t h a t we're c l e a r on 

the c u r r e n t s i t u a t i o n i n the s e c t i o n . 

A. The proposed l o c a t i o n i s the Navajo 14-2 i n the 

northeast q u a r t e r of the s e c t i o n . 

Q. That i s a proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n , i t ' s an open 

c i r c l e ? 

A. Yes, the w e l l has been d r i l l e d . 

Q. Okay, what's i t s s t a t u s i n terms of completion? 

A. Wait on completion. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . There's another w e l l i n the northeast 

q u a r t e r , a spot f o r a w e l l . 

A. That's an o l d dry hole, probably an o l d Gallup 

w e l l , d r i l l e d i n the 1960s, I would imagine. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , please continue. 

A. I n the northwest quarter of the s e c t i o n i s a new 

w e l l of ours, the Navajo T r i b a l H 12 Well. I t ' s been on 

l i n e r e c e n t l y , and i t ' s a productive w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , t h a t ' s the one w i t h the gas w e l l 

symbol below the numbers 4445? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. That's c a l l e d the Navajo what? 

A. T r i b a l H 12. 

Q. And the s t a t u s of t h a t w e l l i s — ? 

A. I t ' s producing. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

84_ 

Q. From what formation? 

A. From the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s . 

Q. At approximately what rate? 

A. 110 MCF per day — 

Q. Okay, please continue. 

A. — and approximately 100 b a r r e l s of water. 

The 14-3 w e l l , the Benali 14-3 i s a — 

Q. Where i s i t ? 

A. Southwest quarter of the s e c t i o n — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — r e c e n t l y d r i l l e d w e l l . I t i s not on l i n e y e t . 

Q. I t ' s p o t e n t i a l l y what formation you're going t o 

produce? 

A. P i c t u r e d C l i f f s and e v e n t u a l l y the F r u i t l a n d 

Coal. 

Q. Any other wells? 

A. I n the southeast quarter of the s e c t i o n we have a 

w e l l t h a t ' s the Navajo 14-1 w e l l . I t ' s a P i c t u r e d C l i f f s 

w e l l , and i t ' s producing. 

Q. Okay. Can you estimate f o r us i t s c u r r e n t 

approximate d a i l y producing rate? 

A. The c u r r e n t production i s 2 50 MCF per day and 

about 12 0 b a r r e l s of water. 

Q. Let's set t h a t aside f o r a moment and t u r n t o 

E x h i b i t 10. What type of map are we l o o k i n g a t here? 
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A. This i s a s t r u c t u r e contour map on the t o p of the 

Pi c t u r e d C l i f f s sand. 

Q. When we compare E x h i b i t 10 back t o E x h i b i t 9, the 

contour l i n e s we're lo o k i n g a t on E x h i b i t 9 are d u p l i c a t e d 

on E x h i b i t 10, are they not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Looking a t 10, and c o n f i n i n g y o u r s e l f t o the 

Pi c t u r e d C l i f f and the F r u i t l a n d Coal, do you have a 

geologic o p i n i o n as t o whether s t r u c t u r e i s s i g n i f i c a n t t o 

you f o r e i t h e r the P i c t u r e d C l i f f or the F r u i t l a n d Coal? 

A. I t ' s i n s i g n i f i c a n t . 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s use t h i s as a l o c a t o r . I f we're 

addressing the r i s k associated w i t h the F r u i t l a n d Coal f o r 

the 14-2 w e l l , do you have an opi n i o n f o r the Examiner of 

what an ap p r o p r i a t e r i s k f a c t o r should be f o r the coal? 

A. For the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l or the p r o d u c t i o n of 

the w e l l ? 

Q. For the d r i l l i n g of the well? 

A. For economic reasons? 

Q. Describe i t any way you l i k e . 

A. Okay. Well, i t should be a very h i g h r i s k 

f a c t o r , because there's very l i t t l e economic p r o d u c t i o n i n 

the F r u i t l a n d Coal i n t h i s area. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t the D i v i s i o n ' s p r a c t i c e — 

A. Yes, I am. 
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Q. — i s t o award a maximum of 2 00 percent p l u s cost 

i n a f ormation t h a t ' s t a r g e t e d before the w e l l i s d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t the D i v i s i o n normally reduce 

t h a t p e n a l t y by 50 percent? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have reasons t o support an o p i n i o n as t o 

what p e n a l t y range ought t o be awarded i n t h i s case f o r the 

PC? 

A. The maximum. 

Q. Okay, so i f they award you 200 percent d i v i d e d by 

h a l f , do you have an op i n i o n as t o whether t h a t i s s t i l l 

a ppropriate? 

A. I t would be appropriate. 

Q. Describe f o r us the f a c t o r s t h a t go behind and 

support t h a t o p i n i o n . 

A. Okay, as f a r as the r i s k f a c t o r s ? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Okay, i n t h i s area, number one, i t i s a very 

marginal area of low production and high water p r o d u c t i o n , 

and t h a t g r e a t l y a f f e c t s the economics. Those are the two 

l a r g e s t r i s k f a c t o r s . 

Q. W i l l you know the o p p o r t u n i t y t o produce t h i s 

w e l l u n t i l you a c t u a l l y f r a c i t and complete i t ? 

A. You never do. 
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Q. Are those water r i s k s associated w i t h j u s t one 

f o r m a t i o n , or are they associated w i t h both? 

A. They're associated w i t h both. About an equal 

amount comes from both zones. 

Q. When you look a t the P i c t u r e d C l i f f f o r m a t i o n i n 

t h i s general area, what i s your hopeful economic f o r e c a s t 

f o r a d a i l y gas producing r a t e from the PC? 

A. Well, 250 MCF a day would make an economic w e l l . 

Q. I f you encounter a w e l l l i k e the Nevada H 12 i n 

the northwest quarter — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — how do you compare t o t h a t w e l l ? 

A. That w e l l i s uneconomic. We're hoping t h a t the 

p r o d u c t i o n goes up as the w e l l dewaters — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — i f i t , i n f a c t , dewaters. 

Q. Describe f o r me what you b e l i e v e are the r i s k s 

associated w i t h the F r u i t l a n d Coal gas p o r t i o n of t h e w e l l . 

A. Again, very l i t t l e p r o d u c t i o n h i s t o r y i n the 

F r u i t l a n d Coal i n t h i s area. I t i s an area where i t i s 

t h i n n i n g compared t o other p a r t s of the Basin, and our 

experience i s high water production. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 11. I d e n t i f y the type of 

d i s p l a y we're l o o k i n g a t . 

A. This i s an isopach map of the basal F r u i t l a n d 
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Coal, showing the average thickness of the coal i n the 

n i n e - s e c t i o n area. 

Q. I n t e r p r e t the contour l i n e s and estimate f o r us 

the c o a l thickness f o r the 14-2 w e l l . 

A. We're e s t i m a t i n g , because we have the o f f s e t t i n g 

l o g next t o i t , approximately a 12-foot zone i n the basal 

c o a l . 

Q. Are there coal thicknesses i n excess of t h a t 

number? 

A. There are. I t ' s p r e t t y c o n s i s t e n t throughout 

t h i s area. I t goes up t o 18 f e e t and t h i n s down t o e i g h t 

f e e t i n some areas. 

Q. Let me t u r n your a t t e n t i o n t o a d i f f e r e n t t o p i c . 

As p r e s i d e n t of Richardson operating company, you're also 

the owner of Richardson Production Company? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You would use the operating company as the 

operator f o r the well? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. I n the course of your business, i s i t customary 

f o r you t o approve — t o prepare or have prepared AFEs f o r 

your w e l l s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do you review AFEs prepared by others o u t s i d e 

your company f o r your p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 12. Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s 

f o r us? 

A. This i s an AFE f o r the proposed commingled 

F r u i t l a n d - P i c t u r e d C l i f f s w e l l , the Navajo 14-2. 

Q. What's the date of the AFE? 

A. 11-16-2001. 

Q. Do you have an opinion as t o whether the 

estimated costs displayed on t h i s e x h i b i t are f a i r and 

reasonable? 

A. I t h i n k i t ' s f a i r and reasonable, yes. 

Q. Okay. When you look a t the east h a l f of Section 

14, i s the only uncommitted i n t e r e s t the outstanding 

i n t e r e s t of Ms. Fischer? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you know what r o y a l t y you're 

paying f o r other i n t e r e s t owners i n the east h a l f of the 

section? 

A. The base r o y a l t y on the Navajos i s 1/8. 

Q. I s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you've o f f e r e d Ms. 

Fischer? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. What's your plans f o r completion? Give us a 

general summary of your completion plans. 

A. Generally, we w i l l go i n , complete the P i c t u r e d 
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C l i f f s , w e ' l l s t a r t w i t h the lowest zone f i r s t , produce i t , 

t r y and get fl o w r a t e s on i t , set a bridge p l u g , f r a c the 

F r u i t l a n d Coal and produce t h a t , p u l l the p l u g and produce 

both zones. 

Q. When do you a n t i c i p a t e undertaking those 

a d d i t i o n a l operations on t h i s w e ll? 

A. We would l i k e t o put the w e l l i n p r o d u c t i o n as 

soon as p o s s i b l e . 

Q. Do you have an o v e r a l l plan f o r development of 

e i t h e r the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s or the Coal w i t h i n t h i s area? 

A. Outside of t h i s section? 

Q. W i t h i n t h i s section? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And what a d d i t i o n a l a c t i v i t y might take place? 

You've got w e l l s i n each of the 160s. 

A. Right. 

Q. Do you c u r r e n t l y p lan or a n t i c i p a t e any f u r t h e r 

d r i l l i n g a t t h i s point? 

A. Not i n t h i s s e c t i o n , no. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay, t h a t concludes my 

examination of — Well, there's one f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n . No, 

Paul answered the overhead r a t e s . That concludes my 

examination of Mr. Richardson. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t s 9 

through 12. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Objections? 

MR. HORNER: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: E x h i b i t s 9 through 12 are 

admitted. 

Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: May the record r e f l e c t t h a t I'm 

handing t o the witness a document e n t i t l e d A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

Permit t o d r i l l and — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, do you want t o mark t h i s 

as an e x h i b i t ? 

MR. HORNER: I have up the r e a l i t t l e ways, your 

Honor. This here i s E x h i b i t C. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. HORNER: Ms. Fischer's E x h i b i t C. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s document? 

A. No, I am not. 

Q. This i s an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o d r i l l the 

sub j e c t w e l l , i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. But you're not f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s document? 

A. But I have not seen t h i s . 

Q. Well, on the — l e t ' s see, page 8 of t h i s 

document, t h e r e i s a paragraph 13, "Representation", and 
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underneath t h a t i s a paragraph. Would you please read t h a t 

paragraph? 

A. "Richardson Operating Company has the necessary 

consent from the proper lease owners t o conduct lease 

operations i n co n j u n c t i o n w i t h t h i s w e l l . Bond 

coverage..." 

Q. That's enough. 

A. Do you want me t o go on? 

Q. That's enough. 

So i n f a c t , i t ' s been c e r t i f i e d here t h a t you do 

have the necessary consents from a l l the a p p r o p r i a t e lease 

owners; i s n ' t t h a t the case? 

A. That's what t h i s says, yes. 

Q. And s t i l l , y e t , you do not have an agreement w i t h 

Ms. Fischer? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. That would be a misrepresentation of f a c t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I o b j e c t t o the 

witness [ s i c ] , Mr. Horner has mischaracterized t he 

statement. I t says "the proper lease owners". I t doesn't 

r e q u i r e you t o have a l l the lease owners. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I ' l l s u s t a i n the o b j e c t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) Now, you say t h i s w e l l has been 

d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And so t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d then, o b v i o u s l y , 

w i t h o u t the consent of Ms. Fischer — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n any form? 

And t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d before you had an order 

from the OCD w i t h regard t o t h i s p o o l i n g t h a t we're here 

f o r today; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So i n f a c t , Richardson Production, or y o u r s e l f , 

decided t o take i t upon y o u r s e l f , w i t h o u t the necessary 

documents, t o assume t h i s r i s k of d r i l l i n g t h i s w e l l ? 

A. Upon the advice of my a t t o r n e y , yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay. So you f e l t i t was worth the r i s k of going 

ahead and d r i l l i n g t h i s well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now then, i f i n f a c t i t i s determined t h a t Ms. 

Fischer has a 45-acre i n t e r e s t here, or l o o k i n g a t t h a t 45-

acre i n t e r e s t , i f t h e r e was a fo r c e p o o l i n g order w i t h a 

200-percent penalty, t h a t would mean — and she was then 

r e q u i r e d t o pay out of production her cost p l u s 200 percent 

— t h a t would be 3 00 percent — t h a t would mean t h a t she 

would have t o pay over 75 percent of the cost of t h i s w e l l 

pursuant t o a f o r c e p o o l i n g order; would t h a t be c o r r e c t ? 

A. I r e a l l y don't understand your question. I'm 

s o r r y . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

94 

Q. I t ' s j u s t beyond you? 

A. I t must be. 

Q. So — Okay, i f she were t o have 45 acres out of 

your P i c t u r e d C l i f f u n i t — The P i c t u r e d C l i f f u n i t i s 160 

acres; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And so her i n t e r e s t , then, a t t h a t p o i n t would be 

28 percent, approximately, 45 d i v i d e d by 160? 

A. I wouldn't speculate on t h a t , I don't know what 

i t i s . We've c a l c u l a t e d i t t o be i n the 30s. 

Q. I n the 3 0-percent range? 

A. T h i r t y - f o u r , whatever the landman s a i d i t was. 

Q. Her acreage or her percentage? 

A. No, not her percentage, her acreage. And then 

she owns 50 percent of t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Well — Now then, so you prepared the 

AFEs, then — We're lo o k i n g a t here E x h i b i t Number 12 t h a t 

shows what you say you b e l i e v e t o be a f a i r r e p r e s e n t a t i o n 

of Ms. Fischer's i n t e r e s t i n t h i s w e ll? 

A. On the percentages, I have not c a l c u l a t e d her 

percentages p e r s o n a l l y . I have c a l c u l a t e d the estimated 

cos t . 

Q. Okay, so you have taken these percentages from 

somebody else and app l i e d them t o a t o t a l d o l l a r f i g u r e f o r 

th e w e l l ? 
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A. From the land department. 

Q. From the land department i n your company? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now then, are you aware t h a t f i g u r e s l i k e these 

or s i m i l a r t o these were ever presented t o Ms. Fischer? 

A. She never responded t o any of our correspondence 

u n t i l t h i s week — 

Q. Well, now — 

A. — so probably not. I'm not aware of t h a t . 

Q. No, the question i s , were they presented t o her? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. Were they ever sent t o her? 

A. I don't know. The land department, maybe they 

d i d . I don't know. 

Q. So you're not aware i f t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n was ever 

sent t o her? 

A. I t ' s not f o r me t o answer t h a t . That's r e a l l y a 

land question. 

Q. So then you're also not aware i f t h i n g s l i k e 

p o t e n t i a l p r o d u c t i o n r a t e s or payout terms were ever 

discussed w i t h her? 

A. Before t h i s week, nothing was discussed w i t h her. 

Q. Okay, duri n g t h i s week, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h any 

of t h i s s t u f f being discussed? 

A. Oh, yes, a l l I'm aware of i s when you and Ms. 
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Fischer walked i n our o f f i c e you wanted t o be completely 

c a r r i e d w i t h no penalty f o r your share of the w e l l , p l u s an 

a d d i t i o n a l 1/6 r o y a l t y t o be carved out of the other 

people's i n t e r e s t , and I had hoped t o n e g o t i a t e a deal w i t h 

you so we wouldn't a l l have t o be here today. You s a i d you 

were u n w i l l i n g t o lease, s e l l your minerals. And when you 

gave us those terms, we were forced t o come here today. 

Q. Well, she's p r e t t y mean t o you, i s n ' t she? 

A. No, I don't know her. She may be a wonderful 

woman. 

Q. Now, i n f a c t , you've had one meeting w i t h Ms. 

Fischer i n the whole course of t h i s process, r i g h t ? 

A. Me pe r s o n a l l y , yes, r i g h t . 

Q. And t h a t was yesterday, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t meeting l a s t e d how long? Five minutes? 

A. Five t o t e n minutes, yes. 

Q. I f t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. But now, you prepared t h i s AFE-type 

i n f o r m a t i o n , I'm assuming, f o r s u b m i t t a l t o Ms. Fischer, 

but you don't know i f i t ever a c t u a l l y got submitted t o Ms. 

Fischer? 

A. This i s a question f o r the land department. 

Q. I n your company t h a t you prepared t o send t o her, 
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you don't know i f i t ever got sent? 

A. Well, you would probably get my land department 

up t h e r e and see i f i t was i n the c e r t i f i e d m a i l . 

MR. HORNER: I have nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s 

witness, your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Redirect, Mr. Ke l l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. I j u s t wanted t o understand your testimony about 

the r i s k p e n a l t y f a c t o r , because I b e l i e v e we got a l i t t l e 

wound up i n i t when you were t e s t i f y i n g on d i r e c t . 

You are aware, I take i t , t h a t the OCD's p r a c t i c e 

i n many cases i n the past has been, where the w e l l has been 

d r i l l e d p r i o r t o a fo r c e p o o l i n g proceeding, t o award only 

a 100-percent r i s k penalty f a c t o r , where we would have 

awarded a 2 00-percent r i s k penalty f a c t o r , probably, i f the 

proceeding had been brought before the w e l l was d r i l l e d ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, I'm aware of t h a t understanding t h a t the 

r e a l r i s k i s not i n the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l , i t ' s i n the 

completion of the w e l l . But I am aware of t h a t . 

Q. Okay, do I understand — When you s a i d t h a t you 

f e l t t h a t t he maximum penalty f a c t o r was ap p r o p r i a t e i n 

t h i s case, d i d you mean the maximum g i v i n g e f f e c t t o t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

98 

p o l i c y , or d i d you mean t h a t you t h i n k t he s t a t u t o r y 

maximum of 200 percent should be — 

A. I t h i n k the 2 00 percent should be a p p l i e d , but I 

am aware of your r u l e s regarding having the w e l l d r i l l e d . 

Q. Are the r e p a r t i c u l a r f a c t o r s i n t h i s case t h a t 

you would t h i n k t h a t i n your o p i n i o n would m i l i t a t e f o r a 

higher r i s k f a c t o r than the 100 percent t h a t we would 

normally apply i n t h i s type of case? 

A. Again, the unproven area, the low pr o d u c t i o n 

r a t e s and the high water production, i t ' s a question of 

economics. And i t i s a marginal area, t h i s i s out of the 

fa i r w a y . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, thank you. Nothing 

f u r t h e r . 

Mr. Stogner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: No other questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Jones? 

MR. JONES: I have a question. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JONES: 

Q. Mr. Richardson, what c u t o f f f a c t o r do you use on 

de n s i t y t o determine your footage of coal i n your wells? 

A. We don't r e a l l y go o f f of t h a t i n i t s e l f , but — 

We go o f f of a l o t of f a c t o r s , but not the d e n s i t i e s . 

Q. Do you have a l o g on the we l l ? 
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A. Yes, we do. 

Q. So you're — What i n your estimate i s the 

thickness of the coal i n the well that you encounter? 

A. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r well? 

Q. Yes. 

A. The t o t a l thickness i n the H 12 well? 

Q. The Navajo 14-2 w e l l . 

A. Okay, we've estimated i t t o be 12 feet . 

Q. Twelve feet, okay. And what about your PC — How 

much porosity did you get on the PC? 

A. I t i s very t i g h t i n t h i s area. Typically — and 

we've d r i l l e d a l o t of wells out here now — i t ' s j u s t the 

very top portion of the PC that's productive. Some of the 

more porous zone further down i s non productive. So we 

can't r e a l l y look at the thickness of the PC. At least I 

don•t. 

Q. Okay. On al l o c a t i n g your costs on your AFE, you 

said the Fruitland i s 850 feet, the PC i s 1050 fe e t , and 

tha t works out to a Fruitland Coal percentage of 45 

percent, and yet on your d r i l l i n g costs you used about 40 

to 40 1/2 percent f o r the Fruitland and almost 60 percent 

f o r the PC. Was that what you used on the actual cost too? 

This i s j u s t estimated AFE, but — 

A. Yes, we w i l l go i n when we actu a l l y allocate the 

cost out, whatever the additional below the base of the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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coal t o the t o t a l depth of the w e l l , t h a t increment w i l l be 

added t o the PC. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Whatever t h a t exact percentage i s . 

Q. Based on — What do you base the percentage on? 

I s i t the depth t h a t you complete i n the — the t o t a l depth 

f o r t he PC versus the t o t a l depth f o r the F r u i t l a n d ? 

A. T o t a l depth of the PC. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t ' s what you're going t o use f o r the 

a c t u a l — 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And on the hearing order a p p l i c a t i o n you 

mentioned downhole commingling of the PC and the F r u i t l a n d . 

Did you i n t e n d the order t o include a permi t f o r downhole 

commingling a l s o , or are you going t o apply f o r t h a t — 

A. We w i l l apply f o r t h a t l a t e r . 

MR. JONES: Okay, t h a t was a l l my questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r , 

gentlemen? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Not from me, s i r . 

MR. HORNER: Not of t h i s witness, your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, the witness may 

stand down. 

How long do you a n t i c i p a t e your p r e s e n t a t i o n i s 

going t o take, Mr. Horner? 
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MR. HORNER: Well, i t shouldn't be more than an 

hour, I wouldn't t h i n k . I t may not be t h a t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We'll stand i n recess t i l l one 

o'clock. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 11:37 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 1:10 p.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, c a l l the hearing back t o 

order and go back on the record. 

My co-Examiner would l i k e t o r e c a l l Mr. Lehrman. 

PAUL LEHRMAN, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Mr. Lehrman, i n lo o k i n g a t E x h i b i t Number 1, I 

be l i e v e t h i s was one of your e x h i b i t s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t was. Okay. 

Q. Okay. I f I look over i n the northwest q u a r t e r of 

Section 14 — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — there i s a Navajo T r i b a l H Well Number 12. 

Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t well? 

A. No, I'm r e a l l y not. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay, i s i t — Who's the operator of that well? 

A. I believe i t ' s Richardson. 

Q. Okay, do you know what pool that w e l l i s 

producing from? 

A. I believe i t ' s the Pictured C l i f f s . I'm j u s t 

taking a guess, I r e a l l y don't know. I'm j u s t assuming 

i t ' s Pictured C l i f f s . 

Q. Okay. Now, how long has Richardson had t h i s 

well? 

A. How long have they had the w e l l , you mean? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I think i t ' s been d r i l l e d f a i r l y recently. I 

mean, a l l his s t u f f i s w i t h i n the l a s t four or f i v e years, 

I believe. 

Q. Okay. Now t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , you don't know 

i f i t was a recompletion or a new well? 

A. I don't I haven't been i n his o f f i c e t h a t long, 

so I'm not f a m i l i a r with that w e l l . 

Q. But i t ' s presently completing as a Pictured 

C l i f f s t h a t you know of? 

A. Well, I'm guessing, because t h i s one th a t we're 

t a l k i n g about i s going to be a PC-Fruitland with a PC i n 

the southeast, and I'm thinking the northwest i s a PC. 

Q. Okay, do you know — 

(Off the record) 
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Q. (By Examiner Stogner) I n f a c t , i t ' s j u s t been 

p o i n t e d out t o me E x h i b i t Number 9, i t looks l i k e i t ' s 

producing from the PC a t 110 MCF a day. Do you know how 

t h a t p r o d u c t i o n i s a l l o c a t e d between the Navajo r e s e r v a t i o n 

and any fee acreage on the n o r t h side of the r i v e r ? 

A. As f a r — Percentagewise? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Well, i t would j u s t depend on what t h e i r acreage 

i s . 

Q. Well, has t h a t changed over time as the r i v e r 

changes? 

A. You mean do the percentages change every time the 

r i v e r changes? 

Q. Yes, because t h a t ' s what you're proposing today. 

A. I r e s p e c t f u l l y disagree w i t h t h a t . No, I would 

assume t h a t i f t h a t Navajo T r i b a l H 12 w e l l — when i t was 

d r i l l e d — the a l l o c a t i o n s are probably the same now as 

they were then. 

Q. Uh-huh. And you wouldn't see any reason t o 

change, i f the r i v e r changed tomorrow? 

A. Well, l e t me ask you a question. 

Q. No, s i r , I'm asking the questions. 

A. Well, no, because you'd have t o go back and you'd 

have t o change i t and re-survey the r i v e r c o n s t a n t l y . The 

r i v e r c o n s t a n t l y moves. 
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Q. Uh-huh. Just f o r the record — and I ' d l i k e t o 

make a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of t h a t w e l l f i l e — a c t u a l l y , 

t h a t w e l l was d r i l l e d i n 1961 by Pan American, and i t was a 

Gallup w e l l . And there were two nonstandard Gallup 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t s formed. 

Now, you're shaking your head yes. Did you know 

about t h i s ? 

A. Tom showed me a couple of — 

Q. Okay. 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t was the order — Was t h a t the one 

you j u s t showed me? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't know. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I ' d j u s t l i k e t o take 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of how production has been a l l o c a t e d 

h i s t o r i c a l l y out t h e r e , and not only on these two w e l l s , 

but also on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r one. 

And I have no other questions of t h i s witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I have no questions a t 

t h i s time. 

Did you, Mr. Jones? 

(Off the record) 

MR. JONES: I have no other questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Attorneys? 

Very good, you may stand down. 

Very w e l l , Mr. Horner, you may proceed. 
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MR. HORNER: At t h i s p o i n t I would c a l l Mary 

Fischer t o the stand. Ms. Fischer? 

MARY FISCHER, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name and s p e l l your 

l a s t name f o r the record? 

A. My name i s Mary Fischer, F-i-s-c-h-e-r. 

Q. And where do you reside? 

A. 1109 Acoma Place, Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the p r o p e r t y t h a t ' s 

being discussed here, Lot 1 i n Section 14? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And how are you f a m i l i a r w i t h i t ? 

A. I own i t , and I go out every day and feed my 

horses t h a t r e s i d e on i t . 

Q. And how d i d you come t o own i t ? 

A. I t was — I acquired i t from my f a t h e r . 

Q. And do you know when he i n i t i a l l y acquired t h i s 

property? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was approximately 1965. 

Q. Now, do you own property other than simply Lot 1 

of Section 14 i n t h i s area? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

106 

A. I n the community of Farmington? 

Q. No, no, r i g h t here i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area. 

A. I b e l i e v e I do. 

Q. Okay, do you own some p r o p e r t y i n Section 11, 

j u s t immediately t o the n o r t h of i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And so we've t a l k e d about 45 acres associated 

w i t h Lot Number 1. What i s your understanding of t h e t o t a l 

acreage of your piece of pr o p e r t y there? 

A. 45 acres. 

Q. No, i n c l u d i n g the p a r t t o the n o r t h . Don't you 

understand i t t o be 51 acres? 

A. Oh, yes, yes, I understand I own i n excess of 50 

acres. 

Q. Okay. Now, when were you f i r s t approached by 

somebody w i t h Richardson w i t h regard t o some s o r t of o i l 

and gas a c t i v i t y out there? 

A. Approximately a year t o a year and a h a l f ago I 

received a telephone c a l l from a Cathleen Colby who t o l d me 

she was working on behalf of Richardson O i l Company and 

t h a t they were going t o put a w e l l on my farm. 

And I questioned t h a t . I s a i d , How can you do 

t h a t ? I own the surface r i g h t s and the mine r a l r i g h t s . 

And she s a i d , Well, we can p r e t t y much do 

whatever we want t o do. 
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And so the conversation became a b i t heated and 

she s a i d , Y o u ' l l be hearing from us. 

Q. And so when d i d you next hear from her t h a t you 

r e c a l l ? 

A. Well, I received a l e t t e r from them, and t h a t was 

the next d e a l i n g I had w i t h them. 

Q. And so would the time frame on t h a t be 

approximately — They've submitted as A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t 

Number 4 a l e t t e r dated June 2 6th from Cathleen Colby t o 

you. Would t h a t be about the approximate time frame? 

A. Yes, I t h i n k i t would be. 

Q. Okay. Now, when was your next contact w i t h them 

t h a t you r e c a l l ? 

A. The next one t h a t I r e c a l l was a l e t t e r t h a t I 

received from the law f i r m t e l l i n g me I was going t o be 

f o r c e pooled. 

Q. Okay, and so t h a t would be r e l a t i v e l y r e c e n t l y , 

then? 

A. Yes, the l a s t p a r t of J u l y , I b e l i e v e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now then, when was the next time you 

had any contact w i t h the Richardson people? 

A. This l a s t Monday. 

Q. And — So what was the nature of t h a t contact? 

A. I received a message on my answering machine from 

Mr. Lehrman t e l l i n g me t h a t he was r e p r e s e n t i n g Richardson 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

108 

O i l Company and t h a t he would l i k e t o get togeth e r w i t h me 

a t my convenience t o discuss the f o r c e p o o l i n g issue. 

Q. And d i d you get together w i t h him? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. When was that ? 

A. The message was l e f t on my machine a t 

approximately, I would guess, around 8:30 i n the morning. 

I was gone walking my dog a t t h a t time. As soon as I 

re t u r n e d , I retu r n e d h i s phone c a l l , and we set something 

up f o r l a t e r t h a t afternoon a t Richardson O i l Company, and 

I had my a t t o r n e y present. 

Q. Well, you d i d , i n f a c t , have a meeting w i t h them, 

then, Monday afternoon? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And so who was present a t t h a t meeting? 

A. I was t h e r e , Mr. Horner was t h e r e , Mr. Lehrman 

was t h e r e , and Ann Jones. And I was not ever t o l d what 

Ann's cap a c i t y was. 

Q. Okay, was i t your understanding she worked f o r 

Richardson? 

A. Yes, I mean, she was s i t t i n g behind a desk, but I 

d i d n ' t know what her t i t l e was. 

Q. Okay. At t h a t time d i d you discuss t h e i r 

proposal t o lease or have you p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w ell? 
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A. Well, I asked i f t h e i r proposal was the same as 

i t had been, and they said yes. 

Q. And now then, a t t h a t time d i d they g i v e you 

copies of l e t t e r s t h a t they — 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. — had sent t o you — 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. — before? And a t t h a t time d i d you or I ask 

them i f t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l had been d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what was t h e i r response? 

A. Both Mr. Lehrman and Ms. Jones s a i d no, i t had 

not. Mr. Lehrman sa i d , Well, I'm not sure, I'm j u s t the 

landman. 

Q. And Ms. Jones' answer was — ? 

A. I t had not. 

Q. Have you subsequently learned t h a t i t has been 

d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes, i t has. 

Q. Have you been t o the w e l l s i t e t o see i t ? 

A. Yes, I have, and I had observed the r i g across 

the r i v e r when i t was being d r i l l e d . 

Q. Okay. Now, d i d you say you go t o your p r o p e r t y , 

which i s t h e r e across the r i v e r from t h i s w e l l s i t e , every 

day? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And why do you do th a t ? 

A. To go feed my horses. 

Q. And so then, i n the l a s t — w e l l , the l a s t two or 

t h r e e months, d i d you see an operating d r i l l r i g across the 

r i v e r ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And so approximately when was t h i s ? 

A. I would assume i t was sometime t h i s summer. I 

mean, w i t h i n the l a s t couple of months. 

Q. Okay. Now then, a t your Monday meeting, d i d they 

g i v e you a copy of a proposed lease agreement? 

A. Yes. 

Q. May the record r e f l e c t t h a t I'm handing t o the 

witness a document e n t i t l e d " O i l and Gas Lease". Does t h i s 

look l i k e t he agreement t h a t they handed t o you Monday? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And there towards the top, about two 

paragraphs down, i s a d e s c r i p t i o n of the p a r t i c u l a r 

p r o p e r t y . Would you read t h a t d e s c r i p t i o n , please? 

A. "Township 29 North, Range 14 West, N.M.P.M., 

Section 14: Lot 1, and c o n t a i n i n g 33.14 acres, more or 

l e s s . " 

Q. Okay. Now at t h i s Monday meeting was i t 

discussed, the discrepancy between what your understanding 
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of the acreage of Lot 1 was and what t h e i r understanding 

was? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And do you r e c a l l e x p l a i n i n g t o them t h a t you 

thought your acreage was 45-something? 

A. Yes, I s a i d , Where d i d these numbers come from? 

I b e l i e v e I have 45 acres. 

Q. And do you r e c a l l i n the l e t t e r s t h a t the showed 

you t h a t they had sent t o you before, t h a t they were 

t a l k i n g about 17-something acres? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d you ask them then how they came up w i t h 

the d i f f e r e n c e i n t h e i r numbers? 

A. They explained — Well, t h e r e was something t o do 

w i t h a BLM survey t h a t caused my acreage t o go from 45 t o 

33. 

Q. And d i d they also e x p l a i n something about some 

s o r t of a mineral deed i n the past, t r a n s f e r r i n g h a l f of 

your mineral r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, they explained t o me t h a t I only had m i n e r a l 

r i g h t s t o h a l f the property, t h a t the other h a l f belonged 

t o Twyla Gooding. 

Q. Okay. And then d i d you ask them, w e l l , i f i n 

f a c t they were representing t h a t you only owned h a l f of the 

m i n e r a l r i g h t s , why they would be p u t t i n g 33.14 acres i n 
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t h i s p a r t i c u l a r lease agreement? 

A. Yes, I said precisely t h a t . I said, I f I only 

own 17 1/2, why i s i t saying that I own 33? 

And they said, Oh, that's standard i n the 

industry. You'll have to sign another agreement t h a t says 

you only own 17, but you have t o sign t h i s one f i r s t . 

Q. Okay, so they were saying you had to sign t h i s 

agreement, and then there would be some other agreement 

where they cut what you're signing here i n half? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now then, that was on Monday. Did you 

subsequently t a l k t o the Richardson people about t h i s kind 

of t h i n g again? 

A. Yes, we went yesterday, as a matter of f a c t , 

and — with — they had submitted to me another lease v i a 

fax t h a t then said that I had, I believe, 35 acres, not the 

3 3 th a t t h i s lease says, and they were making another o f f e r 

of bonuses and that sort of thing, and then they asked f o r 

another meeting, which we attended — we came i n t o t h e i r 

o f f i c e yesterday afternoon. 

Q. And at t h i s meeting yesterday afternoon, d id we 

make an o f f e r t o them? 

A. Yes, we did. 

Q. And do you r e c a l l what r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t we were 

discussing? 
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A. We were discussing a s i x t h , because an employee 

of t h e BLM suggested t h a t I ask f o r the same t h a t t h e 

Indians get. 

Q. Okay, and when d i d you have t h a t conversation 

w i t h t he BLM guy? 

A. About an — r e a l l y , only minutes before we went 

over t o the Richardson o f f i c e . We stopped a t BLM f i r s t and 

went on over. 

Q. And so t h a t was yesterday? 

A. Yes, i t was yesterday. 

Q. And so the guy a t the BLM t o l d you t h a t a l l of 

the c u r r e n t I n d i a n leases are being done now w i t h a 1/6 or 

a 16 2/3 i n t e r e s t , r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , t o the I n d i a n s ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. Yes, and he sai d , I f I were you I ' d ask f o r 

t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Now, then, has the BLM ever come t o you 

w i t h regard t o any p o t e n t i a l dispute over the boundaries of 

your p r o p e r t y there w i t h Lot 1? 

A. No. 

Q. Has the BLM ever submitted t o you any form of 

copy of these p l a t s t h a t were introduced t h i s morning, the 

1999 or the supplemental 2001 p l a t s ? 

A. No. I d i d n ' t even know they were i n existence. 

Q. Now, having reviewed the o f f e r s t h a t Richardson 
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apparently made t o you l i k e i n June of 2 001 by l e t t e r , now 

having a l i t t l e b i t of an understanding of what they might 

mean — Let me f i r s t g ive you a copy of what I'm t a l k i n g 

about. 

And t h i s i s marked — I guess i t ' s a c t u a l l y been 

admitted as Appl i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t 4, June 2 6th. 

Okay, do you r e c a l l having reviewed t h a t document 

i n t he l a s t couple weeks? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do you r e c a l l the a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r 

expenditures t h a t ' s attached t o th a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the amounts t h a t are l i s t e d on the bottom? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And now, was i t your understanding t h a t i n order 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e they were going t o ask you t o pay those 

amounts up f r o n t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now then, on the f r o n t page of t h i s document 

would you please read paragraph 2? 

A. "Enclosed f o r your review i s an AFE i t e m i z i n g the 

estimated costs f o r the w e l l . I n the event you wish t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s d r i l l i n g and completion attempt, please 

r e t u r n an executed copy of the AFE t o the undersigned by 

J u l y 17, 2001. Upon r e c e i p t of your executed AFE, or by 
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p r i o r w r i t t e n request, we w i l l forward an AAPL Form 610 

Joi n t Operating Agreement f o r your review and execution, 

providing f o r , among other things, a 300%/100% nonconsent 

penalty and $5000 drilling/$500 producing overhead rates." 

Q. Okay, do you have an understanding of what tha t 

could p o t e n t i a l l y mean to you? 

A. Well, what I thought i t meant was, i f I agreed to 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the d r i l l i n g , then I would be h i t with a 

400-percent nonconsent penalty. 

Q. And does being h i t with any kind of nonconsent 

penalty make any sense i f you are agreeing t o participate? 

A. No, i t made no sense to me whatsoever. Why would 

I have t o — Why would I be penalized when I had agreed to 

participate? 

Q. So i s there anything, then, i n tha t paragraph 

tha t at a l l looks to you l i k e something th a t you might be 

interested in? 

A. No, I mean, i t looked t o me l i k e i f I agreed t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e I'd be penalized. 

Q. Now then, are you currently an elected o f f i c i a l ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And i n what capacity have you been elected? 

A. I'm a City Councilor, City of Farmington. 

Q. Now, have you had occasion t o learn of the 

reputation of Richardson O i l Company i n your running around 
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Farmington? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o t h a t 

q u e s t i o n , Mr. Examiner. I t has no relevance about the 

r e p u t a t i o n of Richardson i n her op i n i o n or anyone's 

o p i n i o n . Are we going t o get i n t o t h a t ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I suppose i t i s arguable 

relevance t o the issue t h a t we — one of the issues t h a t ' s 

a c t u a l l y addressed t o us, which i s n e g o t i a t i o n i n good 

f a i t h . I ' l l o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n . 

THE WITNESS: I've had two personal dealings w i t h 

Richardson, one w i t h a gas w e l l t h a t they — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, l e t me i n t e r j e c t . I 

b e l i e v e t h i s i s not responsive t o the question, because the 

r u l e i n c o u r t s , of course, i s t h a t you can prove r e p u t a t i o n 

by general o p i n i o n , but you can't r e l y on s p e c i f i c 

instances. 

THE WITNESS: Okay, w e l l — 

MR. HORNER: A l l r i g h t , l e t me ask the question 

again. 

THE WITNESS: Excuse me. 

Q. (By Mr. Horner) And t h a t i s , have you had 

occasion t o l e a r n of the r e p u t a t i o n of Richardson O i l i n 

the community? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s t h a t r e p u t a t i o n ? 
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A. That they d i d not honor t h e i r commitments, and 

t h a t I should watch out i n any dealings t h a t I would have 

w i t h them. 

MR. HORNER: Okay, I have nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s 

witness a t t h i s time, your Honor. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Kel l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Ms. Fischer, your understanding i s t h a t you own 

the surface o f Lot 1? 

A. Yes, and the minerals. 

Q. Are you aware t h a t Richardson claims t h a t the 

other 50 percent of the minerals i s not c o n t r o l l e d by you? 

A. Yes, I am aware of t h a t now. 

Q. Are you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When d i d you f i r s t become aware of t h a t ? 

A. Monday. 

Q. You d i d not know t h a t before then? 

A. I d i d not. 

Q. Was the r i g located on any of your surface? 

A. No. That I observed? 

Q. Yes, ma'am. 

A. No, i t was across the r i v e r . 
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Q. On the south side of the r i v e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you don't have surface on the south side of 

the r i v e r ? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. You acknowledge t h a t you received the Richardson 

l e t t e r dated June 26 of '01. You have a copy of t h a t i n — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — f r o n t of you? You received t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you t u r n t o the l a s t page? There's a copy 

of a r e t u r n r e c e i p t card. 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t names you and i t ' s signed by — 

A. — my mother. 

Q. By your mother? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. So you had t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you read i t ? 

A. (No response) 

Q. You did not understand t h i s language about the 

op e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. I don't t h i n k anyone who's not f a m i l i a r w i t h the 

d r i l l i n g i n d u s t r y would assume anything d i f f e r e n t l y than I 
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d i d . 

Q. Did you c a l l Cathy Colby and say, I don't 

understand t h i s , what's i t about? 

A. Ms. Colby was so i n c r e d i b l y rude t o me, w i t h such 

profound arrogance, t h a t I d i d not p a r t i c u l a r l y wish t o 

discuss t h i s f u r t h e r w i t h her. She threatened me. 

Q. My question f o r you i s , d i d you ask Ms. Colby f o r 

an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h i s language i n the l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you t e l l her you would not 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n any fashion w i t h your acreage? 

A. I don't r e c a l l saying t h a t . 

Q. Okay. I n a d d i t i o n t o Ms. Colby, d i d you w r i t e a 

l e t t e r t o her i n response t o t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. Did you ask f o r someone on your behalf t o deal 

w i t h Ms. Colby — 

A. No, I d i d not — 

Q. — about the proposal? 

A. — because I d i d n ' t f e e l t h a t t h i s was any k i n d 

of a proposal. 

Q. Okay. Did you look i n the f i r s t paragraph and 

attempt t o see i f you agreed w i t h her c a l c u l a t i o n of the 

net acreage? Up i n the second l i n e i t says 17.755 net 

acres. 
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A. No. 

Q. You d i d n ' t question her about how t h a t 

c a l c u l a t i o n was made? 

A. Well, considering the r e p u t a t i o n of Richardson 

t h a t I had, I was prepared f o r Richardson t o misrepresent 

f a c t s t o me. 

Q. So d i d you check on the o p p o r t u n i t y f o r 

mis r e p r e s e n t a t i o n based upon what you learned i n t h i s 

l e t t e r ? 

A. No, I d i d not, because — 

Q. Did you check — 

A. — Ms. — One of the other t h i n g s t h a t I was t o l d 

was i f — i n what I considered a t h r e a t — was t h a t i f you 

don't cooperate w i t h us, w e ' l l d r i l l t h i s on the 

r e s e r v a t i o n , but t h a t could take many years. So I f e l t 

t h a t many years could have been a long time. 

Q. The w e l l , i n f a c t , was not d r i l l e d on your 

surface, was i t ? 

A. No, but i t was threatened t o be. 

Q. A f t e r t h i s l e t t e r , d i d you then r e c e i v e i n 

November, a f t e r November 16th of the year 2001, what was 

marked as E x h i b i t 5? 

A. I s t h a t e s s e n t i a l l y the same l e t t e r ? I don't 

r e c a l l seeing t h i s l e t t e r . I may have, but I don't r e c a l l 

i t . 
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Q. Would you t u r n t o the l a s t page, the copy of the 

green card? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h a t signature f a m i l i a r t o you? 

A. That's my mailman. 

Q. Okay. Apart from the acreage d i f f e r e n c e , you 

have approximately a claim f o r 45-plus acres? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Richardson's p o s i t i o n i s t h a t i t ' s 33-plus 

acres? 

A. Well, I don't know r e a l l y what t h e i r p o s i t i o n i s . 

Once they s a i d I owned 33 and once they s a i d I had 35. 

Q. Forget about the numbers. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Would you have leased your i n t e r e s t t o Richardson 

i f t he number of acres had agreed w i t h your understanding 

of how many acres you own? 

A. Well, Richardson provided me w i t h n o t h i n g . They 

d i d not l e t me know what they intended t o do, how they 

intended t o do i t , i n what time frame they expected t o do 

i t . I wasn't t o l d anything. 

Q. Did you ask f o r those items? 

A. I don't t h i n k i t ' s mine t o ask. I t h i n k they 

should be presenting t h e i r proposal t o me. 

I t was i n t e r e s t i n g , when I was s i t t i n g i n here 
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l i s t e n i n g t o the other hearing that j u s t went on, Ms. 

Richardson from, I believe, Yates, was t e l l i n g about the 

e f f o r t s that they made to inform people th a t they wanted to 

deal with and what lengths they went t o . None of those 

things were done with me. 

Q. Did you make a request from Richardson to e i t h e r 

one of these l e t t e r s t o more f u l l y inform you of these 

items t h a t are now of concern t o you? 

A. I don't f e e l i t ' s up to me, I believe i t ' s up to 

them to inform me. 

Q. These things are j u s t a one-way st r e e t w i th you, 

aren't they? 

A. Well, I f e e l i t ' s up to them t o inform me, who i s 

not f a m i l i a r with the industry, what they have i n mind. I f 

they're going to make a good-faith e f f o r t t o deal w i t h me, 

they have to educate me to l e t me know what I'm g e t t i n g 

i n t o . 

Q. At t h i s point do you perceive t h a t there s t i l l 

can be an agreement with Richardson? 

A. Well, I'm a l i t t l e leery, but I would hope there 

would be something that would be done, but I don't know. 

I mean, I think t h a t , again, I need to know what 

they're doing, I need to be assured t h a t I have 45 acres, I 

th i n k I need to be compensated properly, and I t h i n k I have 

the r i g h t t o see production records from the w e l l that's — 
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what? — 600 f e e t away, so t h a t I could have some f e e l t o 

make an educated d e c i s i o n as t o what t h i s means t o me. I 

don 11 know what 1s i n my best i n t e r e s t . I don 11 know what a 

lease means. Am I going t o get 35 cents, or am I going t o 

get 35 d o l l a r s ? 

Q. How long have you l i v e d i n Farmington? 

A. I've l i v e d since 1952. 

Q. I t ' s an o i l and gas community, i s i t not? 

A. Well, i t i s n ' t r i g h t now, but i t has been, yes. 

Q. Do you know o i l and gas attorneys? 

A. Do I? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know o i l and gas people w i t h whom you have 

confidence? 

A. Yes, and they t o l d me not t o deal w i t h 

Richardson. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , t h a t ' s i t , t h e r e can be no deal then, 

r i g h t ? 

A. I d i d n ' t say t h a t . That's what I was advised by 

people i n the f i e l d . 

Q. Do you now understand t h a t i f you were t o 

v o l u n t a r i l y e l e c t t o commit your i n t e r e s t t o t h e w e l l , t h a t 

t h a t i s a v o l u n t a r y agreement, would not s u b j e c t you t o 

p e n a l t i e s f o r the d r i l l i n g and completion of t h e w e l l ? 
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A. I understand t h a t , but — 

Q. That's c l e a r t o you now, i s i t not? 

A. Well, what was t o l d t o me i n t h i s l e t t e r — 

You're very f a m i l i a r w i t h o i l and gas — 

Q. Did you ask — 

A. — Mr. Lehrman i s very f a m i l i a r . I am not. 

Q. Did you ask somebody who was? 

A. You d i d not — That i s n ' t the p o i n t . You are t o 

make t h i s c l e a r t o me, so I don't have t o run out an i n c u r 

expense of h i r i n g an o i l and gas at t o r n e y or asking my 

neighbor or anything else. I t i s your o b l i g a t i o n t o make 

i t understandable t o me. 

Q. Did you ask Ms. Colby t o make i t understandable 

t o you? 

A. Oh, I have t o ask someone, Please make t h i s 

understandable t o me? That i s t h e i r o b l i g a t i o n . 

Q. And when you f i n d t h a t t h i s i s not understandable 

t o you, you t h i n k they should have a n t i c i p a t e d the f a c t 

t h a t you d i d n ' t know, and you don't have any o b l i g a t i o n t o 

i n q u i r e t h a t , I don't understand t h i s ? 

A. I t h i n k what I expected was an honest proposal. 

I d i d not get one. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay. No f u r t h e r questions, Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Redirect, Mr. Horner? 
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HORNER: 

Q. Well, i n f a c t , you d i d make a proposal t o 

Richardson yesterday, d i d you not? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And so ge n e r a l l y the nature of t h a t proposal 

would have been t h a t i t encompass your share of the e n t i r e 

45 acres — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — which would be a h a l f share — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and t h a t i t would i n v o l v e a r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t 

of 16 2/3 percent — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and t h a t your p a r t i c i p a t i o n share f o r t h i s 

w e l l be taken out of the working i n t e r e s t , which would be 

the 83 1/3 percent, or whatever i t would be? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i n f a c t , don't you b e l i e v e t h a t t he o f f e r 

t h a t you made yesterday was f a i r and equitable? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And d i d they accept the o f f e r ? 

A. No. 

Q. Did they consider the o f f e r ? 

A. No. 
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Q. Did they want t o discuss the o f f e r ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Was i t your impression t h a t they d i d n ' t 

want t o discuss i t because they were going t o come i n here 

and hammer you f o r 200 percent today — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — a 200-percent nonconsent penalty? 

A. That or more, yes. 

Q. So i s i t your impression t h a t they were not 

d e a l i n g i n good f a i t h ? 

A. Yes. And you know, I f e l t l i k e they were always 

t r y i n g t o t r i c k me. When I asked them i f the w e l l had been 

d r i l l e d , No, i t hadn't. They t o l d me t h a t t h i s was v i r g i n 

t e r r i t o r y , t h a t i t hadn't been d r i l l e d before, and t h i s was 

something new. And I was r e a l l y s u r p r i s e d t o hear t h a t 

because I can see tanks from my farm t h a t are already 

t h e r e , and t h a t doesn't add up. 

And so I — a t no p o i n t — They j u s t kept handing 

me leases. They never s a i d , Would you be i n t e r e s t e d i n 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g , blah, blah, blah. They j u s t s a i d , Here's a 

lease. Each lease had d i f f e r e n t numbers on i t . One day 

i t ' s 33, one day i t ' s 35. And so I r e a l l y f e l t t h a t they 

were not d e a l i n g w i t h me s t r a i g h t . 

Q. Okay. Now, i n your o f f e r yesterday, okay, you 

were o f f e r i n g t h a t your share be taken, or your 
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p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the cost of d r i l l i n g be taken out of 

pro d u c t i o n , were you not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, and w i t h no p e n a l t i e s . 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, t h a t was e s s e n t i a l l y your o f f e r ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. HORNER: Okay, I have nothing f u r t h e r o f t h i s 

witness a t t h i s time, your Honor. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay. F i r s t of a l l , Councilor Fischer, l e t ' s go 

back t o the question of acreage. You had sa i d t h a t you go 

t o t h i s p r o p e r t y every day, and I be l i e v e you s a i d you 

owned i t — you acquired i t from your f a t h e r , who acquired 

i t i n 1960-something — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How long have you owned i t ? 

A. Since the — probably mid-Seventies. 

Q. How long have you been r e g u l a r l y going out there? 

A. Every day since the mid-Seventies, yeah. 

Q. As f a r as the surface i s concerned — 

A. Yes. 
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Q. — I'm t a l k i n g about surface, not minerals — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. — you s a i d something about the w e l l being across 

the r i v e r . I s i t your assumption t h a t your southern 

boundary i s the r i v e r ? 

A. I don't know. I mean, I assume t h a t i t i s , but 

a t one time someone said t h a t i t went t o the middle p o i n t 

o f the r i v e r . So I r e a l l y don't know. But where I saw the 

w e l l being d r i l l e d was d e f i n i t e l y on the r e s e r v a t i o n . 

Q. On the south side? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But you would concede t h a t the south side of the 

r i v e r — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i s the reservation? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, has the r i v e r channel moved since you've 

been — i n the 30 years you've been f a m i l i a r w i t h the 

property? 

A. No. 

Q. I t ' s s t i l l i n e x a c t l y the same place? 

A. Well, I don't know t h a t i t ' s i n e x a c t l y the same 

place — 

Q. F a i r l y close? 

A. — but we haven't had any c a t a s t r o p h i c t h i n g s 
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t h a t would move t h a t r i v e r . 

Q. But you understand the r i v e r channels can move? 

A. Well, they can, but I don't know t h a t they move 

12 acres. 

Q. But i f the r i v e r d i d move, then i t would be a 

question of the law whether your boundary was s t i l l — was 

where the r i v e r moved t o or where the r i v e r was when you 

got the p r o p e r t y , r i g h t ? That would be a question of law 

t h a t some judge would have t o decide? 

A. Probably. 

Q. Okay. Now, going t o the n e g o t i a t i o n s , you had a 

meeting on Monday of t h i s week w i t h the Richardson people? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Was t h a t the f i r s t f ace-to-face meeting you had 

w i t h t h e Richardson people? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then you had another meeting yesterday? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Mr. Richardson, i f I understood him 

c o r r e c t l y , t e s t i f i e d t h a t he was a t the — 

A. Yes, he was. 

Q. — meeting yesterday — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and he — 

A. Yes, he was. 
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Q. Okay. Now, there i s something that — You made a 

proposal, and i f I understand Mr. Richardson's testimony, 

and t o the extent I understand yours — I t h i n k there was a 

misunderstanding between the two of you as to what you were 

proposing, but I'm not sure that I understand your 

testimony. You said you proposed a lease with 1/6 r o y a l t y ; 

i s t h a t correct? 

A. No. 

Q. No? 

A. Well, Mr. Horner — Yes, a 1/6 r o y a l t y , 

consistent with what the Indians are given. 

Q. And what does that mean, as opposed to j u s t 

normally what you would say i s 1/6 royalty? I mean, the 

Indians probably have a long, complicated lease — 

A. Well, they probably do — 

Q. — that t h e i r attorneys have drawn. 

A. — but i t seemed to me f a i r i f they give one 

group — amount, they should give me the same. 

Q. But were you — when you say t h a t , were you 

requesting — That's r e a l l y kind of vague as to what you 

were requesting, t o me. I f you're requesting more than — 

I understand the lease with 1/6 ro y a l t y , t h a t — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Mr. Richardson seemed to be under the impression 

t h a t you were asking f o r a 1/6 ro y a l t y and t h a t you were 
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also asking f o r an i n t e r e s t i n the p r o f i t s of the w e l l 

d e r i v e d from the other 5/6, and I wasn't sure whether t h a t 

was an accurate understanding of what you were asking f o r 

or not, but t h a t seemed t o be h i s understanding, as best I 

understood h i s testimony. Now, was t h a t , i n f a c t , e n t a i l e d 

i n your proposal? 

A. Could I defer t o Mr. Horner on what — 

Q. Sure. 

A. — was a c t u a l l y discussed? 

Q. Sure, sure. 

Have you ever had your p r o p e r t y surveyed? 

A. I t ' s been surveyed many times. 

Q. But have you had your — 

A. Have I — 

Q. Yes. 

A. No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I guess t h a t ' s a l l my 

questions. 

Mr. Stogner? 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. One quick question. You say you have owned t h i s 

p r o p e r t y — or Lot 1, when you say the p r o p e r t y — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — since 1977? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Since you have owned i t , has t h i s p r o p e r t y been a 

p a r t , or have you received any o i l and gas i n t e r e s t from 

other p r o d u c t i o n on the n o r t h side of the r i v e r ? 

A. No. 

Q. How about before then? Do you know anything 

about your mother and — 

A. I would assume no, they — My mother i s s t i l l 

l i v i n g , my f a t h e r i s deceased. But she i s unaware of 

anything. 

Q. So no r o y a l t i e s , no production — 

A. No. 

Q. — income of any kind? 

A. No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l the questions 

I have. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Anything f u r t h e r ? Mr. Jones? 

MR. JONES: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Gentlemen? 

Okay, the witness may stand down. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Horner, were you going t o 

t e s t i f y ? 

MR. HORNER: Yes. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may take the witness stand. 
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MR. HORNER: Okay, l e t me see. Let me b r i n g some 

s t u f f w i t h me here. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May we have a two-minute break? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 1:50 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 2:00 p.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e ' l l go back on the 

reco r d . And f o r the record, Mr. Horner i s c a l l i n g h i m s e l f . 

GARY HORNER. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

BY THE WITNESS: 

MR. HORNER: My name i s Gary Horner, H-o-r-n-e-r. 

I am the a t t o r n e y , I guess now of record, i n t h i s matter 

f o r Ms. Fischer. 

I am also a licensed p r o f e s s i o n a l surveyor i n the 

State of New Mexico. Okay, so a l l these questions you've 

been wanting t o ask, you can get somebody t o ask. 

And so before I jump i n t o t h a t , which was 

probably most of what I wanted t o be t a l k i n g about today, 

anyway f o r my p a r t , the issue has come up w i t h regard t o 

the o f f e r t h a t was made by myself and Ms. Fischer 

yesterday. I t was not made i n w r i t i n g , t h i n g s were 

happening so f a s t , t r y i n g t o get t h i n g s done and t o — t h i s 
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would have been the f i r s t time t h a t we had an o p p o r t u n i t y 

t o make a c o u n t e r o f f e r t o Richardson i n t h i s process. 

The f i r s t face-to-face discussions we had was on 

Monday, and then we were t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out why 3 3 acres, 

why 17 acres, why 45 acres, where a l l t h i s was coming from. 

They were t a l k i n g about, she only had h a l f her mi n e r a l 

r i g h t s . I was spending three days running a l l over the 

county t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out which end was up. 

But then yesterday afternoon, e a r l y a f t e r n o o n , 

f o r t he f i r s t time we made a counterproposal. And t h a t 

counterproposal was t h a t her i n t e r e s t be c a l c u l a t e d on the 

45 acres and t h a t we be loo k i n g a t some s o r t of a 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n agreement as opposed t o a lease. We s a i d we 

were not i n t e r e s t e d i n a lease, and we were not i n t e r e s t e d 

i n s e l l i n g them her mineral r i g h t s . 

And I s a i d t h a t what we wanted t o do was 

c a l c u l a t e i n t o t h i s a r o y a l t y of 16 2/3 percent and t h a t 

her p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the cost of p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n 

t h i s w e l l be taken out of the other 5/6, which then, as I 

understand, even when you go t o compulsory p o o l i n g , t h a t ' s 

the way t h i n g s are done, t h a t t h e r e i s considered t o be a 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , maybe i n the s t a t u t e s , of 1/8, but the 

other 7/8 i s considered t o be the working i n t e r e s t , and 

t h a t t he costs are taxed against t h a t working i n t e r e s t and 

t h a t r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t continues t o be pai d untaxed. 
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That's the proposal we made then, except t h a t i t 

was f o r 1/6 r a t h e r than 1/8. We based the 1/6 on a 

conversation we had j u s t had w i t h a gentleman from t h e BLM 

who s a i d t h a t c u r r e n t l y a l l of the lease t h a t are being 

done w i t h the Indians i n v o l v e a 1/6 r o y a l t y r a t h e r than a 

1/8, up i n t h a t area. 

And i n f a c t , i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , you know, 

th e r e i s a la r g e p r o p o r t i o n involved w i t h t he I n d i a n 

r e s e r v a t i o n . 

We were asking the gentleman from the BLM f o r 

i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h regard t o those I n d i a n leases, f o r 

i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h regard t o the permits associated w i t h 

these p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s , w i t h regard t o pr o d u c t i o n records, 

which he would give us a b s o l u t e l y nothing, saying I n d i a n 

s t u f f i s a l l p r o p r i e t a r y and top secret. So we couldn't 

get any of t h a t . 

But what he d i d say was t h a t c u r r e n t l y a l l o f the 

leases leased i n t h a t area w i t h the I n d i a n t r i b e s are 

c u r r e n t l y being done considering a r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t of 1/6. 

So t h a t was g e n e r a l l y the o f f e r t h a t we made. 

There was a couple of other t h i n g s , l i k e we 

wanted t o a u d i t the records. And the r e may have been one 

or two other minor t h i n g s . But t h a t was g e n e r a l l y — We 

were o f f e r i n g a p a r t i c i p a t i o n agreement w i t h her share t o 

be p a i d from production, w i t h no p e n a l t i e s . And we thought 
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we were being f a i r . 

So t h a t ' s the o f f e r t h a t we made yesterday. 

Now, regarding the survey and the issue of the 

d i f f e r e n c e i n the — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, may we have the 

witness present h i s q u a l i f i c a t i o n s , education, experience 

and c u r r e n t work as a surveyor so t h a t we have t h a t f o r the 

record? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Please. 

THE WITNESS: Okay, I graduated from c o l l e g e i n 

1972 w i t h a BS degree i n e l e c t r i c a l engineering, went t o 

work f o r Arizona Public Service as an e l e c t r i c a l engineer 

i n 1980, '81, I q u i t , s t a r t e d my own company i n Farmington, 

Horner Development and Construction, got a bunch of 

co n t r a c t o r ' s l i c e n s e s . Before I had l e f t APS, I got my 

p r o f e s s i o n a l engineering l i c e n s e , so — i n Arizona. When I 

moved t o New Mexico, I got my p r o f e s s i o n a l engineering 

l i c e n s e i n New Mexico, which was — so b a s i c a l l y i n Arizona 

i t was a PE i n e l e c t r i c a l engineering, i n New Mexico i t was 

a c t u a l l y j u s t a PE. 

MR. KELLAHIN: What's the date of t h a t , do you 

remember? 

THE WITNESS: The f i r s t one i n Arizona was 1976, 

so the PE i n New Mexico would have been by r e c i p r o c i t y i n 

approximately 1982, I b e l i e v e , 1983 maybe. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

137 

But then i t became apparent w i t h some of the 

s t u f f t h a t I was doing and wanted t o get i n t o t h a t I needed 

a c i v i l PE. I ended up, w h i l e I was going t o law school, 

a c t u a l l y , between 1984 and 1986, t a k i n g the c i v i l PE t e s t , 

and now I'm also a c i v i l — r e g i s t e r e d c i v i l engineer i n 

Arizona and New Mexico. 

Along the way i t became apparent t h a t I needed a 

p r o f e s s i o n a l surveying l i c e n s e , so I got t h a t i n Arizona i n 

— I don't remember e x a c t l y , i t was 1985 or 1986. And I 

ended up f i g h t i n g f o r about t e n years w i t h the New Mexico 

board t o be able t o take the t e s t s i n New Mexico and 

f i n a l l y got my New Mexico p r o f e s s i o n a l surveying l i c e n s e i n 

— I t h i n k i t was 1998. 

So t h a t ' s my background i n t h a t regard. 

So then I went t o law school, 1984-86 and was 

admitted t o the bar i n New Mexico and Arizona, i n New 

Mexico i n 1986 and Arizona i n 1987. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Are you c u r r e n t l y p r a c t i c i n g as a 

surveyor? 

THE WITNESS: I'm licensed t o p r a c t i c e , and I — 

Well, I'm a surveyor, I'm an engineer, I'm a lawyer, and I 

do a l i t t l e of a l l of the above. So, you know, t o say am I 

spending 100 percent of my time surveying, no, I'm not. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay, do you have an estimate of 

the percentage time you devote t o t h a t a c t i v i t y ? 
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THE WITNESS: I r e a l l y couldn't t e l l you a t t h i s 

p o i n t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Do you do i t f o r p r i v a t e c l i e n t s ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Do you do i t f o r any of the o i l 

and gas indust r y ? 

THE WITNESS: I have never worked on any o i l and 

gas matter i n my l i f e u n t i l t h i s issue has come up, as a 

surveyor or whatever else. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have no o b j e c t i o n t o h i s 

t e s t i f y i n g . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I b e l i e v e the witness i s 

q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n surveying and, t o the ext e n t i t ' s 

r e l e v a n t , i n law. I n the c o u r t s , we normally d i d n ' t a l l o w 

people t o t e s t i f y as experts i n law on the ground t h a t the 

judge was the best expert around. 

To the extent i t ' s r e l e v a n t he's so q u a l i f i e d . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. So what we have i n t h i s 

matter i s a s i g n i f i c a n t discrepancy between the surface 

acres i n v o l v e d here w i t h regard t o Lot 1. When you look a t 

the chain of t i t l e , i t ' s c o n s i s t e n t l y t a l k i n g about Lot 1 

s p e c i f y i n g 45.47 acres, okay, and t h a t runs c o n s i s t e n t l y 

through the chain of t i t l e . 

Now there has been introduced from the Richardson 

f o l k s here some s o r t of perception t h a t Lot 1 should 
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a c t u a l l y i n v o l v e only 33 or 35 acres or something l i k e 

t h a t . 

And t o support t h a t p o s i t i o n they look a t a 

couple of d i f f e r e n t documents. One i s the Compensatory 

Royalty Agreement, and the other i s the p l a t s t h a t have 

been introduced here so f a r . 

Maybe I should dispose of the Compensatory 

Royalty Agreement f i r s t . Maybe I can do t h a t q u i c k l y . I t 

has been, so f a r , marked f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as Fischer 

E x h i b i t B. And what t h i s agreement i s a c t u a l l y i n v o l v i n g 

i s only 2.24 acres. And apparently i n the course of 

lo o k i n g a t t h i s issue, the BLM found a discrepancy w i t h 

c a l c u l a t i n g acreages t o the median l i n e of the r i v e r or t o 

the — b a s i c a l l y , meander l i n e , which i s the high-water 

l i n e . Okay, so the edge of the r i v e r . 

And e x a c t l y what the problem was here t h a t the 

BLM had come up w i t h I'm not sure, but t h e r e was t h i s 

discrepancy where apparently they were c a l c u l a t i n g acreages 

only t o the edge of the r i v e r , and now they wanted t o do i t 

t o t h e middle of the r i v e r , and so th e r e was t h i s 2.24 

acres. 

I f you w i l l look a t the supplemental map — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: That's E x h i b i t 2-A, I b e l i e v e . 

THE WITNESS: Okay, E x h i b i t 2-A. — you w i l l see 

the 2.24 acres t h a t i s the subject of t h i s Compensatory 
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Royalty Agreement as t h a t piece i n the r i v e r l y i n g n o r t h of 

the median l i n e or e s s e n t i a l l y the middle l i n e of the r i v e r 

as depicted on t h i s map, i n the west h a l f of the northeast 

q u a r t e r . So t h i s map i s j u s t the n o r t h h a l f of t h e 

s u b d i v i s i o n , so i t ' s — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Correct. 

THE WITNESS: — second from the l e f t t h e r e . 

Okay? And so you see a l i t t l e 2.24 acres, or 2.24 i n 

parentheses, t h e r e above the median l i n e , and so i t ' s t h a t 

l i t t l e hached area above the median l i n e t h a t i s the 

sub j e c t of t h i s compensatory agreement. 

So one of the t h i n g s t h a t you w i l l note i s t h a t 

Lot 1 over here i s not immediately adjacent t o t h i s 2.24 

acres a t a l l . So i t i s — t h i s 2.24 has noth i n g t o do w i t h 

Lot l . Okay. I t i s some s o r t of l i t t l e hiccup t h a t they 

found i n d e a l i n g w i t h t h e i r lease t h a t they wanted t o 

s t r a i g h t e n up. And t h a t i s the whole p o i n t of the 

Compensatory Royalty Agreement. 

Now, i n the course of doing t h a t Compensatory 

Royalty Agreement, they were t a l k i n g , apparently, about 

t h i s w e l l i n v o l v i n g the east h a l f of the Section 14. And 

so what they apparently done i n E x h i b i t "A" i s somehow 

t r i e d t o l i s t the d i f f e r e n t p o r t i o n s of the east h a l f of 

Section 14. 

Now, what t h a t r e a l l y has much t o do w i t h t h i s 
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agreement, I guess the only t h i n g i t has t o do w i t h the 

agreement i s , i n order t o be able t o e s t a b l i s h the r a t i o of 

the 2.24 t o the t o t a l number of acres i n the east h a l f . 

Okay. And so t h a t i s r e a l l y the only purpose of E x h i b i t 

"A". 

Now — and then t h i s t h i n g — I'm not sure, 

E x h i b i t "A", who came up w i t h these numbers, but i t wasn't 

t h e i r surveyor. Okay, I'm not sure i f i t was Richardson 

people or BLM people. I t was probably somebody w i t h the 

BLM, but i t i s not i n d i c a t e d on here who came up w i t h i t , 

but i t was obviously not a surveyor. 

Now, t h a t brings us t o the p a r t i c u l a r p l a t s i n 

question. And one of the t h i n g s t h a t you w i l l n o t i c e on 

the b i g — I don't have mine marked here. I t h i n k i t ' s 

2-C, i t ' s the 1999 p l a t . Okay, the dependent — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: That i s 2-B. 

THE WITNESS: 2-B, okay. The Dependent Resurvey 

and Subdivision of Section where they're showing the whole 

s e c t i o n , okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Correct. 

THE WITNESS: As you look a t t h i s map, what they 

were doing, okay, i s t r y i n g t o e s t a b l i s h these meander 

l i n e s f o r the San Juan River on t h i s s e c t i o n as they were 

set out i n 1881. Okay, now t h i s i s a t r i c k , t r y i n g t o 

f i g u r e out where the meander l i n e s of t h i s r i v e r was i n 
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1881. And so they had t o go back t o whatever records they 

could f i n d and see i f they could a c t u a l l y come up w i t h some 

s o r t of evidence of where these l i n e s were i n 1881. 

And t h a t i s the d e p i c t i o n on t h i s p l a t . I s 

Section 14 showing the meander l i n e s as they had been found 

i n 1881? So t h a t i s what i s going on, on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

p l a t . 

Now then, you w i l l n o t i c e over here on t h e r i g h t 

s ide o f t h i s p l a t , t h a t ' s what i t ' s t a l k i n g about they're 

doing. And then i n the t h i r d l i t t l e paragraph down i t 

says, Except as i n d i c a t e d hereon, the l o t t i n g s and area are 

as shown on the p l a t approved August 31, 1882. 

Okay. And so i n t h a t regard you see Lot 1. And 

i n Lot 1 i s the same as i t was i n 1882, and t h e r e i s no 

i n d i c a t i o n of acreage t h e r e , which i s i n d i c a t i n g they 

weren't t r y i n g t o change any k i n d of acreage on t h i s map. 

Now f o r instance, you look over here a t Lot 9, 

immediately t o the l e f t or the west, and i t shows 23.41 

acres. Now then, they are making a change t h e r e . And i n 

f a c t , the 1882 map showed t h i s where i t says Lot 9 now as 

Lot 2. Okay, so they've even changed the l o t numbers. 

And on t h i s next map y o u ' l l f i n d t h a t I b e l i e v e 

where i t says Lot 9 they've changed i t again t o where 

th e y ' r e showing i t as Lot 20. So they're changing the l o t 

numbers around here, except f o r Lot 1. And the reason 
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th e y ' r e not changing Lot 1 i s , once you get a p a t e n t , 

t h a t ' s a done deal and you can't change t h a t . 

Now, what you have here i n the r e s t of t h i s 

s e c t i o n i s a l l BLM or I n d i a n land. And so f a r as i t ' s 

completely government owned, they can draw t h e i r l i n e s 

wherever they want t o draw t h e i r l i n e s , and th e y ' r e not 

impacting anybody. But when you come up t o a boundary w i t h 

somebody else and you s t a r t changing t h a t boundary l i n e , 

then you've got a r e a l problem. 

Now, one of the t h i n g s t h a t you f i n d , r i g h t 

quick, i s , i n the d i f f e r e n c e between the 45 and the 33 

acres — s u b t r a c t i t , you get 12 acres, and m u l t i p l y 12 

acres times 4 3,560 square f e e t per acre. The distance 

east-to-west on t h i s Lot 1 i s about 13 2 0 f e e t , so i f you 

d i v i d e t h a t number by 1320 f e e t , y o u ' l l f i n d t h a t the 

d i f f e r e n c e between the 45 and the 3 3 acres amounts t o a 

movement of one of these east-west boundaries, e i t h e r the 

n o r t h one or the south one. I n t h i s case what th e y ' r e 

assuming i s a movement i n the south boundary of 4 00 f e e t . 

This i s a long ways. Okay. So i t ' s a b i g de a l . 

Now — But what i s being i n d i c a t e d on t h i s map, 

then, and also on the next map i s , t h e r e i s no acreage 

i n d i c a t e d f o r Lot 1, meaning they have no i n t e n t i o n of 

t r y i n g t o change by t h i s survey the acreage i n t h a t Lot 1. 

And so they are t r y i n g t o re-look a t what's going on here 
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i n the r e s t of the section, and where you see a l o t number 

and the number underneath i t , the number underneath i t i s 

t h e i r newly calculated acreage f o r that p a r t i c u l a r l o t . 

Now, you were asking about the l i t t l e numbers 

along the sides, okay. And so l i k e i n the southeast 

corner, along the east l i n e , i t says 39.72. Well, that's 

not feet. That would be a r e a l l y l i t t l e section. Okay — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, I guess I stand corrected 

on t h a t . Those are rods, aren't they? 

THE WITNESS: Well, they're chains. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Chains. 

THE WITNESS: Okay, and so a chain i s 66 feet . 

And so — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I've dealt with those 

before, I j u s t wasn't — 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, w e l l , even surveyors have t o 

get the books out to figure out what they're t a l k i n g about 

here. But the BLM s t i l l uses chains as the numbers tha t 

they put on t h e i r maps. And so one chain being about 66 

feet, so y o u ' l l have 80 chains i n a mile or about 40 chains 

i n a hal f a mile. 

And so then where you're showing 39.72, one of 

the f i r s t things you're going t o note i s , w e l l , i t ' s j u s t a 

l i t t l e b i t smaller than a mile through there. Okay. Well, 

that's a l i t t l e b i t smaller than a hal f a mile, and where 
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they've equally subdivided i t , then you're going t o end up 

with a section that's actually j u s t a b i t smaller than a 

mile square. So anyway, that's what you're looking at 

there. 

Now, what I would l i k e to show you here t o 

substantiate some of the s t u f f I'm t a l k i n g about, about not 

changing the acreage, and number one, the b i b l e t h a t the 

BLM surveyors use, or the surveyors of the public land, i s 

c a l l e d the Manual o f Surveying I n s t r u c t i o n s t h a t was 

published i n 1973. 

And so i f I could introduce t h i s — and I'm not 

even sure I can wr i t e on t h i s and I can see i t . I th i n k my 

next one i s Exhibit D. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, I'd love f o r you t o 

introduce i t . I've wished I had a copy of that f o r a long 

time. 

THE WITNESS: This i s not the whole t h i n g , t h i s 

i s j u s t excerpts of the part that's kind of relevant here, 

but unfortunately i t ' s kind of t h i c k , so... 

Now, one of the — the p a r t i c u l a r issues t h a t 

we're t a l k i n g about here, what I've done i s copied the 

cover, the t i t l e page, the table of contents so that you 

can kind of track what's going on and the relevant 

sections. The f i r s t part i s about meandering, which I 

don't t h i n k we need t o r e a l l y get i n t o today. But anybody 
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t h a t wants t o go home and study t h i s book i s welcome t o . 

On through here y o u ' l l see a t page 145 i s a 

Chapter 6 on resurveys, okay. Now then, so what t h i s i s 

g e n e r a l l y going t o t a l k about, i n a dependent resurvey what 

the y ' r e t r y i n g t o do i s go out and f i n d the — what was 

i n i t i a l l y intended t o be the corners as i t was o r i g i n a l l y 

surveyed. 

And so i n 1881 t h i s was a r e a l t r i c k . They were 

throw i n g rocks out there f o r s e c t i o n corners and sometimes 

b l a z i n g t r e e s and, you know, s c r a t c h i n g t h i n g s on sandstone 

and t h i s s o r t of s t u f f . So t o f i n d the o r i g i n a l corner i s 

a b i t of a t r i c k . But you t r y t o f i n d t h a t . 

And then as they got up i n t o t he 1950s they 

s t a r t e d s e t t i n g out the monuments, the brass caps t h a t 

you've probably seen around. And so as they resurvey 

t h i n g s i n l a t e r years, they w i l l be s e t t i n g the brass caps 

where they go out and resurvey some of t h i s s t u f f . 

But the t r i c k i s not t o s t r a i g h t e n out s e c t i o n 

l i n e s or anything e l s e ; i t ' s t o f i g u r e out where they 

i n i t i a l l y s et the s e c t i o n corners and t o resurvey i t from 

t h e r e . Now then, i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case th e y ' r e a l s o 

l o o k i n g a t the issues of the r i v e r . 

But one of the t h i n g s t h a t y o u ' l l f i n d here on 

page 146 i s a discussion of j u r i s d i c t i o n w i t h regard t o 

these resurveys. And over i n the bottom r i g h t - h a n d corner, 
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the l a s t paragraph, i t says, "The Bureau of Land Management 

has exclusive j u r i s d i c t i o n over a l l matters pertaining t o 

surveys and resurveys a f f e c t i n g the public lands." Okay, 

they don't have any j u r i s d i c t i o n over pr i v a t e s t u f f . 

"As between owners of lands, the t i t l e t o which 

has passed from the United States, f i n a l determination i n 

the matter of f i x i n g the position of disputed land 

boundaries rests with the loc a l courts of competent 

j u r i s d i c t i o n . " Which means you can't change a boundary 

with a survey. Okay? I f they decide that t h i s i s a big 

enough issue that they want to do something about i t , the 

only way they're going to change the boundary i s by going 

t o court. 

So — Or generally when a surveyor looks at a 

boundary c o n f l i c t , one of the things they t e l l them i s , you 

can go out and you can get a voluntary agreement between 

adjoining land owners, exchange some deeds, t h a t s o r t of 

th i n g , or basically go to court. This i s your quiet t i t l e 

s u i t i n many instances, t o f i g h t about where the boundary 

should be. 

And so what t h i s i s saying, then, i s , the survey 

i s not going t o change anything when i t comes t o a boundary 

of p r i v a t e land. I f they r e a l l y want t o change i t , they've 

got t o go to court and get an order changing the boundary. 

So t h i s survey doesn't do that . 
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Now then, okay, on the next page, page 147, close 

t o the top of the right-hand side, about f o u r l i n e s down, 

i t s t a r t s out, "The Act of March 3, 1909, (35 S t a t . 845), 

as amended June 25, 1910, (36 S t a t . 884; 43 U.S.C. 772) 

reads i n p a r t as f o l l o w s : 'That no such resurvey or 

retracement s h a l l be so executed as t o impair t h e bona f i d e 

r i g h t s or claims of any claimant, entryman, or owner of 

lands a f f e c t e d by such resurvey or retracement.' The 

r i g h t s of claimants are t o be s i m i l a r l y p r o t e c t e d under the 

p r o v i s i o n s of the Act of September 21, 1918, (40 S t a t . 965; 

43 U.S.C. 773)." 

Then the next paragraph, "6-13. Bona f i d e r i g h t s 

are those acquired i n good f a i t h under the law." 

Under "6-14. The basic p r i n c i p l e s of p r o t e c t i n g 

bona f i d e r i g h t s are the same i n e i t h e r the dependent or 

the independent resurvey. Each i s intended t o show the 

o r i g i n a l p o s i t i o n of entered or patented lands i n c l u d e d i n 

t h e o r i g i n a l d e s c r i p t i o n . " 

A l i t t l e b i t f a r t h e r down i n t h a t paragraph the 

l a s t sentence says, "There i s no l e g a l a u t h o r i t y f o r 

s u b s t i t u t i n g the methods of an independent resurvey i n 

di s r e g a r d of i d e n t i f i e d evidence of the o r i g i n a l survey." 

And then paragraph 6-15 j u s t below t h a t , "The 

p o s i t i o n of a t r a c t of land, described by l e g a l 

s u b d i v i s i o n s , i s a b s o l u t e l y f i x e d by the o r i g i n a l corners 
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and other evidences of the o r i g i n a l survey and not by 

occupation or improvements, or by the l i n e s of a resurvey 

which do not f o l l o w the o r i g i n a l . " 

Then the l a s t sentence s t a r t i n g on t h a t page i s , 

"Under fundamental law the corners of the o r i g i n a l survey 

are unchangeable." Okay. 

And again, then, on page 149, i t s t a r t s o f f a 

d i s c u s s i o n of The Dependent Resurvey. Paragraph "6-25. 

The dependent resurvey i s designed t o r e s t o r e the o r i g i n a l 

c o n d i t i o n s of the o f f i c i a l survey according t o t h e r e c o r d . " 

Now then, when you understand these concepts and 

you look a t what they were doing on t h i s p l a t , okay, then 

s t u f f h o p e f u l l y w i l l s t a r t t o be a l i t t l e c l e a r e r . And 

what you have then i s , they have made no e f f o r t whatsoever 

t o t r y t o change any acreage or any boundary associated 

w i t h Lot Number 1, a patented piece of p r o p e r t y . Okay? 

They have no a u t h o r i t y t o do i t , and they have not t r i e d t o 

do i t , i n t h i s document. Okay. 

So we a c t u a l l y have no c o n f l i c t w i t h the BLM. 

They are not t a k i n g a p o s i t i o n t h a t they have changed 

anything. Okay? 

Now, i f you look a t the supplemental p l a t , which 

i s j u s t the n o r t h h a l f of the subject s e c t i o n , you w i l l see 

again t h a t here now they're t r y i n g t o draw the new p o s i t i o n 

of the San Juan River. But again, Lot Number 1, they are 
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not t r y i n g t o say that the acreage has changed at a l l . And 

down towards the bottom you have Lot 15, which again they 

are not t r y i n g t o change the acreage of at a l l , which i s 

l y i n g south of the meander l i n e from 1881, the meander l i n e 

being the high-water l i n e at that p a r t i c u l a r time. 

Now, what they have done i s , above tha t they have 

indicated accreted land, i n parentheses, 29.70. Okay. So 

they are in d i c a t i n g what they think they found, which we 

would dispute i f i t ever went to court, but what they thi n k 

they found at that p a r t i c u l a r time was tha t the land 

between t h i s meander l i n e and the l e f t bank, or the south 

bank of the San Juan River, i s accreted land. Okay? And 

so they are p u t t i n g down there what they t h i n k they have 

found, that that's 29.7. 

But what they are not t r y i n g t o do i s indicate 

t h a t the ownership or the boundaries have changed. They 

are showing the evidence of what they found i n the f i e l d , 

but they are not at a l l t r y i n g t o indicate t h a t there i s 

any ownership change. 

And what you see there i n that regard, where i t 

says "accreted land", they are not i n d i c a t i n g a l o t number. 

Okay. So the Lot Number 15 down there below remains 

unchanged, the acreage remains unchanged. Lot Number 1 

above remains unchanged, and the acreage remains unchanged. 

Okay. So at t h i s point the BLM i s not even 
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coming up and arguing that that has changed. Now, maybe 

some- — the BLM surveyor anyway. 

Now, maybe somebody i n the BLM, looking at t h i s 

map, started taking acreages o f f of here someplace and 

doing things with them, and one of the documents t h a t they 

submitted today was a bunch of handwritten calculations on 

a p l a t t h a t somebody had t r i e d t o do that . I t wasn't a 

surveyor, and i t wasn't somebody who understands the law i n 

these issues. The surveyors did not t r y t o do th a t . 

So we actually have no dispute with the BLM over 

the boundary of t h i s property. 

Now, one of the things you also f i n d i n here that 

I have — j u s t f o r the fun of i t — Once we've established 

t h a t nothing has changed, then we r e a l l y don't have t o get 

i n t o any of t h i s s t u f f . But i f we ever got i n t o a dispute 

w i t h the BLM, one of the things that you f i n d on the USGS 

maps i s , the boundary of the r i v e r runs r i g h t next t o t h i s 

w e l l s i t e . 

When I was out there two days ago, you see r i g h t 

next t o the wel l s i t e i s a fence, a l i n e of brush, i t drops 

o f f , and i t ' s rocks. Okay. And when you read i n here how 

you determine the high-water mark, that's how you determine 

the high-water mark, where the water has l e f t no 

vegetation, which indicates that the high-water mark i s 

r i g h t up by t h i s well s i t e , and not at a l l where they're 
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i n d i c a t i n g i t t o be. 

Also on page 172 o f , again, the Manual o f 

Survey ing I n s t r u c t i o n s , i t t a l k s about a v u l s i o n as opposed 

t o a c c r e t i o n , what they have i n d i c a t e d as accreted land. 

So accreted land i s going t o be the gradual d e p o s i t i o n over 

time of land. 

Avulsion, i t says i n Paragraph 7-71, "'Avulsion' 

i s the sudden and r a p i d change of channel of a boundary 

stream, or a comparable change i n some other body of water 

forming a boundary, by which an area of land i s c u t o f f . 

An i s l a n d may r e s u l t or the avulsed land may become 

attached t o the opposite shore." 

7-72 says, " I n the case of Nebraska v. Iowa, 143 

U.S. 359 (1892), the Supreme Court h e l d : 'When grants of 

land border on running water, and the banks are changed by 

t h e gradual process known as a c c r e t i o n , the r i p a r i a n 

owner's boundary l i n e s t i l l remains the stream; but when 

the boundary stream suddenly abandons i t s o l d bed and seeks 

a new course by the process known as a v u l s i o n , the boundary 

remains as i t was, i n the centre of the o l d channel: and 

t h i s r u l e a p p l i e s t o a State when a r i v e r forms one of i t s 

boundary l i n e s . ' " 

So i f they should ever decide t h a t they want t o 

use t h i s survey and come a t Ms. Fischer w i t h some s o r t of 

resurvey over t h i s p r o perty, they have a l o t of f a c t u a l 
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circumstances t o deal w i t h i n c o u r t . 

But what they have not t r i e d t o do by any of t h i s 

survey i s i n d i c a t e t h a t t h a t boundary has changed or should 

change. 

So t h e r e f o r e , when you look a t what Richardson 

has done, and based t h e i r i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t Ms. Fischer's 

p r o p e r t y has shrunk from 45 acres t o 33 based on t h i s p l a t , 

based on E x h i b i t "A" t o t h i s Compensatory Royalty Agreement 

or anything l i k e t h a t , u n f o r t u n a t e l y , they j u s t don't know 

what they're doing. And whoever d i d — I f somebody a t the 

BLM advised them t h a t t h a t ' s what they should be doing, 

they d i d n ' t know what they were doing e i t h e r . The 

surveyors d i d not t r y t o do t h a t , and know they can't do 

t h a t , so... 

Anything else here? Let me see. 

Oh, and i n t h a t regard, one of the t h i n g s I have 

i s , I can show you a l l the deeds i n the chain o f t i t l e t h a t 

show c o n s i s t e n t l y 45 acres. I have here a copy, and I only 

have one, and so I can go away and make more copies and 

send them t o you. But f o r r i g h t now, I ' l l be happy t o show 

them t o you. 

I t ' s an assessor's map p l a t showing Lot 1 t h a t I 

d i d August 19th — so t h a t was Monday or Tuesday — again 

i n d i c a t i n g Lot 1 — here's a p a r c e l number — Mary Fischer, 

book and page number, 45.47 acres, which i s s t i l l being 
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shown by the San Juan County Assessor. And the t i t l e 

o p i n i o n t h a t they r e f e r r e d t o , I don't know how they can 

come up w i t h anything other than 45.47 acres. 

This p a r t i c u l a r survey p l a t has not made i t t o 

the Assessor's O f f i c e or the County Clerk's O f f i c e , and I 

don't expect i t t o . There's no reason f o r i t t o go over 

t h e r e . They're not t r y i n g t o change any p r i v a t e land 

boundaries. 

I can leave t h a t w i t h you or I — maybe I should 

take i t and make — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Whatever you p r e f e r . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. And so l e t me c a l l t h i s 

Fischer's E x h i b i t E. At t h i s time I would move f o r the 

admission of Fischer's E x h i b i t s A through E. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, i f you're going t o o f f e r 

Fischer's E x h i b i t E i n evidence, I t h i n k you should leave 

i t w i t h us — 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — so the c o u r t r e p o r t e r w i l l 

have the copy and you can withdraw i t f o r the purpose of 

copying i f you f e e l you need t o do so. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. Now, a c t u a l l y , I have one 

t h a t has not been c e r t i f i e d , and so I can — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, t h a t would be acceptable 
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f o r --

MR- KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I know Mr. Horner 

doesn't l i v e here. I'm asking t o withdraw some of the 

other e x h i b i t s t o d u p l i c a t e them — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — I'm happy t o add h i s t o the 

p i l e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, t h a t w i l l be good. 

THE WITNESS: Y o u ' l l d u p l i c a t e them? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, I ' l l — I f i t ' s a l l r i g h t 

w i t h you, I ' l l take care of i t . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. I ' l l leave t h i s one f o r you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Does t h a t conclude your 

t e s t i m o n y - i n - c h i e f , Mr. Horner? 

THE WITNESS: I be l i e v e i t does. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, cross-examination, Mr. 

Kel l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Horner, I don't have e x t r a copies of the 

maps, so I'm going t o p u l l out a set. I want t o show you 

E x h i b i t 2-B. When you look a t t h a t map, who i s the author 

of t h i s ? I s t h i s a published map t h a t the p u b l i c can r e l y 

on? 
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A. Well, t h i s w i l l be a map t h a t was prepared by — 

whatever t h i s guy's name i s here, t h a t works f o r the BLM. 

And you w i l l be able t o go t o the BLM and get a copy of 

t h i s map, i f t h a t ' s what you're asking. 

Q. Would you as a surveyor r e l y upon t h i s map as a 

resource t o — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — do your i n v e s t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f h i s r e p r e s e n t a t i o n i s , he's a t t e m p t i n g t o 

l o c a t e the San Juan River back i n the 1880-whatever date, 

would t h a t be a u t h o r i t a t i v e f o r you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s th e r e any way t o take t h a t map and c a l c u l a t e 

how many acres are associated w i t h what's shown as Lot 1? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you done t h a t ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. What would be r e q u i r e d f o r a surveyor such as you 

t o make t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

A. Well, you can — I n the olden days, you'd break 

i t i n t o r e ctangles and t r i a n g l e s and c a l c u l a t e the area of 

each. Today what you'd probably do i s j u s t draw i t on 

Autocad, which w i l l — ask i t what's the area, and i t w i l l 

t e l l you what the area i s . I t ' l l c a l c u l a t e i t f o r you r e a l 
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quick. 

Q. Can you do t h i s i n another way by t a k i n g the 

northwest quarter of the s e c t i o n and determining how many 

acres are i n the northwest quarter? 

A. You could do the same t h i n g t o determine the 

acreage i n the northwest q u a r t e r , yes. 

Q. Could you do t h a t and then by s u b t r a c t i o n get t o 

how many acres are l e f t f o r Lot 1? 

A. The — Well, i n f a c t , you could do t h a t , yes, 

r i g h t . 

Q. 2-A i s t h i s BLM resurvey document t h a t we're 

l o o k i n g a t f o r 1999. 

A. Right. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And there's another one t h a t ' s got 

the handwritten b a l l o o n on i t w i t h the footages somewhere. 

Did we put t h a t i n your p i l e ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: No, t h i s i s Mr. Horner's 

e x h i b i t , the assessor's p l a t . 

THE WITNESS: What are you l o o k i n g f o r ? I don't 

t h i n k I have — 

MR. KELLAHIN: We're l o o k i n g a t t h i s , t h a t ' s 

got — 

THE WITNESS: — the numbers on i t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: — the numbers on i t . 

THE WITNESS: I don't — 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: I brought i t back down. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t d i d n ' t come back down. That's 

one of our e x h i b i t s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I brought i t back down. 

MR. KELLAHIN: You admitted i t f o r a l i m i t e d 

purpose. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, we d i d , I remember t h a t 

document, and I don't — No, I don't see i t around here. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k I can ask the questions 

independent of i t . I t may be u p s t a i r s , but... 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k I — Maybe we ought t o 

stop and get the map so he doesn't have t o guess on what 

was s a i d . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, check u p s t a i r s anyway. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 2:40 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 2:45 p.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, we're ready t o go back on 

the r e c o r d . Let us proceed. 

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, j u s t one quick 

housekeeping matter. I t was brought t o my a t t e n t i o n t h a t I 

had come up w i t h two E x h i b i t D's, and so the second one of 

those i s the Manual o f Surveying I n s t r u c t i o n s. I have 

since added an E x h i b i t E, which i s the assessor's map. I f 
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I could, without objection, change Fischer's Exhibit D, the 

Manual o f Surveying I n s t r u c t i o n s , t o Fischer's E x h i b i t F, I 

t h i n k maybe that w i l l make things a l i t t l e clearer. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, that w i l l be acceptable. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Kellahin, you may resume 

your cross-examination. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Brooks. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) Mr. Horner, I gave you a copy 

of the 1999 survey. Do you have that i n f r o n t of you? 

A. I have a copy of the 1999, but I thi n k the one 

you gave me i s over there. 

Q. We were discussing various ways t o go about 

ca l c u l a t i n g the acreage i n Lot 1. Mr. Lehrman t e s t i f i e d 

t h a t the source of Exhibit 2-C had been the BLM, and I want 

to discuss with you the methodology tha t t h i s person may 

have used. 

A. Now, Exhibit 2-C being — Okay, you found the one 

with the calculations on, okay. 

Q. Same document, i t ' s got the calculations. 

A. A l l r i g h t . Okay, go ahead. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm t r y i n g to fi g u r e out how the BLM 

personnel determined the acreage f o r what they contend i s 

i n Lot 1. Can you describe f o r me the methodology that 

they went through? 
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A. Well, I haven't st u d i e d i t t o be able t o r e a l l y 

t e s t i f y t o what they d i d , and I c e r t a i n l y can't t e s t i f y 

t h a t what they thought they d i d , they d i d c o r r e c t l y . 

Q. No, I'm not asking you t o make — 

A. But — 

Q. — any judgment about how c o r r e c t i t i s . 

A. But j u s t i n having scanned t h i s the other day, 

what they — They have taken, apparently a note from the 

bottom of t h i s E x h i b i t 2-A t h a t you've got here, which i s 

the supplemental p l a t from 2001. I n t h a t note i t says, I n 

Section 14 the t o t a l upland area n o r t h of the 2 000 r i g h t 

bank i s 108.55 acres, and the t o t a l r i v e r b e d n o r t h of the 

c a l c u l a t e d 2000 medial l i n e i s 9.62 acres. 

So what they have apparently done i s s t a r t e d out 

w i t h 108.55 acres n o r t h of the r i v e r . Okay. And then they 

have t r i e d t o come up w i t h the other acres per each 

i n d i v i d u a l l o t and s u b t r a c t i t from 108.55, and whatever i s 

l e f t over they say i s Lot Number 1. 

Q. I'm s o r r y , i t ' s what? 

A. I s Lot Number 1. Okay, i t ' s — 

Q. The number they c a l c u l a t e d , the 35 we've been 

t a l k i n g about? 

A. And I'm assuming t h a t ' s what they d i d t o come up 

w i t h 35.51. 

Q. Do you know how many acres are i n the east h a l f 
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of the section? 

A. Not — 

Q. This document — 

A. — r i g h t o f f . 

Q. — shows t h a t i t ' s s l i g h t l y more than 320 acres. 

A. I t says s l i g h t l y more than 326. But I don't 

know. 

Q. You've not checked the s i z e of the spacing u n i t 

i n t o t a l i t y ? 

A. No, and a c t u a l l y when you s i t down and look a t 

i t , t h e dimensions on the p l a t , the Dependent Resurvey and 

Sub d i v i s i o n of Section, the 1991 p l a t , are i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

the o u t s i d e boundaries are on the order of 39 chains, which 

means they're less than 4 0 chains, which means the t o t a l 

area o f the s e c t i o n , then, would be less than one square 

m i l e , which would mean t h a t the t o t a l acreage i n t h e 

s e c t i o n would be less than 640, which would mean t h e t o t a l 

acreage i n a h a l f s e c t i o n would be less than 320. 

And so t o come up w i t h a c a l c u l a t i o n o f more than 

32 0, j u s t by q u i c k l y l o o k i n g a t the e x t e r i o r dimensions of 

t h i s s e c t i o n , r e a l l y doesn't p r o p e r l y — 

Q. So t h a t , i n your quick judgment, i t appears t h a t 

the s e c t i o n doesn't compute t o be a standard-size section? 

A. I t ' s smaller than a r e g u l a r s e c t i o n . So you 

wouldn't have a h a l f s e c t i o n being l a r g e r than a standard 
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h a l f s e c t i o n . 

Q. I s t h e r e any way t o change the geometry of the 

square by s l i g h t l y skewing i t so t h a t when you drew the 

h a l f l i n e you could get more than 320 — 

A. No. 

Q. — acres? I t would not happen? 

A. No. 

Q. So there's something wrong w i t h the c a l c u l a t i o n 

as t o the h a l f section? 

A. Right. Assuming t h a t the s t u f f on the BLM map i s 

c o r r e c t , which... 

Q. Okay. We're t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out the t o t a l 

acreage i n the h a l f s e c t i o n — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — and t o disburse costs and revenue, disburse 

costs — c o l l e c t costs and disburse revenue, based upon the 

s i z e of t h a t section? 

A. That's the east h a l f t h a t you're t a l k i n g about. 

Q. Whatever i t i s , the east h a l f . 

A. For the w e l l . 

Q. Right. 

A. Okay, a l l r i g h t . 

Q. And the spacing u n i t s i z e , the standard i s 320, 

s u b j e c t t o v a r i a t i o n s ? 

A. Right. 
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Q. And then what we want to do i s not exceed 100 

percent, so i f the BLM has taken 10 acres from Ms. Fischer 

and added i t t o t h e i r p i l e , that may be what has happened? 

A. Well, no, i t i s not what has happened. The BLM 

has not taken 10 acres from Ms. Fischer, and they have not 

indicated on these maps that they were taking i t or 

intending t o take i t . 

Q. I said that wrong. 

A. Okay. 

Q. This calculation makes the assumption that by 

subtraction, i f you w i l l , taking out the Navajo lands, 

we're only leaving Ms. Fischer with 35 acres? 

A. Well, t h i s calculation apparently s t a r t s o f f with 

the 108.55 f i g u r e , which i s the figure of — and you can't 

derive t h a t number from t h i s p l a t . Those dimensions aren't 

there. So where the 108.55 comes from i s maybe — I don't 

know i f they have some f i e l d notes or something someplace, 

but the — that number cannot be recreated from looking at 

t h i s p l a t , the 108.55. 

But what they have done, to s t a r t w i t h , 108.55, 

i s t o determine the t o t a l amount of land north of the 

r i v e r . And so i n t h i s l i n e of thi n k i n g that whoever was 

doing t h i s that wrote these numbers on the page and — the 

handwritten numbers — inherent i n that methodology i s 

assuming tha t the r i v e r i s going t o be the boundary between 
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Ms. Fischer's property and the r e s e r v a t i o n . Okay. The 

r i v e r as portrayed on t h i s p l a t . 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. Okay. And t h a t assumption r i g h t t h e r e , where 

they s t a r t e d t o get the 108.55, i s i n e r r o r . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Okay. Because t h a t assumes t h a t the boundary has 

changed. And t h a t ' s what I was t r y i n g t o e x p l a i n before, 

t h a t — 

Q. Well, I understand your p o s i t i o n about t h a t . I 

was j u s t t r y i n g t o see the methodology by which the BLM i s 

making the c a l c u l a t i o n i n s o f a r as the Navajo lands are 

concerned, and then perhaps by s u b t r a c t i o n g i v i n g Ms. 

Fischer less share than she believes she i s e n t i t l e d t o . 

A. Well, okay, there's a couple t h i n g s wrong w i t h 

your statement t h a t you j u s t s a i d , and t h a t i s , number one, 

there's nothing on here where they're t r y i n g t o determine 

the Navajo lands. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Okay. They have not t r i e d t o determine t h e area 

south of the r i v e r , okay. They have not t r i e d t o change a 

boundary between the BLM and the I n d i a n r e s e r v a t i o n , okay. 

They have not t r i e d t o do t h a t . And they have — On t h i s 

map, t h e r e i s no i n d i c a t i o n t h a t they were going t h e r e . 

They were t r y i n g t o represent where they thought 
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the r i v e r was. Okay. That's l i k e a surveyor goes out, and 

one of the f i r s t t h i n g s he's t r y i n g t o do i s f i g u r e out the 

evidence on the ground. Okay. I f he can f i n d something 

t h a t appears t o be a monument, he wants t o f i g u r e out where 

t h a t monument i s and probably shoot i t , t i e i t t o other 

t h i n g s . I f he f i n d s a fence t h a t could p o t e n t i a l l y be 

considered a boundary, he wants t o shoot i t and i n d i c a t e on 

h i s p l a t where the fence i s , versus any other monuments you 

have. 

And so anything t h a t may be r e l e v a n t i n the 

t h i n g s he's t r y i n g t o do, he's going t o t r y t o represent on 

h i s map. 

And so apparently one of the t h i n g s t h a t they 

have t r i e d t o do i s f i g u r e out where the r i v e r i s . And 

t h a t ' s what they're t r y i n g t o do, i s f i g u r e out where the 

r i v e r i s . They're not t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out boundaries, 

t h e y ' r e j u s t r e p r e s e n t i n g where the r i v e r i s i n t h e i r mind. 

Q. What map should I u t i l i z e , then, f o r the east 

h a l f of the s e c t i o n t h a t would honor your o p i n i o n about Ms. 

Fischer's 45 acres and show the balance of the acreage f o r 

d i s t r i b u t i o n t o others? 

A. The o r i g i n a l 1881 p l a t , which as I was reading 

out of the Manual o f Surveying I n s t r u c t i o n s, i s — what you 

t r y t o do whenever you resurvey something i s go back t o the 

o r i g i n a l corners, okay. And what they — i n i t i a l l y — 
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Q. We have t h a t before you, don't we? We have t h i s 

one? 

A. Well, and what they i n i t i a l l y t r i e d t o do, yeah, 

the meander l i n e s , 1881 meander l i n e s , are shown on the 

supplemental p l a t , which i s t h e , apparently, primary 

purpose of the 1999 p l a t , i s t o r e - e s t a b l i s h the meander 

l i n e s as found i n 1881. And those being — t r y i n g t o r e ­

e s t a b l i s h those, those having a bearing on the boundary 

between Ms. Fischer's property and the BLM. That needs t o 

be determined before you go any f a r t h e r . That's what i s 

going t o determine your property boundaries. 

Q. Let me ask you f o r your suggestion. I f the 

Examiner says t h i s boundary problem w i t h the BLM i s ours t o 

solve, how do we go about s o l v i n g i t ? 

A. There i s no problem t o solve. 

Q. So we would j u s t show them t h a t she has t i t l e t o 

the 45 acres — 

A. Right. 

Q. — w e ' l l show them the 1888 map, the base map, 

and we•re done? 

A. Show them her Lot 1, 45.47 acres, has not 

changed, and whatever was being used f o r the I n d i a n lands 

i n your agreements and s t u f f before t h i s t h a t was based on 

the 1881 determinations, and you're done. 

Q. Okay. 
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A. That's i t . 

Q. Have you dealt with the BLM over boundaries along 

the San Juan River? 

A. Not s p e c i f i c a l l y , no. 

Q. I'm t r y i n g to avoid paying more than 100 percent. 

So i f we honor Ms. Fischer's 45 acres, present t h i s t o the 

BLM and say they're inducing a problem i n t o our spacing 

u n i t t h a t you believe, and perhaps we now believe, i s not 

there, you f i x your f i l e s ? 

A. Well, I don't think you're introducing a problem. 

I don't think the BLM has done t h i s t o you. I don't see 

any place here that indicates that the BLM i s saying th a t 

the Indian lands have increased, okay? So th a t I don't see 

where the BLM i s ind i c a t i n g that i n t h i s east h a l f of the 

section there has been a change of boundaries. Okay. 

And so inherent i n your concern here i s the 

concept th a t t h i s p l a t or something has changed something, 

and you don't want to give the Indians something and not 

take something away from Ms. Fischer. But i n f a c t , nothing 

has changed. I t a l l remains the same. So... 

Q. Let's assume that the BLM doesn't see i t as a 

problem and agree with you that we ought to honor her 4 5 

acres. I f we do that, i s there an agreement between Ms. 

Fischer and Richardson on the other issues? We would have 

to t a l k about the royalty percentage. She wants a s i x t h , 
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and I t h i n k we have o f f e r e d an e i g h t h , so there's a 

d i f f e r e n c e t h e r e . 

And the other d i f f e r e n c e would be records, 

a u d i t i n g and p a r t i c i p a t i n g based upon t a k i n g her share of 

pr o d u c t i o n costs out of f u t u r e p r o d u c t i o n w i t h o u t a 

pe n a l t y . 

A. Are we n e g o t i a t i n g now? 

Q. Now, s i r , I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o see what the 

p o s i t i o n i s . I f the land problem goes away, i s t h e r e a 

s o l u t i o n , i s th e r e a deal? 

A. Well, I mean, i t k i n d of looked l i k e yesterday 

t h a t I got blown away and we were headed f o r t h i s hearing 

today, and here we are i n the hearing. So I'm not sure i f 

n e g o t i a t i o n s are an o p t i o n . 

Maybe you want t o take a p o s i t i o n t h a t based on 

the o f f e r we made yesterday you t h i n k you can get t o an 

agreement and you'd l i k e t o have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o do t h a t 

by t a l k i n g t o the OCD f o l k s here. I don't know. But — 

Q. A l l I'm suggesting i s , the Examiner normally 

f i n d s t h a t the p a r t i e s can't agree, and then he uses the 

p o l i c e powers t o i n v o l u n t a r i l y commit them. And I'm 

suggesting, i s th e r e a need t o continue the discussions i f 

the 4 5-35 acreage disappears? 

A. A l l I know i s , we were the ones who made the l a s t 

o f f e r and were t o l d no. So... 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Well, Mr. Horner, you keep t e l l i n g me t h a t 

n o t h i n g has changed, and you may be r i g h t . But I'm not 

sure. 

F i r s t of a l l , l e t me go back t o your c r e d e n t i a l s . 

I n your law p r a c t i c e , i s p a r t of your law p r a c t i c e doing 

opinions on t i t l e s ? 

A. I may have done one, but I mean, i t ' s not 

something t h a t I — 

Q. I t ' s not something you do f r e q u e n t l y ? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But I know t h a t you're f a m i l i a r w i t h 

t h e d o c t r i n e of a c c r e t i o n and av u l s i o n because you j u s t 

quoted t o me the d e s c r i p t i o n of t h a t d o c t r i n e t h a t appears 

on page 172 of the BLM's manual. 

A. Right. 

Q. And you d i d not read the sentence — and l e t me 

say t h a t I'm reading i t w i t h the caveat t h a t I do not 

consider the BLM's r e g u l a t i o n s t o be a u t h o r i t a t i v e on the 

question of law, unless i t happens t o be a question what 

the BLM — i t ' s w i t h i n the BLM's j u r i s d i c t i o n t o r e g u l a t e 

about, and I don't t h i n k t h a t t i t l e s are. 
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But with that caveat, the sentence immediately 

following the quotation from the Supreme Court of the 

United States that you quoted says, "An avulsive change 

cannot be assumed to have occurred without p o s i t i v e 

evidence. When no such showing can be made, i t must be 

presumed tha t the changes have been caused by gradual 

erosion and accretion." 

A. Right. 

Q. Now, the sentence from the Supreme Court of the 

United States says, "When grants of land border on running 

water, and the banks are changed by the gradual process 

known as accretion, the r i p a r i a n owner's boundary l i n e . . . 

remains the stream...", which i f I understand t h a t would 

say th a t i f the stream has moved by the process of erosion, 

the boundary l i n e remains the stream, although the stream 

has changed, ergo the boundary l i n e has changed. 

A. Well, but then what you have t o do to get t o 

there i s a basic problem of i s the boundary l i n e t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about here, i s i t the r i v e r — 

Q. Correct. 

A. — or i s i t the patent, you know, and whatever 

extent t h a t the patent was based on back whenever the 

patent was done. 

Q. Right. 

A. So that — and what they have done i n t h e i r f i r s t 
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map, the 1999 map, i s t r y t o re-draw the 1881 meander 

l i n e s — 

Q. Right. 

A. — and the basis f o r t h a t i s the concept t h a t the 

1881 meander l i n e s , which were the basis f o r the p a t e n t s , 

i s c o n t r o l l i n g . Okay. So — And a l l the s t u f f t h a t I read 

you about you can't change the o r i g i n a l corners. 

And so now then, the question i s , do those 

corners e s t a b l i s h e d by t h i s 1881 survey of the meander 

l i n e s , do they c o n t r o l , or i s there some s o r t of reference 

someplace t h a t says your boundary i s the r i v e r ? And i n 

f a c t , I don't see anyplace where i t says the boundary i s 

t h e r i v e r . 

Apparently what they have t r i e d t o do here i s 

e s t a b l i s h the meander corners, because t h a t i s e s t a b l i s h i n g 

how the patents were done. 

Q. Okay, l e t me ask another question. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Have you examined the patent under which Ms. 

Fischer holds? 

A. No, but I imagine what i t says i s the same t h i n g 

t h a t e v e r y t h i n g else does i n the chain of t i t l e , Lot 1. 

Q. Well, we can imagine many t h i n g s , but you don't 

know what i t says, corr e c t ? 

A. I have not gone t h a t f a r . 
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Q. Okay. Have you researched the question whether, 

i f a l o t i s patented by l o t number and the survey th a t i s 

on f i l e w i t h the BLM at the time that the l o t i s patented 

shows the l o t bounded by a watercourse and also shows the 

number of acres, whether i n construing t h a t patent the 

number of acres shown on the survey controls or whether the 

doctrine of accretion controls? 

A. I can't answer that s p e c i f i c a l l y . But generally, 

having looked at some of the law with regard t o c a l l s i n a 

deed, okay, that t y p i c a l l y a metes-and-bounds description 

w i l l p r e v a i l over acreage, but where you don't have a 

metes-and-bounds description and you do have an acreage, 

the acreage w i l l p r e v a i l . 

Now then, the question that you're asking i s , 

w i l l the acreage p r e v a i l over some sort of Lot 1 

designation, based on some sort of other p l a t , based on 

some sort of concept that maybe the r i v e r i s moving i n your 

l o t and your boundary i s changing. 

And so what you have, the most f i r m number t h a t 

you have evidence of — the size of that t r a c t or where 

that t r a c t i s , i s the acreage. And so to me i t looks l i k e 

the acreage i s going t o be your primary th i n g , and probably 

subject t o , you know, however i t gets shot at i n court with 

people arguing the law and people arguing whatever facts 

they can come up with. 
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But then t h a t also gets back t o these matters are 

f o r the c o u r t s of competent j u r i s d i c t i o n , which means we're 

g e t t i n g away from OCD s t u f f i f we're t a l k i n g about 

boundaries and — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I agree w i t h t h a t , and I 

was j u s t t r y i n g t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t there i s a considerable 

amount of u n c e r t a i n t y about t h i s , whether the boundary has 

a c t u a l l y changed or not. At l e a s t t h e r e i s i n my mind. I f 

I had done an exhaustive b r i e f on the s u b j e c t t h e r e might 

not be, but I have not done i t , and so there's considerable 

doubt i n my mind. 

But I'm not the person who decides t h a t , whatever 

t h a t might be. 

Anything f u r t h e r — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Not from me. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — Mr. Ke l l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Horner? 

THE WITNESS: Nothing f u r t h e r from me a t t h i s 

time. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Before — 

THE WITNESS: I would l i k e t o make a c l o s i n g 

argument. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Before I — Well, I 

guess I ' l l l i s t e n t o c l o s i n g arguments f i r s t . I need t o 
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confer w i t h my co-Examiners here before I decide whether or 

not t o take t h i s case under advisement, so... 

THE WITNESS: Okay, l e t me t r y t o get s t u f f back 

t o people here before I completely f o u l t h i n g s up. I have 

an e x h i b i t here — 

MR. KELLAHIN: That's the Examiner's. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: That's the e x h i b i t t h a t ' s been 

admitted. 

THE WITNESS: Goes here, and — 

MR. KELLAHIN: That's mine. 

MR. HORNER: — t h i s one... 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Oh, I'm s o r r y , Mr. Stogner 

would l i k e t o ask you some questions. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Horner, I ' d l i k e t o ask 

you j u s t a few questions here — 

THE WITNESS: C e r t a i n l y . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — k i n d of help educate 

everybody here i n the p r a c t i c e of t h i s . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. You said t h a t I could go someplace and take a 

look i f t h i s was an o f f i c i a l survey. Where would t h a t be 

i n New Mexico? 

A. Well, t h a t p a r t i c u l a r one, i f I were l o o k i n g f o r 

t h a t , I would go t o the BLM o f f i c e . I t ' s on the La Pl a t a 
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highway, j u s t outside of Farmington, j u s t n o r t h of the 

highway t o Shiprock, h a l f a mile or so. 

Q. Okay, I go th e r e , I'm l o o k i n g a t t h i s . Would 

they a l s o s t i l l have on f i l e other surveys or o l d e r 

surveys? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And f o r me t o do some s o r t of review of t h i s 

n o r t h h a l f , I would want t o p u l l j u s t t h i s one, or a l l of 

them? 

A. Well, depending on what you're wanting t o do. 

Okay. I f you have any question a t a l l about what's on t h i s 

t h i n g , you're going t o want t o see the o r i g i n a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And what I have done i n the past i s say, I want 

t o see them a l l and see, you know, what k i n d of c o n f l i c t s , 

i f any, t h e r e are. 

Because what's going on i s , these guys when they 

go out t o resurvey are f i n d i n g t o f i n d a rock t h a t ' s got 

some s o r t of marking on i t , t h a t i s n ' t t h e r e , t h a t ' s l y i n g 

a t t h e i n t e r s e c t i o n of a s t r e e t t h a t disappeared 80 years 

ago, and now they're t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out where t h a t corner 

i s supposed t o be, and they end up t r y i n g t o f i g u r e i t out 

based on, you know, the farmer over t h e r e t h a t says, w e l l , 

t h e r e used t o be something over here, and whatever evidence 
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t h a t they can f i n d . 

And so you r e a l l y do end up sometimes s t i c k i n g 

s e c t i o n corners where they d i d n ' t used t o be. And so — 

Q. Okay, you're k i n d of second-guessing my question 

here. 

A. Okay — 

Q. Bear w i t h me. 

A. A l l r i g h t . 

Q. Okay, I have two e x h i b i t s here, t h a t ' s E x h i b i t s 

2-A and 2-B, and they both reference a Lot 1. 

A. Right. 

Q. But nowhere i n here do they i n d i c a t e the amount 

of acreage. Where would I go t o f i n d the acreage assigned 

t o Lot 1 on a p l a t ? 

A. Okay. Well, you can look a t a l l the deeds. But 

i f you're going t o the p l a t , I ' d go t o the 1881 p l a t . 

Q. Okay, and we do not have t h a t here. 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. Would t h a t p l a t i n d i c a t e t h a t Lot 1 

c o n s i s t e d o f 45.47 acres? 

A. I would t h i n k so. Now, i t — e x a c t l y what has 

happened, I don't know. 

The 1881, I'm assuming t h a t a t t h a t p o i n t t h i s 

was s t i l l a s e c t i o n t h a t was — w e l l , 1881 — the 

r e s e r v a t i o n was created i n 1868. Assuming t h a t they made 
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the r i v e r the boundary of the r e s e r v a t i o n about t h a t time, 

then when they i n i t i a l l y surveyed t h i s s t u f f they probably 

d i d not survey the r e s e r v a t i o n , and the — i f t h a t was 

e n t i r e l y owned by the BLM a t t h a t p o i n t , t h e r e may have 

been no reason t o i n d i c a t e a Lot 1 a t t h a t time — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — i n 1881. Okay. So t h e r e f o r e , t o f i n d , 

a c t u a l l y , some s o r t of reference t o Lot 1 and the s i z e or 

d e s c r i p t i o n of Lot 1, you may a c t u a l l y be l o o k i n g f o r a 

patent since 1881, where Lot 1 was i n i t i a l l y created. 

Because otherwise t h e r e may have been no reason t o i n d i c a t e 

Lot 1 on t h a t 1881 p l a t . 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t 2-B. I have a 

Lot 1, I have a Lot 9, but I do not have Lots 2 through 8. 

What happened t o them? What would t h i s p l a t t e l l me? 

A. Okay. Well, what you — on the assessor's map 

t h a t I have given you, okay, Lot 1 i s the same on these 

maps as on the assessor's map. But j u s t t o the west o f Lot 

1 on the Assessor's map i s Lot 2. Okay. Now, Lot 2 

doesn't show up on these r e v i s e d p l a t s . 

Q. That's where we're g e t t i n g a t . 

A. Okay, so — 

Q. What happened t o them? 

A. — Lot 2 used t o be i n d i c a t e d , then, on the BLM 

maps. But now w i t h these surveys they have come along and 
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they've shuffled things around and they've changed acreages 

and t h i s sort of s t u f f f o r some of the d i f f e r e n t s t u f f 

that's basically a l l i n t e r n a l t o the BLM land. And what 

they have done i n the course of doing that i s , they have 

re-numbered these l o t s . And i n f a c t , on these two maps 

we've got here, they've re-numbered them twice. 

So what was Lot 2 on the assessor's map, or used 

t o be Lot 2, on the 1999 p l a t i s indicated as Lot 9, and 

then on the 2001 i t ' s indicated as Lot 20. So — 

Q. That would be known as a resurvey, r i g h t ? 

A. Well, i t ' s part of the resurvey. What they're 

doing i s , you know, they can chop up the s t u f f t h a t hasn't 

been divvied up t o anybody any way they want t o chop i t up. 

I t ' s not a f f e c t i n g anybody. 

And so apparently — I'm assuming, and I don't 

know precisely, but what I'm assuming i s , you know, they've 

got a r i v e r i n here and they've redrawn the meander li n e s 

and they're recalculating things, and they are renumbering 

t h e i r l o t s . And that's what the paragraph has indicated no 

the r i g h t side of the 1999 thing, i s they have renumbered 

and re-figured out some of the acreages, and where they 

have changed things they have indicated with a new acreage. 

But then they've apparently come back and done i t 

again with some revised information, and I'm assuming what 

they're doing i s t r y i n g t o — each time they re-do t h i s 
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they g i v e i t a d i f f e r e n t l o t number than even e x i s t e d 

before, so t h a t t h e i r new l o t number, then, w i l l not be 

confused w i t h t h e i r o l d l o t number. Okay. 

So now when they have changed a l l t h i s s t u f f 

around, when they change Lot 2 — Now they say, Okay, w e l l , 

we can't c a l l i t Lot 2 anymore because we've changed i t , so 

l e t ' s c a l l i t something else. Let's c a l l i t Lot 9, and 

w e ' l l — a l l these other d i f f e r e n t pieces t h a t we want t o 

i d e n t i f y here, w e ' l l give them new l o t numbers. 

And then they come along and they want t o change 

t h a t . Well, okay, we don't want t o change Lot 9, because 

we've got a record someplace of what Lot 9 i s and we j u s t 

changed i t . 

So l e t ' s now, instead of c a l l i n g t h i s Lot 9, 

l e t ' s c a l l i t what's not used on the 1999 p l a t , and i t goes 

t o 19. So okay, l e t ' s now c a l l Number 9 Number 20. So 

t h a t now you're not confusing any k i n d of i n f o r m a t i o n , 

s p e c i f i c a l l y w i t h regard t o 20, t o 9, t o 2, or i n f a c t , 

t h a t somebody, when they come i n t o these d i f f e r e n t l o t 

numbers, they're going t o say what's going on, and they're 

going t o ask questions, and why i s t h i s d i f f e r e n t , j u s t 

l i k e you're doing. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And so anyway, t h a t ' s why when they're making 

changes, they're g i v i n g i t new l o t numbers and t h e y ' r e 
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changing acreages. And then l i k e Lot Number 1, the y ' r e 

saying, we're not messing w i t h t h a t , and we don't even have 

the a u t h o r i t y t o mess w i t h t h a t . And so t h a t ' s f i n e , i t 

stands as i t o r i g i n a l l y was, and leave i t alone. 

Q. Okay, and t h a t ' s where I'm g e t t i n g a t . When I 

compare my 2-A t o 2-B, i n t h i s case i t ' s the 1999 survey 

and the 2000 survey, so I have a Lot 20, and I'm r e f e r r i n g 

now t o the newest one. So I have a Lot 20, and i t has 

2 3.24 acres. And then I move t o the west and I have Lot 

10, but they don't show acreage. 

I s i t the p o l i c y or surveyor's — whatever you 

want t o c a l l i t , law, r u l e , not t o repeat acreages once 

they are established? Do you j u s t put t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n 

t h e r e where you have t o go back and see what was assigned 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r l o t a t the time? 

A. Well, you can f i n d the d e t a i l s , but on t h i s 1999 

p l a t , l i k e I i n d i c a t e d , on the r i g h t s ide t h e r e ' s the 

paragraph. The t h i r d paragraph says, Except as i n d i c a t e d 

hereon, the l o t t i n g s and areas are as shown on the p l a t , 

approved August 31, 1882. Okay. 

And so — but what — The concept t h a t t h e y ' r e 

doing, then, t h a t ' s jumping up here, i s t h a t where they 

make a change they are showing a new acreage, a new l o t 

number where they've changed the l o t number, and when 

they've changed the acreage they're g i v i n g i t a new l o t 
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number. 

So i n the 1990 map you're seeing Lot 9 w i t h 23.41 

acres. That same place on the 2 000 map, you're seeing Lot 

2 0 w i t h 23.24 acres. So the acreage has changed. Okay. 

Now i n the 1990 map, as you go t o the l e f t l i k e 

you j u s t d i d , Number 10, here's a Lot Number 10 w i t h the 

12.84 acres, so they've changed t h a t from 1881 as i n d i c a t e d 

i n t h e i r paragraph t o the side here. And now as you go t o 

2001, i t says Lot 10 s t i l l , but there's no acreage, meaning 

the y ' r e not changing, a t l e a s t from the 1999 map. Okay. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And so t h a t ' s the k i n d of — Does t h a t help? 

Q. Yes. Now, okay, Lot 1 — 

A. A l l r i g h t . 

Q. — I go t o the middle map. I'm going t o c a l l 

t h i s the 1999 map. 

A. Okay. 

Q. When I look a t Lot 1, i t ' s i n d i c a t e d here, and 

i t ' s got boundary l i n e s e s t a b l i s h e d . 

A. Well, not n e c e s s a r i l y . 

Q. Pardon? 

A. Not ne c e s s a r i l y . 

Q. Okay, Lot 1, and i t ' s got some — I t gives me 

some i n d i c a t i o n s of what Lot 1 i s . To the n o r t h I have a 

s t r a i g h t l i n e , back t o the east I have a s t r a i g h t l i n e . To 
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the south I've got two l i n e s , and i t ' s broken, r i g h t ? 

A. Right. But what you have t h e r e t o the south i s a 

meander l i n e . 

Q. A meander l i n e . But t h a t d e p i c t s Lot 1 i n t h i s 

instance? 

A. Well, a c t u a l l y i t doesn't, j u s t t o confuse t h i n g s 

a l i t t l e b i t more. What i t i s , i s a meander l i n e . Okay, 

t h a t i s the high-water l i n e . 

Now then, also i n t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n here — t h a t I 

r e a l l y d i d n ' t mark and s p e c i f y and read t o you, but i t ' s i n 

here — what they t a l k about i s — w e ' l l get i n t o t h i s — 

what they t a l k about, way back when, before a l o t of these 

s t a t e s were created, the f e d e r a l government passed a law 

t h a t when they are t r a n s f e r r i n g t h i s p r o p e r t y t o t h e 

s t a t e s , they are r e s e r v i n g the navigable r i v e r s . Okay. So 

the navigable r i v e r s , then, the f e d e r a l government s t i l l 

owns, and t h a t means bank t o bank. Okay, so high-water 

mark t o high-water mark. 

Now, on non-navigable r i v e r s the f e d e r a l 

government d i d n ' t reserve i t , and then what you're t a l k i n g 

about i s going t o the c e n t e r l i n e of the r i v e r , or the 

median l i n e . And t h a t ' s why on the supplemental p l a t they 

are u l t i m a t e l y t r y i n g t o determine the median l i n e , or the 

medial l i n e , okay, of the r i v e r , the middle of the r i v e r . 

Okay. 
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Now, so then back i n 1881, here are the meander 

l i n e s . And then what they aren't showing, then, i s the 

median l i n e . But i n the instructions and i n the materials 

I gave f o r you, i f you want to read them and study them, i t 

t a l k s about how you calculate the median l i n e . And t h a t i s 

what they have done, then, f o r the San Juan River on the 

supplemental p l a t . Okay. 

So on the 1999 deal, the f i r s t consideration 

you're looking f o r i s what i s the o r i g i n a l meander l i n e s , 

the o r i g i n a l boundaries of the r i v e r t h a t were used way 

back when, from which you w i l l calculate, or can calculate, 

a median l i n e f o r the r i v e r , which would be, then, the 

boundary l i n e between l o t s on either side of the r i v e r . 

Now, and that process, then, i s what they did i n 

the 2001 map where they indicated — where they t r i e d t o 

determine, anyway, the high-water marks f o r the r i v e r as i t 

i s today, which I have a problem with, but t h a t concept. 

And from t h a t , then, they t r i e d t o calculate the median 

l i n e . 

And so the calculations involve picking points on 

eit h e r side and fi n d i n g the midpoints of the l i n e and 

working around the angles, and there's a whole section i n 

here on how you go about doing th a t . 

And then what you have represented on the 2 001 

p l a t , up above the map picture i t s e l f , i s the description 
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of t h a t median l i n e as they c a l c u l a t e d from t h e meander 

l i n e s o f the r i v e r as they a l l e g e d l y found i t i n — 

r e c e n t l y . 

Q. Okay. Let me t r y t h i s approach. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay, Lot 1 i s 45.47 acres, and I'm r e f e r r i n g now 

t o E x h i b i t 2-B. Lot 15 i s 14.27. 

A. Right. 

Q. Are you t e l l i n g me t h a t those two numbers 

represent t h a t t o t a l — what I would consider t h e east h a l f 

of the northeast quarter? 

A. No, there's the property between those meander 

l i n e s t h a t would also be taken i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n i f you 

want t o know the t o t a l acreage i n the east h a l f of the 

northeast q u a r t e r . 

Q. And t h a t i s not i n d i c a t e d i n t h e r e , t h a t amount 

of acreage? 

A. On t h i s p a r t i c u l a r page, no, they have not 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t . 

Q. Would t h a t have been depicted on the o r i g i n a l 

1881 survey, 1880 survey? 

A. That t o t a l acreage? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I'm not r e a l l y sure what they depicted on — 

Q. I t looks l i k e t o me we're l o s i n g some i n f o r m a t i o n 
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here, by both p a r t i e s , by not having the o r i g i n a l survey, 

wouldn't you agree? 

A. Quite p o s s i b l y . And you've got t o understand, 

I've been chasing my t a i l around l i k e crazy f o r the l a s t 

t h r e e days, and t h a t ' s a piece of i n f o r m a t i o n I would have 

l i k e d t o have had, t h a t simply was not p o s s i b l e t o get. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We have — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you have i t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: — the o r i g i n a l survey, Mr. 

Stogner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I do not have the o r i g i n a l 

survey. I do have the d e p i c t i o n of what was on t h a t 

o r i g i n a l survey, but both p a r t i e s have f a i l e d t o present 

t h i s today, and I thought I ' d ask some questions t o k i n d of 

help the process along, and I've f a i l e d tremendously here. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, I don't b e l i e v e i t has 

any relevance, but I would be i n t e r e s t e d t o look a t i t out 

of c u r i o s i t y , i f you want t o o f f e r i t i n t o evidence. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, I ' l l o f f e r i t i f i t a s s i s t s 

you. Let me show i t t o Mr. Horner. 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) I n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

d e p i c t i o n , do they show a thread of the San Juan River? 

A. A thread? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No, they don't. 
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Q. They do not. 

A. But they show c e r t a i n l i n e s f o r boundaries t h a t 

t h e y ' r e apparently t r y i n g t o represent, and they do show 

Lot 1 a t 45.47 acres. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h i s something you can o f f e r 

as an e x h i b i t , or do you need i t back? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , I can o f f e r i t as an 

e x h i b i t . We'll make t h a t 2-D? 2-D. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, i t ' s two pages. We'll 

need t o paste them together or s t a p l e them t o g e t h e r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: 2-D-l and -2. 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Now we've got a l i t t l e b i t 

of i n f o r m a t i o n here. 

Lot Number 1, nobody has taken the freedom t o 

change t h a t acreage, because th e r e i s no acreage i n d i c a t i o n 

on e i t h e r E x h i b i t s 2-A or 2-B. That doesn't mean i t — 

taken the l i b e r t y t o change, i t always — and i t should be 

r e f l e c t e d on here and understood t h a t i t ' s 45.47 acres. 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. That's k i n d of where I was g e t t i n g a t 

th e r e on t h a t . 

So when I r e f e r now t o — t h i s i s the Fischer 

E x h i b i t B, and t h i s was the agreement, the compensatory 

r o y a l t y agreement — 
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A. Right. 

Q. — where they r e f e r t o Tract I , Lot 1, 3 3.14 

acres — 

A. Right. 

Q. — t h a t i s wrong? 

A. I t appears t o me t o be wrong, and there's no 

i n d i c a t i o n of how they came up w i t h i t . Apparently i t was 

some s o r t of c a l c u l a t i o n l i k e Mr. Lehrman has been t a l k i n g 

about, although i t comes up w i t h d i f f e r e n t numbers than 

he's come up w i t h a t d i f f e r e n t times. 

And so e x a c t l y how they d i d i t or what they d i d , 

I don't know. And who d i d i t , I don't know. But 

h o p e f u l l y , from what we've been t a l k i n g about here, i t 

wasn't the surveyors t h a t d i d i t , i t wasn't the guys who 

understand what they're supposed t o be doing t h a t d i d i t . 

And i t may have been somebody t h a t was, you know, from the 

BLM, i t may have been somebody t h a t was a c t i n g i n good 

f a i t h but they d i d n ' t know what they were doing. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Lehrman, d i d you want t o 

i n t e r j e c t something here? 

MR. LEHRMAN: Yes, I — During my testimony I've 

s a i d t h i s several times. Those notes are the BLM notes. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, r i g h t . 

MR. LEHRMAN: They were done by a surveyor a t the 

BLM. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, you sa i d — 

MR. LEHRMAN: I was — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — you d i d n ' t know who they 

were done by. 

MR. LEHRMAN: No, I d i d n ' t say t h a t i t — They 

were done by the BLM. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, yeah, but you d i d n ' t know 

who they were done by — 

MR. LEHRMAN: No, I d i d not — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — a t the BLM. 

MR. LEHRMAN: — but I know they were done by the 

BLM. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Well, i n my o p i n i o n , 

gentlemen — Mr. Stogner s a i d e a r l i e r he was going t o beat 

t h i s horse some more, but I t h i n k i t ' s p r e t t y thoroughly 

dead now. I suggest we go on t o c l o s i n g arguments and then 

get t o a determination i f we're going t o get t h i s case 

under advisement, before i t gets any l a t e r i n the 

aftern o o n . 

MR. JONES: I have a quick question or two f o r 

Mr. Horner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JONES: 

Q. Mr. Horner, have you looked w i t h any petroleum 
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landman as under — as employed by you or Ms. Fischer i n 

t h i s case? 

A. No, I mean what you're l o o k i n g a t i s the guy who 

d i d anything t h a t got done — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — f o r Ms. Fischer. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I mean, except t o have t a l k e d t o Mr. Lehrman i n 

the course of the s t u f f and a couple guys a t BLM, but 

I'm — 

Q. Have you approached any other — Have you or Ms. 

Fischer approached any other o i l companies t o p o t e n t i a l l y 

lease out t h e i r acreage t o them — 

A. No. 

Q. — besides — 

A. No. 

Q. And why not? 

A. Well, from the looks of t h i n g s here, i t looks 

l i k e , number one, she was i n i t i a l l y approached w i t h the 

concept o f , you know, l e a s i n g the p r o p e r t y . And along w i t h 

t h a t , i n the t y p i c a l leases t h a t I've seen i n the course of 

researching some of t h i s s t u f f , comes the r i g h t t o d r i l l a 

w e l l and put p i p e l i n e s and a l l t h i s s o r t of s t u f f , which 

she was adamantly against i n the very beginning, so she 

very much d i s l i k e d t h a t concept. And when you look a t the 
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sale o f the mineral r i g h t s , i t d i d look l i k e i t was working 

out economically. 

Then the t r i c k was, what do we do and how do we 

do i t , and t r y t o f i g u r e out the economics of a 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n deal versus a lease, because along the way 

t h e r e was some s o r t of discussion about a no-occupancy 

lease. And so now i n order t o be able t o do t h a t , you need 

a whole l o t more i n f o r m a t i o n : the pro d u c t i o n l e v e l s of some 

of the w e l l s around, what can be expected from t h i s w e l l , 

p r i c e of gas, how the — her shares work and a l l of t h a t 

s o r t of s t u f f , what the law i s , how compulsory p o o l i n g 

works. 

And i n the course of those i n v e s t i g a t i o n s , 

created a spreadsheet t h a t showed what her shares would be, 

how much money she could make under d i f f e r e n t scenarios, 

lease versus p a r t i c i p a t i o n and a l l of t h a t s o r t of t h i n g . 

I n the law you have — i f you get compulsory pooled and you 

get a 200-percent penalty, you get a r o y a l t y of 1/8 percent 

t h a t i s not — the costs are not taxed against. So you get 

t h a t i f you do the p a r t i c i p a t i o n , which would be the same 

as a lease. 

Plus, i f you get compulsory pooled and have t o 

pay your 300 percent, b a s i c a l l y , a t some p o i n t , i f the w e l l 

i s a producer and pays i t s e l f o f f , your r e t u r n i s going t o 

go up by a f a c t o r of e i g h t a t some p o i n t . 
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And so i n t h a t regard I advised Ms. Fischer, 

a f t e r g e t t i n g i n t o t h i s and g e t t i n g my f e e t on the ground 

and s t a r t i n g t o understand some of t h i s s t u f f , t h a t t he 

lease was not i n her best i n t e r e s t . 

P r i o r t o t h a t , she decided a lease was not i n her 

best i n t e r e s t because of the r i g h t t o come i n and d r i l l a 

w e l l anywhere they wanted t o and put the p i p e l i n e anywhere 

they wanted t o and destroy her pro p e r t y and j u s t r e a l l y not 

care what they d i d t o her, and — i n r e t u r n f o r a 1/8, 

which apparently seems t o be not very much most of the 

time, so... 

MR. JONES: Okay, thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you very much. You may 

step down as witness. 

We seem t o do th i n g s a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t l y i n the 

OCD than are done i n co u r t . I n c o u r t we normally have the 

movant make the argument f i r s t and the respondent argue i n 

the middle, and the movant got t o close, but we don't 

u s u a l l y do t h a t here. 

But I guess I w i l l c a l l on Mr. K e l l a h i n as the 

movant t o make h i s argument, and then Mr. Horner can make 

h i s argument, and then I ' l l l e t Mr. K e l l a h i n , i f he wants 

t o close, he can close. 

I t h i n k t h a t ' s the normal way i t should be done 

under the Rules of Procedure. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Your pleasure, Mr. Examiner. 

This case has given me a headache. I can't t e l l 

you how bad my head h u r t s r i g h t now. But I'm not sure i t ' s 

Richardson's headache, and I'm not sure i t ' s your headache. 

I'm going t o go home and take a p i l l . 

You need t o decide several t h i n g s . One i s the 

process by which Richardson engaged i n n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h Ms. 

Fischer. Ms. Fischer i s an e l e c t e d p u b l i c o f f i c i a l i n 

Farmington, she knows o i l and gas a t t o r n e y s , knows o i l and 

gas people. 

She admits g e t t i n g the l e t t e r i n June of '01. 

She c a l l s Cathy Colby and represents t o us t h a t Cathy was 

rude, and chose not t o do anything else about the l e t t e r . 

I n today's business world w i t h s o p h i s t i c a t e d people t h a t 

are p u b l i c l y e l e c t e d , you can't j u s t ignore i t . I f someone 

i s rude t o you, you c a l l and ask f o r someone e l s e , or you 

a t l e a s t w r i t e a l e t t e r . The l e t t e r i n v i t e s Ms. Fischer t o 

c a l l or ask questions about what's i n here. 

Ms. Fischer says she doesn't understand how t h i s 

r i s k f a c t o r works. I t ' s also a clue as t o what Richardson 

i s a s s e r t i n g t o be her net acres. I t ' s only 17 net acres, 

and i f she's t h i n k i n g she has 100 percent of 45, I ' d be 

screaming and y e l l i n g . She does not do t h a t , she doesn't 

engage i n any of t h a t . 

She says they d i d n ' t a n t i c i p a t e what I would 
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want, d i d n ' t give i t t o me, and t h e r e f o r e I'm going t o 

ignore i t . They d i d not send me the k i n d of l e t t e r I would 

want so I could understand i t . 

This k i n d of l e t t e r has been sent by Richardson 

every time they do one of these t h i n g s , and i t ' s standard 

i n d u s t r y nomenclature. I t i s not intended t o say t h a t Ms. 

Fischer has t o prepay her share of the costs of the w e l l 

and s u f f e r a d d i t i o n a l p e n a l t i e s . That's not what t h i s was. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I t h i n k I understand i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I know you do. 

And i f t h a t ' s her concern, she should have c a l l e d 

you or someone else t o say, What are you people doing t o 

me? P a r t i c u l a r l y i f she's suspicious about t h e i r 

r e p u t a t i o n . She does nothing. 

I n November, on the 16th, the same year, she gets 

another l e t t e r i d e n t i c a l t o the f i r s t . The AFE's are s t i l l 

t h e same, i t ' s got the same concerns. I f I now get a 

second l e t t e r from Ms. Colby, they're serious about a w e l l , 

and I ought t o know t h a t , because t h i s i s my community and 

t h a t ' s how deals are put together. You get p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

on a v o l u n t a r y basis f o r your spacing u n i t . And i f 

somebody's coming a f t e r me, an operator d r i l l i n g a w e l l , 

I'm going t o c a l l and f i g u r e i t out. Nothing happens. 

What i s Richardson t o t h i n k ? There i s no 

n e g o t i a t i o n , no discussion, no counter, no no t h i n g . 
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And what do we do? We f i l e a compulsory pooling 

case. And l o and behold, Monday, they're coming t o us and 

we're sharing with them a l l the information we have. 

You need t o decide as an Examiner i f i t ' s w i t h i n 

your j u r i s d i c t i o n t o decide i n t e r i o r boundary problems i n a 

spacing u n i t . I suggest to you, you cannot and should not. 

When we come into a force-pooling case, we make 

cer t a i n assumptions. You assume that the BLM map that they 

give you, that they calculate f o r them and f o r you, i s 

reasonable and useful. And we do i t a l l the time, we never 

look i n t o the subdivision of the t r a c t s . 

Do we want to spend our time and resources t r y i n g 

t o guess the answer to what do we do with the 4 5 acres? 

Has i t been added t o or subtracted to? 

Mr. Horner i s well spoken, he's engaging, he 

c e r t a i n l y represents an expertise, he's well-intended. But 

he's asserting a point of view here that's not rebutted by 

the other agency, the BLM, that's t e l l i n g us, We th i n k the 

Navajos have X, and as a consequence Ms. Fischer has Y. 

Somewhere i n between there we don't want t o pay a party 

more than they're e n t i t l e d t o . 

The t y p i c a l solution i s , you pool whatever 

in t e r e s t s are uncommitted and leave i t t o the i n t e r e s t 

owner pooled and the other owners to solve t h a t with a 

q u i e t - t i t l e s u i t . That's not up to us t o f i x . 
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I f they don't l i k e the cost of the w e l l s a f t e r 

i t ' s d r i l l e d , there's a p e t i t i o n p e r i o d i n which you can 

f i l e and o b j e c t t o the a c t u a l cost. She has the choice 

a f t e r a p o o l i n g order i s served on her t o take an 

a d d i t i o n a l 30 days t o see i f she now wants t o e l e c t t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n a d r i l l e d w e l l . The s t a t u t e a llows us t o 

d r i l l t he w e l l f i r s t and pool l a t e r . She's a smaller 

i n t e r e s t owner f o r which we wouldn't expect t h a t she 

wouldn't want t o be the operator. We have done what i s 

normally r e q u i r e d . 

I apologize f o r her perception t h a t Ms. Colby was 

less than courteous. That has not been my experience, but 

I wasn't t a l k i n g t o her. I f t h a t happens, there's ways t o 

go beyond her and around her and deal w i t h your business. 

This i s an important f a m i l y p r o p e r t y t o her. She 

b e l i e v e s she has the surface, she believes she has a l l the 

m i n e r a l s , and then she becomes s u r p r i s e d t o know t h a t Dugan 

now c o n t r o l s a p a r t . I f Mr. Dugan was having t r o u b l e w i t h 

h i s 50 percent of her acreage i n Tract 1, he would have 

done something about i t , and I suggest t h a t she should have 

done something e a r l i e r . 

We t h i n k we're e n t i t l e d t o a f o r c e p o o l i n g order, 

we want one i n the normal fashion, i n order t h a t the 

concerns r a i s e d by Ms. Fischer and Mr. Horner be resolved 

between them and the BLM. I f Mr. Horner wants t o w r i t e 
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t h i s up or take the minutes from the t r a n s c r i p t and submit 

i t t o the BLM and demonstrate t h a t t h e r e i s no problem, 

then i t goes away. 

I t should not be our o b l i g a t i o n t o engage i n the 

time, money and e f f o r t t o handle i n t e r i o r s u b d i v i s i o n s i n 

the spacing u n i t , and i f you ask us t o do t h a t , then we 

have t o face the consequence of t r y i n g how t o f i g u r e i t out 

i n t h i s case or any other. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Horner? 

MR. HORNER: Yes, what we have i s — the su b j e c t 

today i s Ms. Fischer's Lot 1. And she owns t h e surface 

r i g h t s . She thought she had a l l the mineral r i g h t s . I t 

was news t o her on Monday of t h i s week t h a t she d i d not. 

And i t wasn't u n t i l Tuesday of t h i s week t h a t she a c t u a l l y 

had evidence t h a t she d i d not. Okay? And so she heard 

from the f i r s t time on Monday t h a t she d i d not, and Tuesday 

she found some evidence t o t h a t e f f e c t . 

But i n her mind she owns the land, she owns the 

minerals, they're hers. And I don't see where there's a 

problem w i t h t h a t k i n d of t h i n k i n g . Richardson comes and 

says, We want t o d r i l l a w e l l on your p r o p e r t y , we want 

some s o r t of r i g h t t o do t h a t , we want a lease, we want a 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n agreement or whatever i t i s t h a t we want. 

And so, f i n e , you want i t ; I don't want t o l e t 
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you have i t . I t ' s my land, my pro p e r t y , my minerals. I 

don't want you d r i l l i n g a w e l l on my p r o p e r t y . 

And she gets threatened, We're going t o do i t 

anyway. She b a s i c a l l y hangs up on them. And t h a t ' s a l l 

she heard from anybody. 

Now, the r e i s some evidence t h a t t h e r e was a 

l e t t e r sent along w i t h t h a t i n June, and then t h e r e was 

some evidence t h a t there was a l e t t e r sent i n November. 

And i f y o u ' l l look a t the back of t h a t document, t h e r e was 

some dis c u s s i o n who signed f o r t h a t l e t t e r . Her postman 

signed f o r i t . I s t i l l haven't f i g u r e d out how t h a t works. 

And she can't remember having seen i t . But even i f i t was 

d e l i v e r e d , and even i f she d i d see i t and ignored i t , i t ' s 

s t i l l her land and her property. 

And the next time she had any conta c t w i t h them 

was a l e t t e r dated J u l y 1st, 2002, i n d i c a t i n g t h a t t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n had been f i l e d . At t h a t time, i t ' s time t o 

f i g u r e out what's going on. 

A few days l a t e r she gives me a copy of i t , and 

we s t a r t working on i t . And then, u n f o r t u n a t e l y , i n 

reading the statues, we f i n d t here i s some s o r t of s t a t u t e 

about compulsory p o o l i n g , t h a t n e i t h e r one of us 

understood, t h a t we are loo k i n g down the b a r r e l of some 

s o r t of order t h a t ' s going t o probably i n v o l v e her i n t h i s 

w e l l . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

198 

And now the t r i c k t o figure out, what does i t a l l 

mean? What does the statute say? What are they looking 

for? What have we got to do? Have we got to deal with 

these people? Now i t ' s time t o t r y t o fi g u r e out what's 

going on, and that's what we've been doing f o r the l a s t two 

weeks. 

Now then, but i n t h i s time period then — And 

then, even a f t e r that was received, i t was not u n t i l Monday 

that we had another contact, t h i s Monday, tha t we had 

another contact with Richardson, i n the morning. They 

wanted t o meet, absolutely. We met with them Monday 

afternoon. 

Now then, i t looks t o me l i k e we've got a r e a l 

problem with good f a i t h here. And when you look at what 

was offered i n that l e t t e r — i n both l e t t e r s , the June and 

the November l e t t e r s of 2001, we want you to agree t o t h i s 

AFE. And as we t a l k t o people now, AFE, apparently that's 

somebody wanting some money up f r o n t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a 

w e l l . 

And then we want a nonconsent penalty of 300/100 

percent. How does that — What does tha t even mean, when 

you're agreeing t o something and somebody's going t o h i t 

you with a nonconsent penalty? Certainly a 3 00 percent, 

when you read a statute that says your worst-case 

o b l i g a t i o n under a compulsory pooling order i s 200 percent, 
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how does t h a t make any sense t o even consider i t ? 

And so — And i n f a c t , i s t h e r e something t h a t I 

don't understand w i t h o u t a l o t of background i n o i l and 

gas, where maybe you understand t h a t t h a t means something 

other than what i t says? Because what i t says i s , we get 

t h i s agreement, then we t u r n around and do t h i s next 

agreement f o r t h i s b i g penalty. 

And so i f i t means something other than what i t 

says when you read i t — Yesterday i n t a l k i n g t o the BLM 

guy who understands o i l and gas, and we don't, showed him 

the l e t t e r , he had no idea what i t meant. Now, i f you 

understand what i t means, i t ' s s t i l l a s e cret from us. 

They haven't explained i t t o us, we've met w i t h 

them t w i c e . Nobody else has explained i t t o us, the BLM 

guy couldn't e x p l a i n i t t o us. I t looks t o me l i k e i t ' s 

j u s t a scam. Okay? Okay, sign t h i s t h i n g , and 400 

percent. 

We were working on the basis, number one, here's 

17 acres, and as we s t a r t l o o k i n g i n t o i t , w e l l , t h e r e ' s 45 

acres i n Lot 1, and t h a t doesn't r e a l l y make any sense t o 

make t h a t k i n d of deal. 

When you s t a r t l o o k i n g a t i t , then, 3 00, 4 00 

percent, whatever we're t a l k i n g about, when I ran my 

spreadsheet based on the f a c t t h a t we thought she had 45 

acres, which would be 28 percent of 160-acre spacing, 3 00 
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percent of her charges would mean t h a t she's paying 75 

percent of the cost of t h a t w e l l . 

And t h i s i s j u s t beyond Mr. Richardson, he 

doesn't understand t h i s concept. Yeah, r i g h t , he doesn't 

understand i t ; i t ' s more of h i s scam. And they've been 

scamming her a l l along. 

And so — I mean, good f a i t h — There j u s t i s no 

good f a i t h here. 

And then you come along and you look a t the 

A p p l i c a t i o n i t s e l f t h a t they attached t o the J u l y 31st 

l e t t e r . You look a t the s t a t u t o r y requirements f o r the 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 70-7-5, okay, i n the S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n 

Act, item D, A copy of a proposed plan of u n i t i z a t i o n which 

the a p p l i c a n t considers f a i r , reasonable and e q u i t a b l e . I 

d i d n ' t see one of those. 

We're t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out who's i n t h i s u n i t , 

what are the acreages, what are the percentages? We 

couldn't f i n d them. They should be attached t o t h e i r 

a p p l i c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I don't b e l i e v e the S t a t u t o r y 

U n i t i z a t i o n Act a p p l i e s t o t h i s proceeding, Mr. Horner. 

You may want t o read the i n t r o d u c t o r y p r o v i s i o n s of i t 

somewhat more c a r e f u l l y . We deal w i t h these t h i n g s a l l the 

time, and a compulsory p o o l i n g proceeding and a s t a t u t o r y 

u n i t i z a t i o n proceeding are under d i f f e r e n t s t a t u t e s and 
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i n v o l v e d i f f e r e n t s i t u a t i o n s . 

Anyway, you may continue. 

MR. HORNER: Okay. Well, t h a t ' s again news t o 

me, and i t looks l i k e i t ' s e x a c t l y what we're doing here. 

And when you t a l k e d about e a r l i e r the requirement f o r 

d e a l i n g i n good f a i t h , I thought i t was coming s t r a i g h t out 

of t h i s S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n Act. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And i t i s , i t ' s expressed i n 

the S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n Act. I don't b e l i e v e i t i s 

expressly s t a t e d i n the compulsory p o o l i n g s t a t u t e . I 

don't have the s t a t u t e i n f r o n t of me. I don't b e l i e v e 

i t ' s expressly s t a t e d i n t h e r e , although i t has been our 

p o l i c y t o consider t h a t as a f a c t o r . 

MR. HORNER: Okay. So anyway, attached t o the 

A p p l i c a t i o n , then, was none of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n . Okay? 

None of the — anything t h a t looked l i k e a p o o l i n g p l a n , 

anything t h a t looked the percentages, the acreages t h a t 

were w i t h i n the pool, the percentages, how they a r r i v e d a t 

them, anything else t o get us going on what we're t a l k i n g 

about here. None of t h a t has ever been presented. So we 

have a r e a l problem w i t h the concept of good f a i t h . 

Now again, yesterday we made a c o u n t e r o f f e r t h a t 

appeared t o be f a i r . I t d i d n ' t have a 200-percent p e n a l t y 

on i t , they weren't i n t e r e s t e d . They a b s o l u t e l y weren't 

i n t e r e s t e d . They're going t o get a 200-percent p e n a l t y 
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today, so why should they t a l k t o us yesterday? And t h a t 

was — Mr. Richardson's express words were, Why should we 

consider t h i s ? You know, we're going t o get a 2 00-percent 

p e n a l t y tomorrow. Why should we consider t h i s today? 

Now then, i t ' s been t a l k e d about here t h a t 

t here's nothing t o i n d i c a t e — Well, I'm not sure e x a c t l y 

how i t was s a i d , but some s o r t of concept expressed here, 

a t l e a s t i n c l o s i n g arguments, t h a t the Navajos have X, 

t h a t something has changed and the Navajos have however 

much. And I'm saying nothing has changed. 

They have shown you no evidence here i n d i c a t i n g 

t h a t t h e r e i s anything t h a t says the Navajos' p r o p e r t y has 

changed. So they're concerned about having t o pay t w i c e 

w i t h acreages overlapping and doubling up. There's nothing 

here t o i n d i c a t e t h a t t h a t has happened. They have shown 

no evidence of t h a t . I n f a c t — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, l e t me i n t e r r u p t you. 

They've shown a survey t h a t shows the r i v e r i n a d i f f e r e n t 

p o s i t i o n from what i t was on the o r i g i n a l survey, and even 

under the evidence t h a t you presented, you presume the 

d i f f e r e n c e i s a matter of a c c r e t i o n — 

MR. HORNER: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — an a v u l s i o n . 

MR. HORNER: No — Well, yeah, I d i d n ' t assume or 

presume t h a t i t ' s a c c r e t i o n a t a l l . 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, but t h a t ' s what E x h i b i t F 

t h a t you o f f e r e d i n evidence says. 

MR. HORNER: Well, E x h i b i t F shows the d i f f e r e n c e 

between a c c r e t i o n and avu l s i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Exactly. 

MR. HORNER: Right. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And i t says, "An a v u l s i v e 

change cannot be assumed t o have occurred w i t h o u t p o s i t i v e 

evidence. When no such showing can be made, i t must be 

presumed t h a t the changes have been caused by gradual 

e r o s i o n and a c c r e t i o n . " 

MR. HORNER: Okay, and i f we get t o i t and i f we 

get i n t o the c o u r t of competent j u r i s d i c t i o n , then t h a t ' s 

going t o be p a r t of my j o b , t o demonstrate the evidence 

t h a t i t has changed — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And you're a b s o l u t e l y r i g h t 

about t h a t . 

MR. HORNER: Okay. And so — Anyway, what we 

have, then, i s s t i l l , t hey're t r y i n g t o stand on 33 acres. 

And what t h a t i s , 12 from 45, i s again, you know, t a k i n g 

another 25, 28 percent away from Ms. Fischer. You know, 

take i t away t h e r e , s t i c k her w i t h 300 — 200, 300-percent 

nonconsent penalty when she's consenting. 

You know, the s t u f f we've g o t t e n from Richardson 

here i s j u s t crazy. They t o l d her on Monday t h a t they had 
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not d r i l l e d t h i s w e l l y e t . Two people t o l d her t h a t . 

A c t u a l l y , I guess, Mr. Lehrman q u a l i f i e d i t , he s a i d he 

d i d n ' t know. But Ann Jones sai d t h a t t he w e l l had not been 

d r i l l e d y e t . And i n f a c t , Ms. Fischer has seen i t being 

d r i l l e d , and we went over and looked a t i t . So t h e lac k of 

good f a i t h here j u s t goes on and on and on. 

And then Mr. Richardson himself on the stand 

today, j u s t not being able t o understand the concept of a 

200-percent p e n a l t y and how t h a t could make Ms. Fischer, 

based on 45 acres, end up paying t h r e e - q u a r t e r s of the cost 

of h i s w e l l . When he d r i l l s h i s w e l l before there's an 

agreement, when he d r i l l s h i s w e l l before there's an order, 

he assumes the r i s k . 

He's the one who understands the geology, he's 

the one who understands the business, he's the one who 

understands the r i s k , and he's the one who decides t o go 

ahead and d r i l l the w e l l , w i t h o u t an agreement, w i t h o u t an 

order. He understands the r i s k , he assumes the r i s k s , and 

he undertakes the j o b knowing the r i s k s . And then t o come 

along and t r y t o put th r e e - q u a r t e r s of the cost , or a t 

l e a s t t h r e e times what — thr e e or fou r times what they 

should be, Mary's share, on her, i s j u s t crooked. And 

t h a t ' s what we've got going on here. 

So then what we would ask i s t h a t , number one, 

t h a t t h e r e be no penalty i n v o l v e d , t h a t again she pay her 
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p r o p o r t i o n a t e share out of production. The Indians t o the 

south here are paying a 1/6 r o y a l t y . That sounds f a i r , a 

1/6 r o y a l t y . And b a s i c a l l y , you know, t h a t her cost of the 

pro d u c t i o n , or her share of the cost of the w e l l be taken 

out of produc t i o n out of the other 5/6. 

And what we would suggest t o you, even, i s t h a t 

the bad f a i t h on the p a r t of Richardson here i s so bad t h a t 

you even consider a l l o w i n g her t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s w e l l 

w i t h o u t paying her share of the cost of pr o d u c t i o n , as a 

pen a l t y t o them f o r t h e i r b a d - f a i t h e f f o r t s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have anything t o add, 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , by way of closing? 

MR. KELLAHIN: A couple of p o i n t s , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

MR. KELLAHIN: As you reminded Mr. Horner, he's 

i n the wrong p a r t of the s t a t u t e . 

Your memory i s also c o r r e c t on the f o r c e - p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e . I t simply says when p a r t i e s f a i l t o agree you can 

exercise your powers. 

His c h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n of Richardson i s d i s t u r b i n g . 

I t h i n k i t ' s u n f a i r . I expected b e t t e r . But t o suggest 

t h a t we have been i n bad f a i t h i s t r u l y u n f a i r . 

We send her two d i f f e r e n t l e t t e r s , she ignores 

them. The l e t t e r on i t s e l f says i t ' s not going t o be 

d r i l l e d on her t r a c t . She's out the r e watching a r i g j u s t 
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south of the r i v e r , she knows i t ' s not on her p r o p e r t y . 

She asks no questions about any of t h i s . We are t h e ones 

t h a t have i n i t i a t e d a l l w r i t t e n and a l l other c o n t a c t s . 

On Monday Richardson c a l l s them, j u s t a few days 

before hearing. Ms. Fischer, what i s going on? They meet, 

they meet several times, Richardson shares the i n f o r m a t i o n 

w i t h them t o the best we can, we give them t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n . There's no nastiness here, there's no deep, 

dark s e c r e t . 

The n o t i c e of hearing, which they admit they 

r e c e i v e d , i s a l e t t e r t h a t I sent t h a t ' s b o i l e r p l a t e , 

a d v i s i n g you t o f i l e an e n t r y of appearance on Friday so 

t h a t we know you're out the r e . 

I f Mr. Horner had c a l l e d me, we could have t a l k e d 

about these t h i n g s . I would have t o l d him what the 

p r a c t i c e i s , what the r u l e i s , the r i g h t p a r t of the 

s t a t u t e t o worry about, and we might have come up w i t h some 

s o l u t i o n . 

But we don't hear anything from them u n t i l we contact 

them on Monday, and I don't know they're coming here u n t i l 

l a s t n i g h t when Mr. Lehrman t e l l s me he t h i n k s t h a t t hey're 

coming t o hearing. I see them f o r the f i r s t time t h i s 

morning. I don't accuse them of ambushing us, and I resent 

t h e f a c t t h a t they're saying we're i n bad f a i t h . 

We're t r y i n g t o consolidate the l a s t of the 
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i n t e r e s t owners i n order t o pay everyone t h e i r f a i r share, 

and we're also asking you not t o engage i n t r y i n g t i t l e or 

determining boundary. We've done what the s t a t u t e 

r e q u i r e s , we have a w e l l out t h e r e t h a t ' s not y e t 

completed. 

She has the chance t o pay her share based upon a 

w e l l t h a t ' s d r i l l e d , or choose not t o . I f she chooses not 

t o , we're going t o pay her share, and we're going t o be 

reimbursed by t a k i n g i t out of f u t u r e p r o d u c t i o n , p l u s 

whatever p e n a l t y you t e l l us i s a p p r o p r i a t e . She doesn't 

get i t both ways. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you very much. 

Could I c a l l a conference of the panel here f o r a 

minute? 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 3:54 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 4:02 p.m.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, Mr. K e l l a h i n says t h i s 

t i t l e issue gives him a headache. A c t u a l l y f o r me, a f t e r 

12 years on the bench, I love t h a t k i n d of t h i n g . That's 

th e k i n d of t h i n g I used t o spend Saturdays and Sundays 

researching i n another l i f e . 

But the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n has a b s o l u t e l y 

no j u r i s d i c t i o n t o make determinations of t i t l e or acreage. 

A l l we can do i s e i t h e r compulsory pool or not compulsory 
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pool t h e i n t e r e s t s , whatever they may be, and t h a t ' s what 

we would do i f we entered an order on t h i s . 

However, we have determined t h a t i n our view the 

p a r t i e s have not s u f f i c i e n t l y explored the p o s s i b i l i t y of a 

v o l u n t a r y agreement and have not s u f f i c i e n t l y understood 

each other i n the n e g o t i a t i o n s , and we b e l i e v e the 

ap p r o p r i a t e d i s p o s i t i o n of t h i s case i s t o continue i t t o 

our hearing docket on September the 19th, I b e l i e v e — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Yes, September 19th. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — which w i l l g i v e you 

approximately — which w i l l g ive you e x a c t l y f o u r weeks t o 

explore the p o s s i b i l i t y of v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

The record w i l l be hel d as the rec o r d , and f o u r 

weeks from now i t w i l l not be necessary t o come here and 

present any more evidence unless somebody f e e l s t he 

necess i t y t o do so. I f you j u s t r e p o r t t o us t h a t you're 

s t i l l not i n agreement, then we w i l l take the matter under 

advisement a t t h a t time. 

I f there's nothing f u r t h e r , we stand adjourned. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Well, I've got one, the 

nomenclature. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

4:03 p.m.) - .-or-;; uftr-e pf.'X:«c<->> 
a co r< 
t«. L<a,s-.:r.ir Uarir.g ot 

* * * heard by me on i Q u p — 2 ^ - / ' r 
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